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Bharat Serums & Vaccines Limited
CHAIRMAN MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,

It is a pleasure to inform you that with your continued support, trust and our collective efforts, we have been able to register
good growth consistently - F Y 18 -19 has shown a growth of 16.5% over F Y 17-18 in terms of overall consolidated income of
your Company. While BSV India Domestic business registered a growth of 7% the International business at consolidated level,
grew by 46.2%.

Within India, domestic business of your company registered a growth of 7%. Growth was mainly driven by Gynecology
segment where major products contributing to the growth were Anti-D and Hormone range. As you are aware, your Company
is reputed for its products in the Gynecology and Critical Care segments with many “firsts” to its credit and we proudly share
with you the fact that we continue to be at anumber 1 or 2 position in the Indian market in respect of our major products.

Your Company's International Business is continuing to be on a growth trajectory. Consistent marketing efforts and steadily
increasing coverage with increased field force has helped us register growth in sales of finished goods. Due to certain
anticipated changes in the regulatory environment in the key operating market, growth in sale of bulk to third party from BSV
Bioscience GmbH had remained subdued in the FY 17-18. | am happy to share with you the fact that in FY 18-19 sales to third
party has rebounded and has more than doubled in INR terms.

Your Company's wholly owned subsidiary in the Philippines, has registered Revenue of INR 3,546 Lakhs in the current year.
Looking at the market potential, we had expanded the field force and we are seeing the results now — BSV Bio Philippines has
registered a sales growth of 16.15% in INR terms.

Your company has ramped up R&D investment to firm up its position of strength in its focus therapeutic segments. In the
financial year just ended, growth in the R&D spend was 44.4% over previous year and as % to our total consolidated revenue,
the spend inthe financial year was a good 5%.

Your company has recorded total Income at a consolidated level for the year just ended, of INR 88,482 Lakhs (PY INR 75,948
Lakhs) with an EBIDTA (Earnings before depreciation, tax and amortization) of INR 18,711 Lakhs (PY INR 14,357 Lakhs)
registering, a growth of 30.3%in EBIDTA.

Your company is confident of delivering a substantial growth in sales and profitability in the coming year. On the domestic front,
new divisions focused on new therapeutic segments, new product Launches and new product registrations in various
institutions will drive the growth. On the International front, the revenue growth drivers would continue to be new product
registrations in various countries and further improved marketing focus on select export markets. In the year, your company
received 60 new registrations and, in the next year your company expects to receive another 50-55 registrations.

| would like to conclude with a heartfelt thanks to all our stakeholders for their continuing and strong support to the company,
which is vital to the pursuit of sustainable growth as well as to your company's commitment to “Bringing Life to Life”.

Best Wishes,

Sd/-

Bharat Daftary

Chairman and Managing Director
Date: July 30,2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GLOBAL PHARMA OUTLOOK

Global prescription drug sales are expected to grow at an annual compound rate of 6.4% from F Y 2018 to 2024 to reach
US$1.2 trillion in 2024, driven primarily by increased access to medicines and novel therapies which will meet the unmet
needs. Challenges to growth will include pricing pressure due to government regulation, competition from generics &
biosimilars as also patent expires. The growth will be driven primarily by emerging markets supported by an increasing middle
class. In Deloitte's 2018 outlook, worldwide pharmaceutical R&D spend was forecast to grow at the rate 0f2.4% p.a. 10 2022, as
against the annual growth rate of 2.5% between 2008 and 2016. Further, inabsolute terms, the R&D spend was projected to
reach US$181 billion in 2022. However, on the backdrop of falling returns on R&D investments, growth in R&D spend is
projected to be subdued.

Biotechnology products have been steadily contributing to the sales growth and are predicted to contribute to 31% of the
global pharmaceutical market by 2024.Driven by gene and cell therapy segment, Orphan drug sector is expected to double
and accountfor 20% of the world prescription sales.

On therapy front, Oncology leads therapy areas in sales and is likely to grow to US$233 billion by 2024. Highest CAGR growth
during 2017 to 2024 in the top 15 therapy categories is expected to come from immunosuppressants, oncology,
dermatological and vaccines which is expected to grow to US$38.1billion (39.5%), US$233 billion (12.2%), US$30.3 billion
(12.97%) & US$44.6 billion (10.13%) respectively by 2024.

(Source: Deloitte Global Lifesciences Outlook)

INDIAN PHARMA MARKET OUTLOOK

Indian pharmaceutical industry stood at US$ 33 billion in 2017 and is expected to grow at a CAGR of 22.4% over 2015-20 to
reach US$ 55 billion driven by a steady increase in affordability and market access. India's pharmaceutical exports stood at
US$19.14 billion in 2018-19 and is expected to reach US$ 20 billion by 2020.

Indian companies received 300 Abbreviated New Drug Application (ANDA) approvals from the US Food and Drug
Administration (USFDA) in 2017. The country accounts for around 30% (by volume) and about 10% (value) in the US$ 70-80
billion US generics market.

India's biotechnology industry comprising biopharmaceuticals, bio-services, bio-agriculture, bio-industry and bioinformatics
is expected grow at an average growth rate of around 30% a year and reach US$ 100 billion by 2025. Biopharma, comprising
vaccines, therapeutics and diagnostics, is the largest sub-sector contributing nearly 62% of the total revenues at Rs 12,600
crore (US$ 1.89 billion).

Growth drivers include population growth, increasing affordability, enhanced accessibility and rising acceptability.

R&D spend increased as % to sales from 5.3%in FY 2012 t08.5%inFY 2018 andis expected to be at similar levelin FY 2019
andFY 2020.

Medicine spendingin India is expected to increase at 9-12% CAGR between 2018-22 to US$ 26-30 billion, driven by increasing
consumer spending, rapid urbanisation, and raising healthcare insurance among others.

Going forward, better growth in domestic sales would also depend on the ability of companies to align their product portfolio
towards fast growing chronic therapies for diseases such as cardiovascular, anti-diabetes, anti-depressants and anti-cancers.
In terms of geographies, significant growth is expected to come from Metro and Tier-l markets, driven by rapid urbanisation
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and greater economic development. Driven by increased penetration, rural markets are expected to grow the fastest.
(Source: Indian Pharma 2020 Mckinsey& Co.; IBEF Report)
BUSINESS REVIEW

Within India, your company's domestic business grew by 7%. While Gynacology segment grew by close to 10.2%, growth in
Critical Care segment remain subdued Growth in Gynacology segment was contributed by Anti-D and Hormone range
backed with additional tender for Anti-D in U.P. and Maharashtra and brand extension in Hormone range. Within Critical Care
segment, growth was contributed mainly by Bharglob and Amphonex backed with indication expansion for Bharglob and
introduction of Amphonexin corporate formulary.

The international business at consolidated level, grew by 46.2%. Like domestic business, in international business too, the
growth was driven by Gynaecology segment, which in turn was mainly contributed by Anti-D and Hormone Range. Growth
was contributed mainly by focus on trade business with better marketing efforts coupled with increased field force.

Going ahead, your company is looking at improving and sustaining profitability by focusing on a higher double-digit growth in
the domestic and exports business. On the domestic front, the drivers of revenue growth would be launch of new divisions
focused on new therapeutic segments, new product Launches and new product registrations in various institutions. On the
exports front, the revenue growth drivers would be new product registrations in various countries and focus on select export
markets for intensive promotion of products. In the year we received 60 new registrations and, in the next year we expect to
receive another 50-55 registrations. Your company is poised to benefit from higher healthcare spend in developing markets,
particularly Asia and the Middle East, which would continue to be major contributor to the spending in life sciences in the times
tocome.

Your Company's subsidiary BSV Bioscience Philippines, Inc. revenue grew from INR 3,053 Lakhs in F Y 17-18 to INR 3,546
Lakhs in the current year mainly because of better penetration with the increased number of field force which was doubled in F
Y 16-17 and was further expanded in FY 17-18.

Your company's subsidiary BSV Bioscience, GmbH grew by 47%in INR terms backed with 114% growth in sale to third party
fromINR 3,583 LakhsinFY 18 toINR 7,665 Lakhs inthe current year.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Your company recorded total Revenue, at a consolidated level, of INR 88,482 Lakhs (PY INR 75,948 Lakhs) with an EBIDTA
(Earnings before depreciation, tax and amortization) of INR 18,711 Lakhs (P Y INR 14,357 Lakhs) registering a growth of
approx. 16.5% in revenue, 30.3% in EBIDTA.

On Standalone basis, total Revenue stood at INR 79,628 Lakhs (P Y INR 72,336 Lakhs) with an EBIDTA (Earnings before
depreciation, tax and amortization) of INR 17,298 Lakhs (P Y INR 13,571 Lakhs) registering a growth of approx. 10.1% in
revenue, 27.5%in EBIDTA.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company has proper and adequate internal controls commensurate with the size of its operations and which are designed
to assist in identification and management of risks. These controls ensure integrity of accounting, proper authorization,
accurate recording and reporting of all the transactions in accordance with the applicable accounting standards, compliance
with the organizational policies, practices and various governmental regulations and statutes. The internal control system also
monitors and acts as control against any unauthorized use or disposition of assets, thus safeguarding the company's
properties & ensures proper segregation of duties.
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With a view to further strengthen these controls and to ensure their continued effectiveness, various areas are identified by the
management for audit. During the year under review, the company appointed an Independent internal Auditor to conduct audit
in the areas of CFA Operations, Payroll processing, Sales force incentive, Logistics & Factory Material Movement. Based on its
recommendations the internal controls were strengthened further.

For and on behalf ofthe Board

Sd/-

Bharat Daftary

Chairman and Managing Director
Place: Mumbai
Date: July 30, 2019
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To BOARD'S REPORT AS ON MARCH 31, 2019

The Members,
Bharat Serums & Vaccines Limited.

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 46" Board Report of the Company together with Audited Financial Statements
forthe year ended March 31, 2019.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE.
The financial performance of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2019 is summarized below:
1. Financial summary or highlights / Performance of the Company: (Standalone)

On Standalone basis, total income of the Company was INR. 79,628 lakhs (INR. 72,336 lakhs) and after deducting total
expenses of INR. 62,330 lakhs (INR. 58,765 lakhs), the operating profit before finance costs, depreciation and tax for the
period was INR. 17,298 lakhs (INR. 13,571 lakhs) and the profit before tax was INR. 14,124 |lakhs (INR. 9,577 lakhs). The
operations during the period resulted in Total comprehensive income {net profit (after tax) including other comprehensive
income} of INR. 9,725 lakhs (INR. 7,401 lakhs).

2. Financial summary or highlights/Performance of the Company: (Consolidated)

On Consolidated basis, total income of the Company was INR. 88,482 lakhs (INR. 75,948 lakhs) and after deducting total
expenses of INR. 69,771 lakhs (INR. 61,590 lakhs), the operating profit before finance costs, depreciation and tax for the
period was INR. 18,711 lakhs (INR. 14,358 lakhs) and the profit before tax was INR 15,063 lakhs (INR. 9,953 lakhs). The
operations during the period resulted in Total Comprehensive Income {net profit (after tax) including other comprehensive
income} of INR. 10,811 lakhs (INR. 8,221 lakhs).

DIVIDEND.
a. Equity Shares:

The Board recommend payment of Equity Dividend @ of 25% per equity share of INR 5/- each for the financial year ended
March 31,2019 on 1,88,39,234 Equity Shares, amounting to INR 2,35,49,042.50 (Rupees Two Crores Thirty-Five Lakhs
Forty-Nine Thousand Forty-Two and Paise Fifty only) and such dividend payout is subject to the approval of members at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

b. Preference Shares:

In accordance with the terms of Preference shares the Board recommends a Preference dividend for the financial year
ended March 31, 2019 at the rate of:-

a. 0.01% per Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares Series | (CCPS-I) and additional participatory
dividend @ 25% on each CCPS-| on pro-rata basis to be paid on 7,14,119 CCPS -1 of INR. 5/- each, amounting to
INR.8,93,005.81 (including Coupon rate);

b. 0.01% per Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares Series || (CCPS-Il) and additional participatory
dividend @ 25% on each CCPS-II on pro-rata basis to be paid on 10 CCPS - Il of INR. 5/- each, amounting to
INR.12.51 (including Couponrrate);

¢. 0.01% per Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares Series Ill (CCPS-lll) and additional participatory
dividend @ 25% on each CCPS-IIl on pro-rata basis to be paid on 9,19,243 CCPS - Il of INR. 5/- each, amounting to
INR.11,49,513.37 (including Coupon rate);
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d. 0.01% per Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares Series IV (CCPS-IV) and additional participatory
dividend @ 25% on each CCPS-IV on pro-rata basis to be paid on 3,69,135 CCPS - IV of INR. 5/- each, amounting to
INR.4,61,603.32 (including Couponrate);

e. 0.01% per Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (NCNCRPS) on each NCNCRPS on pro-
rata basis to be paid on 1,97,69,917 NCNCRPS of INR. 5/- each, amounting to INR. 9,884.96 (Coupon rate);

The dividend is subject to the approval of members at their ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books shall remain close on August 26, 2019 for payment of Dividend for the
financial year ended March 31, 2019 and the Annual General Meeting. The dividend will be paid to members whose names
appear in the Register of Members as on book closure date i.e. August 26, 2019 and in respect of shares held in dematerialized
form, it will be paid to members whose names are furnished by Depository Participant, as beneficial owners as on that date.
Dividend payout for the year under review has been formulated in accordance with the Company's policy to pay sustainable
dividend linked tolongterm growth objectives of the Company to be met by internal cash accumulate.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES.

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, it is not mandatory to transfer any sum to General Reserve of the Company
before deceleration of any dividend in any Financial year. However, your Directors propose to transfer INR. 500 lakhs to the
General Reserve out of the Net Profit of INR. 9,725 lakhs.

SHARE CAPITAL.

The paid-up share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2019 was INR. 20,30,58,290/- consisting of:-

a. 1,88,39,134 Equity Shares of INR.5/-each;

b. 100 Differential Voting Rights Equity Shares (DVRS) of INR. 5/- each;

c. 7,14,119,0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares Series | (CCPS-I) of INR. 5/- each;

d. 10,0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares Series Il (CCPS-II) of INR. 5/- each;

e. 9,19,243,0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares Series lll (CCPS-IIl) of INR. 5/- each;

f.  3,69,135,0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares Series IV (CCPS-IV) of INR. 5/- each;

g. 1,97,69,917,0.01%Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares (NCNCRPS) of INR. 5/- each.
AMALGAMATION / MERGER.

The National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Mumbai bench vide its Order dated September 4, 2018 has approved the
Scheme of Amalgamation of Kasiak Research Private Lid (“Kasiak”) with the Company. As per the terms of the Scheme of
Amalgamation, after cancellation of 22,298 Equity Shares of Kasiak, 1,04,221 Equity Shares of INR. 5 each and 1,97,69,917
Non-Convertible Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (NCNCRPS) of INR. 5/- each of the Company were allotted

tothe shareholders of Kasiak for each share of INR.10 each (Number of Equity Shares 16,553) held by them in the share capital
of Kasiak.
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SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURE & ASSOCIATE COMPANY.

Your Company has Four wholly owned subsidiaries, namely:-

(i) BSVBiosciences, Inc., which isformed in the State of California, United States of America;
(i) BSVBioscience GmbH., which is formed in Germany;

(i) BSV Bioscience Philippines Inc., which is formed in Philippines; and

(iv) Eurolife Regen Private Limited.

Other than as stated above, no other Subsidiary Companies were formed or divested during the year under review. In
compliance with Section 129 of the Act, a statement containing requisite details including financial highlights of the operations
ofthe aforesaid Subsidiary / Joint Venture / Associate Company is annexed in ANNEXURE - Il to this report.

Financials are in accordance with Accounting Standard AS 21 — Consolidated Financial Statements read with Accounting
Standard AS 23 - Accounting for Investments in Associates, and Accounting Standard 27 — Financial Reporting of Interests in
JointVentures, the audited Consolidated Financial Statements are provided in the Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.

Your Company has been constantly reassessing and benchmarking itself with well-established Corporate Governance
practices besides strictly complying with applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013. A detailed report on Corporate
Governance & Management's Discussion and Analysis for the year under review, is presented in separate sections forming
part of this Annual Report.

Pursuant to the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 your Board has adopted policies such as Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy, Risk Management Policy and Whistle Blower and Vigil Mechanism Policy. These policies are available on
the website of the Company and can be viewed on www.bharatserums.com.

The Audit Committee of the Board has been vested with the powers and functions relating to Risk Management which inter alia
includes (a) review of risk management policies and business processes 1o ensure that the business processes adopted and
transactions entered into by the Company are designed to identify and mitigate potential risk; (b) laying down procedures
relating to risk assessment and minimization; and (c) formulation, implementationand monitoring of the risk management
plan.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY.

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Board of Directors of your Company has, pursuant to provisions
ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder has approved a CSR Policy. Your Company shall also undertake the other
CSR activities Listed in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of CSR activities undertaken during the period, by
the Company is annexed to this report as per ANNEXURE - IV.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL.

Your Board comprises of Eleven Directors, which consists of two Managing Directors and One Whole-time Director who are
Executive Directors, and Eight Non-Executive Directors out of which two are Nominee Directors and Six are Independent
Directors. All Directors including Independent Directors provide their declarations both at the time of appointment and
annually. Independent Directors also confirms that they meet the criteria of Independence as prescribed under Companies
Act, 2013.
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evaluating and managing all significant risks faced by the Company and the Board of Directors are continuously ensuring
efficient risk management and monitoring potential risks faced by the Company, internally as well as externally.

DISCLOSURES.
1. Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments under section 186:

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments made by the Company required under Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act,
2013 are contained in Note No.8&9to the Standalone Financial Statements.

2. Transactions with Related Parties.

None of the transactions with related parties fall under the scope of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Information on
material transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in form AOC-2is annexed to this report as per ANNEXURE - llI.

3. Deposits.

Your Company has not accepted any public deposits and as such no amount on account of principal or interest on public
deposits under Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, was
outstanding as on the date of the Balance Sheet.

4, Extract of Annual Return.

The extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 as required under Section 92(3) of the Act read with Companies (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014 is annexed to this reportas ANNEXURE - V. The Annual Return isalso available on the website of
the Company and can be viewed on www.bharatserums.com.

5. Obligation of Company under,The Sexual Harassment Of Women At Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition And
Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on prevention, prohibition and
redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of The Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. During the year Company, has not received any
Compilaints of such harassment which required attention and to be dealt with, as per the procedure laid down in the Actand in
line with Company policies.

6. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred
between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report:

During the period under review no significant and material commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have
occurred between the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

7. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Company's operations in future.

During the period under review no significant and material orders have been passed by any regulators or courts or tribunals
against the Company impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in future.
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8. Maintenance of Cost Records:

During the period under review cost records were made and maintained as specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO.

The information relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo as
required under Section 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed to
this report as ANNEXURE-I.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT.

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act), in relation to the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial
Year 2018-2019, your Directors confirm that:

a. The Financial Statements of the Company - comprising of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019 and the Statement of
Profit & Loss for the year ended on that date, have been prepared on a going concern basis following applicable
accounting standards and that no material departures have been made from the same;

b. Accounting policies selected were applied consistently and the judgments and estimates related to the financial
statements have been made on a prudent and reasonable basis, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company as atMarch 31, 2019, and, ofthe profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

c. Proper and sufficient care has been taken for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act, to safeguard the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

d. Requisite internal financial controls were laid down and that such financial controls are adequate and operating
effectively; and

e. Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and such systems are
adequate and operating effectively.

COMPLIANCE IN RESPECT OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS.

Your Directors confirm that the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India have been duly
complied with.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS.

No fraud by the company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the
year.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES.
Requisite disclosures in terms of the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 along with statement showing names and other particulars of the

employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits prescribed under the said rules is annexed to this report as
ANNEXURE - VI.

13
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HUMAN RESOURCES:

The Directors express their appreciation for the contribution made by the employees during the year. The Human Resources
have always been the Company's valuable asset and the Company's thrust area is to attract, develop and retain talent. The
Company continues to operate the open culture and has maintained congenial work atmosphere and healthy industrial
relations.

The total headcount of the Company as on March 31,2019 was 1739.
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT.

Statements in this Report and annexures to this Report which describes the Company's objectives, projects, estimates,
expectations may contain “forward looking statements” within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. The success in
realizing these depends on various internal and external factors. The actual results may be different from what the Directors /
Management envisage in terms of future performance and outlook.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT.

Your Board takes this opportunity to place on record their appreciation for the dedication and commitment of employees
shown at all levels that have contributed to the success of your Company. Your Directors also express their gratitude for the
valuable support and co-operation received from the Central and State Governments including Ministry of Chemicals and
Fertilizers, Ministry of Health and Family Welfare, Ministry of Human Resource Development and other stakeholders including
Bankers, Financial Institutions, Investors, Service Providers as well as regulatory and government authorities.

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-

Bharat Daftary

Chairman & Managing Director
Place: Mumbai
Date: July 30,2019
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ANNEXURE II
FORM AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/
Joint Ventures as per Companies Act, 2013 for the year ended March 31, 2019.

PART “A": SUBSIDIARIES
{(Information in respect of each subsidiary is to be presented with amounts in Rupees in Lakhs)

Nameof | Reporting | Share Reserves Total Total Investments Profit | Profit Proposed | Mode & % of
Subsidiary | Currency | Capital & Assets | Liabilities (other than | Turnover | before | After dividend | shareholding
Surplus subsidiary) taxation | taxation
i
Biosciences $ (380.02) | 127.36 65.55 NIL 534.47 47.77 4.21 NIL 100%
Us$1
Inc., USA
each
Biol:fi::nce Capital
€ Stock€ | 192257 | 6954.01 | 417117 NIL 1313769 | 91204 | 815.11 NIL 100%
GmbH,
Ge 1,025,000
rmany
 BSV 10,000,000
Biosciences shares of
Philippines 4 B Peso 1 (324.59) | 134299 | 1525.71 NIL 354553 | (425.35) | (373.77) NA. 100%
Inc, ezlo1
Philippines ea
Eurolife é%i’é’?)g
Regen Private INR INR. 10 (263.26) 0 163.26 NIL NIL (0.55) (0.55) NIL 100%
Limited :
each
Notes:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations- N.A.
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. N.A.
Part “B”: ASSOCIATES & JOINT VENTURES
Shares of Associates/ Joint Profit/ Loss for the year
Venture held by the Company
on the year end March 31, 2019
Name of Latest | Numbers [ Amount of | Extent Networth Considered Not Description of Reason why
Associates/ | audited Investment of attributable in considered in how there is associate/
Joint balance in Holding to Consolidation | Consolidation significance joint venture
Ventures sheet Associates/ % Shareholding influence is not
date Joint as per latest consolidated
Ventures audited
Balance
Sheet
N.A

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 30, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-

Bharat Daftary
Chairman & Managing Director
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ANNEXURE IV

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
(Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014)

As part of its initiatives under Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) and your Company's vision to drive 'holistic empowerment' of
the community around the local vicinity of our plant and the society at large, your Company has undertaken the following projects
/CSR activities through various social welfare organization which includes Trusts & NGO's, in accordance with CSR policy of the
Company, read with Schedule VIl ofthe Companies Act, 2013 or any amendment thereof.

A brief outline of the Company's Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed
to be undertaken and areference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs is as follows: -
hitps://www.bharatserums.com/policy/CSR_Policy.pdf

The Composition of the CSR Committee is as follows: -

Mr. Ajeet Singh Karan— Chairman and Independent Director.

Mr. Bharat V. Daftary - Member.

Dr. Gautam V. Daftary— Member.

Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years is:- INR. 7059.09 Lakhs.

Prescribed CSR Expenditure for the financial year 2018-19 is:- INR. 141.18 Lakhs.

Details of CSR spent during the financial year is:-INR. 41.43 Lakhs were spent during the FY 2018-19 in addition to INR. 206.10
Lakhs already spend from the accumulated amount.

Amount unspent, if any: INR. 99.75 Lakhs.
Reason for not spending the amount: -

The Company is in the process of identifying the suitable projects in the area of Education, Research/ Study and Healthcare in rural
areas for the CSR purpose and planning to spend the amount in the coming months. However, the Company has already spent the
entire balance amount INR 99.75 Lakhs till signing of this Board Report.

Responsibility Statement: -

Pursuant to the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, it is confirmed that the CSR Committee has
implemented and monitored CSR Policy which is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

Details of the CSR activities of the Company for the Financial Year 2018-19:
(Amount in INR.)

Location of Projects or Amount Outle Amount Spent| Cumulative Amount Spent:
St No CSR Project or Sector in Which the | Programs undertaken (Budget) Proie‘tl:l onPProjects or|Expenditure up|  Direct or through
] o . L — rograms i i
Activity Identified Project is Covered | | ggal Area| District |or Program wise Di!:ecl to the errtia:::;rtlnsl Implementing
or Other | (State) Expenses p Agency
1 [Promoting preventive |Promoting preventive Navi Maharashtra 9,00,000 9,00,000 9,00,000 [Through - Children
health care health care Mumbai Of The World (India) Trust
9 [Rural Development  [Rural Development | pjokhada |Maharashtra|  18,50,480 18,50,480 | 18,50,480 [Through - Chirag Rular
Development Foundation
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. . ' Location of Projects or Amount Outlay Am;un_t Stpenl cumu_lalive l.\mount Spent:
st.No Agt?\ztypli:f:t'lf?;d specl_or in Which the | Programs undertaken (Budget) Project onPr;;l;cmss or|Expenditure up Direct or !Ilrt_lugh
roject is Covered || ocal Area| District |or Program Wise—pirgst ] to the reportingl  Implementing
or Other | (State) Expenses period Agency
3 | Promoting preventive| Promoting preventive|
health care health care Palghar |Maharashtra| 10,00,000 10,00,000 | 10,00,000 [Through-Dr.M.L.
Dhawale Memorial Trust
4 | Infrastructure Promoting preventive| \mha; (Maharashtra| 11,25000 | 11,25000 | 11,25,000 [AtKamidhamVrudhshram,
Development health care
at old age homes Ambernath
5 | Infrastructure Promotion of Vardha |Maharashtra] 25,00,000 25,00,000 | 25,00,000 (Through - Mahatma
development at Education Gandhi Institute
Education set up of Science and Technology,
Vardha, Akola
6 | Infrastructure Promotion of Jalna [Maharashtral 15,00,000 15,00,000 | 15,00,000 [Through - Matsyodari
development Education ShikshanSanstha
at Education set up
7 | Hunger Eradication Promoting preventive | Kalyan |Maharashtra] 12,75,000 12,75,000 | 12,75,000 |[Through - Prem Seva
health care Mahila Mandal
8 | Skill Development Skill Development Mumbai |Maharashtral 57,90,000 57,90,000 | 57,90,000 |Through - Rotary Culb of
Projects Projects Charities
9 | Promoting preventive | Promoting preventive | Sangroli, [Maharashtral  2,50,000 2,50,000 2,50,000 [Through — Sanskruti
health care health care Nanded Samrvardhan Mandal
10 | Promoting preventive | Promoting preventive | Sangmner|Maharashtral 20,00,000 20,00,000 | 20,00,000 |[Through - Sau. Mathurabai
health care health care BhausahebSevabhavi Trust
11 | Promoting preventive | Promoting preventive | Sangmner|Maharashtral 51,00,000 13,61,429 | 13,61,429 |[Through - Shreemad
health care health care Rajchandra Love and Care
Trust
12 | Promoting preventive | Promoting preventive Araku valley Andhra 14,55,000 14,55,000 | 14,55,000 |[Through - Think Peace
health care health care Pradesh Organisation
13 | Setting up old age Setting up old age Goa Goa 30,00,000 30,00,000 | 30,00,000 [The Society of the
homes homes Franciscan - Home for
Senior Citizen at Goa
14 | Promoting preventive | Promoting preventive | Mumbai | Mumbai 1,50,000 1,50,000 1,50,000 [Through - Shri Walkeshwar]
health care health care Sthanakvasi Jain & Tata
Memorial Centre
15 | Promoting preventive | Promoting preventive | Mumbai | Mumbai 1,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,000 |Through - United Way of
health care health care Mumbai
16 | Administrative Cost CSR Consultant Mumbai | Mumbai 4,96,667 4,96,667 4,96,667 |CSR Consultant
for monitoring all
funded Projects
Total CSR Spent 2,84,92,147 | 2,47,53,576| 2,47,53,576

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 30, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board

Sd/-
Bharat Daftary
Chairman & Managing Director
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Bharat Serums & Vaccines Limited

Form No. MR -3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2019
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members,

Bharat Serums & Vaccines Limited,

17" Floor, Hoechst House,

Nariman Point, Mumbai 400021.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by Bharat Serums & Vaccines Limited (hereinafter called 'the Company’). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended on 31* March 2019 (hereinafter called 'audit period"), generally complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subjectto the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company
forthe financial year ended on 31* March, 2019 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter called 'the Act') and the rules made thereunder;
ii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
iii. The Foreign Exchange Management Act 1999

The following Regulations and Guidelines are prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI
Act): -

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014.

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

f.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

i  SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015.
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Form No. MR -3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT (CONTINUED)

We report that, being an Unlisted Company during audit period, all of the above Regulations / Guidelines from a. to i. as
listed above were not applicable to the Company.

As per information provided to us following regulation specifically applies to the type of activities undertaken by the
Company.

- Drugs (Price control) Order 2013.
- The Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Act, 1960

We have also examined compliance with the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
as applicable to the Company.

During the period under review, generally there was delayed filing of e-forms with payment of additional fees. During the
audit period, the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines,
standards etc. except as to the Provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility pursuant to Section 135 of the Act in respect of
spending the requisite amount of CSR.

We further reportthat: -

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice of at least seven days was given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings wherever required
consents of the Directors were obtained for holding the Board Meetings with shorter notice. Agenda and detailed notes on
agenda are sent generally seven days in advance or shorter period as the case may be, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of the
minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company which commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit period, consent of the members was accorded by way of Special Resolution as
under: -

i. Provision of Section 230 and 232 of Companies Act 2013 in respect of approval of scheme of amalgamation of Kasiak
Research Private Limited with the Company.

ii. Provision of Section 13 of Companies Act 2013 in respect of increase in authorized share capital of Company from
Rs.12,05,00,000/-to Rs. 21,95,00,000/-.

For JHR & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Sohan J. Ranade
Place: Thane (Partner)
Date: July 25, 2019 ACS: 33416, CP: 12520
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT (Continued)

The Members,

Bharat Serums & Vaccines Limited,

17" Floor, Hoechst House,

Nariman Point, Mumbai 400021.

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Management's Responsibility:

1) Itis the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate
effectively.

Auditor's Responsibility.

2) Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, systems, standards and procedures based on our audit.

3) Wherever required, we have obtained the management's representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events etc.

Disclaimer:

4) The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For JHR & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Sohan J. Ranade
Place: Thane (Partner)
Date: July 25, 2019 ACS: 33416, CP: 12520
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY:

The Company's vision is to be innovative, caring and trustworthy partner in bringing life to life and the philosophy on Corporate
Governance is to conduct its business in an efficient, responsible, honest, transparent and ethical manner. The Company's
vision becomes the guiding principles in all face of operations which helps the Company to achieve/exceed its objectives.
Corporate Governance goes beyond compliance and it involves Company wide commitment. This commitment starts with
Board of Directors, which executes its corporate governance responsibilities by focusing on the Company's strategic and
operational excellence in the best interest of all our stakeholders.

The Company believes that sound corporate practices based on transparency, accountability and high level of integrity, in the
functioning of the Company, is essential for the long term enhancement of the shareholders/stakeholders value and interest. It
encompasses achieving the balance between shareholders' interest and corporate goals through the efficient conduct of its
business and meeting its stakeholder obligations. Corporate Governance is about commitment to values and about the
ethical business conduct.

Our endeavour is to adopt the best governance and disclosure practice by giving the timely and accurate disclosure of
information regarding the financial situation, performance, ownership and governance of the Company by following the
statutory provisions including the Secretarial Standards. We believe that the good Corporate Governance practices, is a key
driver of sustainable corporate growth and long-term value creation for the shareholders/stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

a) Composition and Category of Directors:

The total strength of your Board presently is Eleven Directors, which consists of two Managing Directors and One Whole-time
Director who is an Executive Director, Eight Non-Executive Directors out of which two are Nominee Directors and Six are
Independent Directors. Mr. Bharat V. Daftary is a Chairman and Managing Director, Dr. Gautam V. Daftary is a Vice Chairman
and Managing Director, Mr. Siddharth Daftary are the Executive Directors of the Company. Mr. Bharat V. Daftary, Dr. Gautam V.
Daftary, Mr. Siddharth Daftary conduct day-to-day business of the Company, subject to the supervision and control of the
Board of Directors. The Independent Directors on the Board are professional and technocrats, who are senior, competent and
highly respectable persons from their respective fields of medical research, finance and law. All the Directors have an in-depth
knowledge ofthe industry.

The brief profile of the Directors of the Company is as under:-

i Mr. Bharat V. Daftary, Chairman and Managing Director of the Company, has been involved with the business affairs of
the Company since over three decades. He plays an important role in the marketing function and in development of
global relationships. He spearheads the strategic planning of the Company. He is related to Dr. Gautam Daftary, Vice
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company and Mr. Siddharth B. Daftary, Whole-time Director of the Company.

ii. Dr. Gautam Daftary, a medical Doctor, is the Vice Chairman and Managing Directorof the Company and is primarily
responsible for R&D activities and technical matters. His knowledge and expertise in the fields of microbiology,
oncology, allergies and psychiatrics has led him to being instrumental in providing the necessary thrust in the R&D
activities of the Company since over three decades. He is related to Mr. Bharat Daftary, Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company and Mr. Siddharth B. Daftary, Whole-time Director of the Company.

iii. Mr. Siddharth B. Daftary has graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree in Life Sciences from the University of
Mumbai and holds Master of Science degree in Molecular & Genetic Medicine from the University of Sheffield, England.
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Mr. Siddharth Daftary is Whole-time Director in a Company and is presently looking after the business development
activities in the Company. He is also actively involved in the business development, sales and operational activities of
Advy Chemicals Private Limited, a diagnostic sister concern of the Company. He is related to Mr. Bharat Datftary,
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company and Dr. Gautam Daftary, Vice Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company.

iv. Mr. Nitin Deshmukh is CEO —Private Equity at Kotak Investment Advisors Ltd. the Alternate Assets business of Kotak

Vi

Vi,

group which has USD $ 1.4 bn. funds currently under his management. With over 24 years of experience in Private
Equity investing, he has lead and managed investments in over 80 companies, a significant number of which have
grown at a scorching pace attaining leadership position in their respective sectors. Prior to taking up the current
assignment at Kotak in June 2004 he was Director, Private Equity at Dresdner Kleinwort Capital. Prior to joining
Dresdner, Mr. Deshmukh had a long stint of over 12.5 years with ICICI Venture, since its inception in 1989 to being its
Chief of Private Equity Investments heading its funding and investment management activities of various Funds, till the
early part of this decade.

Mr. Deshmukh has strong association with the Life Sciences Industry in the country, having served as the Director
General of Association of Biotechnology Led Enterprises (ABLE), the industry association of biotech Companies in
India and having worked with CIPLA, India's leading pharmaceutical Company in various technical and management
positions. Mr. Deshmukh holds an MBA degree from University of Mumbai. Earlier, he earned his master's degree in
Pharmaceutical Technology from UDCT, Mumbai where his research work led to a patent filing on machine design for
manufacture of NDDS. He also completed the Post-Graduation Programme in Pharmaceutical Technology at the
University of Ghent, Belgium.

Dr. Sunny Sharma is a Senior Managing Director on the Asia team of OrbiMed Advisors. Dr. Sharma has more than a
dozen years of life sciences experience spanning venture capital, investment banking, and clinical practice. Dr. Sharma
was previously with Investor Growth Capital (IGC), the wholly owned global venture capital arm of Investor AB, and
before that with Easton Capital, a venture capital fund in New York. While at IGC and Easton Capital, Dr. Sharma led or
played a senior role on over adozen life sciences investments. Earlier in his career, Dr. Sharma was with Lehman Brother
she althcare investment banking group in London, and before that he practiced medicine in northern India. Dr. Sharma
holds an M.B.A. from Indian Institute of Management, Bangalore and a medical degree (M.B.B.S.) from Christian
Medical College, Ludhiana where he was awarded the Vipin Khanna Memorial Gold Medal for graduating as the best
intern.

Mr. Ajeet Singh Karan has more than 24 years of experience in building businesses across several industries in India.
Prior to joining Barings Private Equity Partners India, he was the CEO of KAPL (now SC Johnson India) — the world's
largest liquid mosquito repellent Company with the flagship brand “All Out”. He was instrumental in growing the
revenues and profits of the company more than six fold during his tenure. He played a key role in the operation of KAPL's
Joint Venture with S.C.Johnson and thereafter successful integration of the Baygon business into KAPL.

Before joining KAPL, Mr. Ajeet was part of scripting the success of several multinationals including Hindustan Lever
(part of Unilever group), Pepsico India and Coca-Cola, India. He has played a variety of roles from being involved in
running profit centres for these companies to setting up manufacturing operations for these companies in India
resulting in substantial increase in market share for these businesses in the region.

Mr. Ajeet is an MBA from the Indian Institute of Management, Ahmedabad with specialization in marketing.

Mr. Suketu V Shah is presently a Joint Managing Director of Mukund Ltd. Mr. Shah did his graduation from Mumbai and
his MBA from Harvard Business School in 1980. He has worked with Bajaj Auto, Pune and with International Finance
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Corporation, Washington D.C. and American Express Bank in New York before returning to India to join Mukund Ltd. Mr
Shah is a past Chairman of the Young Presidents Organization, Bombay Chapter and was on the executive committee of
the Harvard Business School Association of India. He has been the Chairman of Western Regional Council of
Confederation of Indian Industry (ClI) the apex industry association in India and is now on the National Council of Cll. He
is Chairman of the Alloy Steel Producers Association of India. Mr. Shah is also on the Board of UTV Software
Communications Ltd., in which the Walt Disney Company has a significant stake.

Mr. Manu P. Daftary is currently President and Chief Investment Officer of DG Capital Management, an investment
management company based in Boston, USA. He began his investment management career at the University of
Southern California in 1985 where he was Assistant Treasurer — Investments. In 1988, he joined Geewax, Terker&
Company as a Portfolio Manager and was co-manager of the firm's institutional accounts. In addition, he also was
Manager of equity short selling for the firm's hedge fund assets and also designed the option overlay program that was
utilized in the firm's institutional accounts. In 1993, he joined Hellman, Jordan Investment Management Company as a
Senior Vice-President/Portfolio Manager with lead responsibility for $500 million in institutional assets and was also
involved in the management of $150 million in hedge fund assets. Mr. Daftary has a BA in economics from the University
of Mumbai, India, a BS and MBA from California State University at Long Beach and is a Chartered Financial Analyst.

Ms. Nafeesa Moloobhoy is the Managing Director of a 111-year-old family run company - A.S. Moloobhoy Pvt Ltd. And
A.S. Moloobhoy & Sons Pvt. Ltd. She is involved in the sale, supply and service of life saving, firefighting and electronics
equipment and also forayed into the area of training in the marine field. Ms. Moloobhoy also represents her company on
many Marine forums both in India and abroad. She is a member of CIRM (a prestigious International body that makes
recommendations to IMO on new policy matters.) Currently she also holds Directorship in total eight Companies.

Mr. Shahzaad Dalal a Management Graduate from the USA was the former Chairman & Chief Executive Officer of IL&FS

Investment Advisors LLC which is a fully owned subsidiary of IL&FS Investment Managers Ltd (IIML), one of India's
leading Private Equity Fund Managers with US$ 3.2 billion under management. The private equity funds managed by
IIML has a wide canvas across sectors in infrastructure such as telecom, transport, power and oil and gas as well as
emerging areas in real estate, technology, retail, life sciences and consumer services. He leads a highly competent
team of 40 professionals involved in managing over 95 investments. Mr. Dalal is also on the Boards of various
Companies to guide their growth plans and other strategic developments. Overall, Mr. Dalal assumes greater
responsibility towards the crafting of exits through a range of diverse methods, including IPO's and strategic sales. Mr.
Dalal was also responsible for developing the Infrastructure Business of IL&FS Group in key international markets in
sectors such as Roads, Power, Renewable Energy, Ports, Logistics, Education and Waste Management. Prior to joining
IIML, Mr. Dalal served as the Chief Executive Officer of the Asset Management Business of IL&FS. Within the IL&FS
Group he has undertaken various responsibilities including overall planning and raising of resources for IL&FS, its
group companies and other IL&FS sponsored infrastructure projects. Mr Dalal has also headed the initiative for large
value structured finance/transactions in leasing, project finance and privatizations.

Mr. Suresh Lal Goklaney's career spans five decades, starting in the late 60's with brief stints at leading advertising
agencies, before moving to Proctor & Gamble, Johnson & Johnson, followed by a 3-decades tenure with Eureka Forbes
Limited (EFL). Mr. Goklaney grew EFL from a single-product, single-channel, INR. 200 million Company in 1987, to a
multi-product, multi-channel, multi-national, INR. 30,400 million Company in 2017, encompassing water purification,
vacuum cleaning, air purification and home security solutions, with a customer base of 20 million, a reach of over 1,500
cities and towns in India and a global footprint across 53 countries. A Business Superbrand, the Company is a case
study at Harvard Business School and has been recognized as one of Asia's & India's best Employers and Knowledge
Management organizations.
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BOARD COMMITTEES:

The Board of the Company has constituted the various Committees to focus on specific areas and to make informed decisions
within their authority. Each Committee is directed by its Charter which outlines their scope, roles and responsibilities and their
powers. All the decisions and recommendations of the Committee are placed before the Board for their approval.

The various Board level Committees are as under:-

. Audit Committee;
II. Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
lll. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

) AUDIT COMMITTEE:

a) Constitution and Responsibility:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is as per section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 and includes such functions as
may be assigned to it by Board from time to time. The Audit Committee has been entrusted with all the required authority and
powers to play an effective role as envisaged under Companies Act. The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to:

Supervise the financial reporting process.

Review financial results before placing them before the Board.

Review the adequacy of internal control systems in the Company, including the scope and performance of the internal

audit function.

Hold discussions with Statutory Auditors on nature and scope of audit.

Ensure compliance with Accounting Standards

Recommend the appointment and removal of Internal and External Auditors and determine their fees.

Review related party transactions.

Ensure that adequate safeguards have been taken for legal compliance by the Company.

Review the Company's financial and risk management policies.

b) Composition:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has constituted the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors.

The following Directors are the Members of the Audit Committee: -

Mr. Nitin Deshmukh —Non-Executive Director (Nominee);
Dr. Sunny Sharma — Non-Executive Director (Nominee);
Mr. Ajeet Singh Karan — Independent Director;

Mr. Suketu Shah - Independent Director;

Mr. Manu Daftary - Independent Director.

oD~
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SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION:

Day, Date and Time of AGM : Friday, August30, 2019 at 3:00 p.m.

Venue: 17" floor, Hoechst House, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021.
Financial Year: April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019

Record Date: August26, 2019

Registered office: 17" floor, Hoechst House, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021
Compliance officer: Company Secretary

E-mail Address:charudatta.samant@bharatserums.com

Website address: www.bharatserums.com

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Mumbai

Date: July 30, 2019 Sd/-
Bharat Daftary

Chairman & Managing Director
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members of
Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31*March 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income),the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Actread with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevantto our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Otherthan the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

* The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Board's report in the Annual Report for the year ended 31* March 2019, but does not include the standalone
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

*  Ouropinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

° Inconnection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

* If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to reportthat fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation
of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind ASand other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
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misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detecta
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management.

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ji) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial
statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were

b)

c)

d)

€)

9)

h)

necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash
Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

Inour opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133
ofthe Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31*March 2019 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31*March 2019 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) ofthe Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of section
197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid/provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations givento us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements - Refer Note 32 to the standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
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material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
interms of Section 143(11) ofthe Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 ofthe Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

Manoj H. Dama
Partner
(Membership No.107723)

UDIN: 19107723AAAACK703

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 July 2019
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[Referred to in paragraph 1(f)Junder 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section
of our report of even date to the Members of Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31"March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
underthe Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or thatthe
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31"March 2019, based on the criteria for internal financial control over
financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

Manoj H. Dama
Partner
(Membership No.107723)

UDIN: 19107723AAAACK703

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 July 2019
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(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section
of our report of even date to the Members of Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situationoffixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets to cover all the items in a phased manner over a
period of three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the Management
during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

© According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based on the
examination of the registered sale deed/ transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title
deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of
the Company as atthe balance sheet date, except the following:

Particulars of the land Gross Block Net Block

as at as at Remarks

31% March 2019 31% March 2019

Freehold land located at The title deeds are in
Badlapur admeasuring Rs. 89.26 lakhs Rs. 89.26lakhs the name of Bharat

38.87 acres. Daftary and Gautam

Daftary, Directors,
on behalf of the
Company.

Freehold land Rs. 29.69 lakhs Rs. 29.69 lakhs The title deeds are in
located at Khoni the name of Bharat
admeasuring 4.48 acres. Daftary and Gautam

Daftary, Directors,
on behalf of the
Company.

(ii)

(il

(iv)

)

(vi)

In respect of immovable properties of land that have been taken on lease and disclosed as fixed asset in the financial
statements, the lease agreements are in the name ofthe Company, where the Company is the lessee in the agreement.

As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals.
Material discrepancies noticed on physical verification during the year have been properly dealt with in the books of
account.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans or
provided any guarantees or securities to the parties covered under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the
year;the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 186 of the saidAct in respect of grant ofloans,making
investments and providingguarantees and securities covered under the said section, as applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any depositsin terms of the
provisions of Sections 73 to 76or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 hence reporting under
clause 3(v) ofthe Orderis not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies
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(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)
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managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule Vto the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in compliance with Section
177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by Ind AS.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of its subsidiary company or persons connected
with them and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. The Company does not
have any holding or associate company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Manoj H. Dama

Partner
{(Membership No. 107723)

UDIN: 19107723AAAACK703

Place: Mumbai
Date : 30 July 2019
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Statement of changes in equity(Continued) (or the year ended 31 March 2019)

(Gurrency : Indian rupees in Lakhs)

The Description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity:

Capital Reserve: Capital reserve majorly represents excess of purchase consideration paid to acquire net asset of Kasiak
Research Private Limited in the scheme of merger

Equity Component of compound financial instrument: The component parts of compound financial instruments issued by
the Company are classified as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and equity instruments. Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value net of
directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective intreset method.

Capital Redemption Reserve: Capital redemption reserve represents reserve created through transfer from general reserve to
capital redemption reserve in compliance with buy back of shares.

Security Premium Reserves: Security premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

General Reserve: The Company has transferred a portion of the net profit of the Company before declaring dividend to general
reserve though mandatory transfer to general reserve is not required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the company has earned till date, less any transfers to general
reserve, dividends paid to shareholders.

In terms of our report attached
For and on behalf of the board of directors of

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN : U24230MH1971PLC015134
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Manoj H. Dama Bharat V Daftary Gautam V Daftary
Partner Chairman and Managing Director Managing Director
DIN : 00011518 DIN : 00009326
Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th July 2019 Sd/- Sd/-
Anil M Damle Charudatta S Samant
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No : A22337
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Notes to the Standalone IND AS Financial Statements (for the year ended 31 March 2019)

1)

2)
a)

b)

General information

Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (the Company) is a public limited Company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in the business of research,
development, manufacturing, marketing and sales of biological and pharmaceutical products in India and overseas
market.

Basis of preparation of standalone Ind AS Financial statements (“financial statements”)
Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2019 have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting standards (Ind AS') notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in consultation
with the National Advisory Committee on Accounting Standards, under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act)
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and the relevant
provisions ofthe Act.

The Financial statements are prepared in Indian rupees rounded off to the nearest lakhs except for share data and per
share data, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgmentin the process of applying the Company's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification.

An asset s classified as currentwhenit is:

i) Expected to be realised orintended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

Aliability is classified as current when:

i) it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

ii) itis held primarily for the purpose oftrading,

iii) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period,

iv) there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for atleast twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.
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Basis of measurement

c)

d)

3)

a)

These financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention unless otherwise indicated, except for asset
held for sale and Biological asset— measured at fair value less cost of sell.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company and the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment (“PPE”)

N

Recognition and Measurement

i) Items of Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses, if any. The cost of an item of Property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the
assets to its working condition for its intended use and any trade discount and rebates are deducted in
arriving at purchase price. Cost of the assets also includes interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition
of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the asset s ready for its intended use incurred up to that date.

ii)lf significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are

accounted for as separate items (major components) of Property, plant and equipment.

i) Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of

profitand loss.

iv) Cost of ltems of Property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use as on the balance sheet date, is

)

)

disclosed as capital work in progress. Advances given towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment
outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as Capital Advance under Other non current assets.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to fixed assets is capitalised only if such expenditure results in an increase
inthe future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Depreciation and Amortisation:

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of PPE over its useful life and is provided
on a straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribed under Schedule Il to the Act or as per technical
assessment. The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which is
assetis ready to use/ (disposed of). Freehold land is not depreciated.
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Tangible Assets Useful Life
Leasehold Land Amortized over the period of Lease
Buildings 5 years to 60 years

Plant and Machinery/ factory equipment/ 8 years to 20 years

Laboratory equipment

Computers and Accessories 3 years

Electrical Installations 10 years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 to 15 years

Vehicles 8 years

Office Equipment’s 5 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the useful life of assets or the lease term, whichever is lower.

Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives (not
being greater than the useful life envisaged in Schedule Il to the Act) unless it is reasonably certain that the Company
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, in which case the depreciation rates applicable for similar assets
owned by the Company are applied.

The useful lives are reviewed by the management at each financial year-end and revised, if appropriate. In case ofa
revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged overthe revised remaining useful life.

b)
)}

Iy

)

Intangible Assets:

Recognition and measurement
Research and Development
Expenditure on research activities is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Company
intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, development expenditure is
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Otherintangible assets

Other intangible assets, such as computer software and trademarks and patents, that are acquired by the
Company and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill
and brands, is recognised in profit orloss as incurred.

Amortisation

mortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognised in profit or loss. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for finite-life intangible assets is reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

The estimated useful lives for current and comparative periods are as follows:
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c)

d)

e)

Bharat Serums & Vaccines Limited

Assets Useful Life

Patents and technical know-how 10 Years

Computer software 05 Years
Operating leases

Assets taken/given on lease under which substantially all risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by
the lessor are classified as operating lease. Lease payments/receipts under operating leases are recognised as
expenses/income on straight line basis over the primary period of lease only if lease rentals are not linked to inflation in
accordance with the respective lease agreements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For
impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Cash generating units (“CGU”). The
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is
based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. Animpairmentloss is
recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

Government grants and subsidies

Grants related to depreciable assets are treated as deferred income which is recognised in the Statement of profitand
loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of the asset. Such allocation to income is usually made over
the periods and in the proportions in which depreciation on related assets is charged. Government Grants of revenue
nature is reduced from related expenses in the statement of Profit and Loss in the year of its receipt or when thereis a
reasonable assurance of its being received.

Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued in the year in which the goods are exported and there
is nouncertainty in receiving the same.

Financial instruments

Recognition initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions ofthe instrument.

Afinancial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and

loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition orissue.
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Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial Assets

Oninitial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

amortised cost;

FVOCI -debt investment;
FVOCI -equity investment; or
FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Afinancial assetis measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL.:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows;
and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI — equity investment).
This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI
as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include
whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interestincome, maintaining a particular interest
rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash
outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's management;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and how those risks are managed;
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* how managers of the business are compensated -e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

* the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets. Financial assets that are
held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.
Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. For the
purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. 'Interest'
is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers
the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual
term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows that it would not meet this condition. In making
this assessment, the Company considers:

* contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

* termsthat may adjustthe contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

* prepaymentand extension features; and

» termsthatlimitthe Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which
may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial
asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires
prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid)
contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
profit or loss.

Finarncial assets at amortised ~ These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

cost effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI ~ These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in OCL On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are

FVOCI recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit
or loss.
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Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL
if it is classified as held-for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses including any interest expense, are recognised
in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gains or loss on
derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers not
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet but retains either
all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or
expired.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flow under the modified
terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair
value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability
with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only
when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of an equity instrument. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities and includes no obligation to deliver cash or
other financial assets.

Borrowing cosis

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of those tangible fixed assets which necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised. Other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period in which they are incurred.
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Investments

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which
such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term
investments.

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly
attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

Investments in subsidiaries and joint venture are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an
indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its
recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries and joint venture, the difference between net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, stock-in-trade, stores and spares, and
loose tools are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Raw materials, stock-in-trade and stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However,
materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw materials, stock-in-
trade, stores and spares and loose tools is determined on a weighted average cost method.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct
materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Netrealizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Revenue recognition
Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer atan
amount that reflects the consideration entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Generally, control is transferred upon shipment of goods to the customer or when the goods is made available to the
customer, provided transfer of title to the customer occurs and the Company has not retained any significant risks of
ownership or future obligations with respect to the goods shipped.

Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration which the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for
transferring distinct goods or services to a customer as specified in the contract, net of returns and allowances, trade
discounts and volume rebates and excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example taxes and
duties collected on behalf of the government). Consideration is generally due upon satisfaction of performance
obligations and the receivable is recognized when it becomes unconditional.

Revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and are also netted off for probable saleable and non-saleable return of goods from the
customers, estimated on the basis of historical data of such returns.
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Income from Services

The Company provides manufacturing and diagnostic services to other companies and customers. The income from
these services is recognised when the same is performed and accepted by the other party on the basis ofinvoices.

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised over time where the Company satisfies the performance obligation
overtime or point in time where the Company satisfies the performance obligation at a pointin time.
Contract Balances

Tradereceivables: areceivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

Deferred Income: Income received where in the performance obligation is not satisfied. They are classified as
contract liabilities and disclosed as Deferred Income.

Advance from customers: when a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to
the customer, a contract liability is recognised and disclosed as advances from customers.
Interest

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
applicable interest rate. Interestincome isincluded under the head “otherincome” in the statement of profit and loss.

Export Incentive

Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued in the year in which the goods are exported, and no
significant uncertainty exist regarding its ultimate collection.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the exchange rates at
the dates ofthe transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Foreign
currency differences are generally recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured based on
historical costin a foreign currency are not translated.

However, foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the following items are recognised in OCI:

* equity investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (except on impairment, in
which case foreign currency differences that have been recognised in OCl are reclassified to profit or loss);

» afinancial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to the extent that the
hedge s effective; and

« qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.

Retirement and other employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term
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employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount of
short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognised as an expense as the
related service is rendered by employees.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to a
separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly
contributions towards employee provident fund to Government administered provident fund scheme which is a
defined contribution plan. The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme are defined benefit plans. The Company's net obligation in respect of a
defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any
unrecognised past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The calculation of the Company's
obligation under each of the two plans is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method.

The Company recognises all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans immediately in the Other
Comprehensive Income. All expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in employee benefits expense
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit
related to past service by employees is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the
average period until the benefits become vested. The Company recognises gains and losses on the curtailment or
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

Compensated Absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in future
service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated absences do
not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service
and are also not expected to be utilised wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is
classified as a long-term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in
the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on
the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Income taxes

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income
taxes. Itis measured using tax rates {and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and itis intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) under the provision of Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only
when and to the extent there is reasonable evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the period for
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which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as an
asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no
longer exists. Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) Credit are in the form of unused tax credits that are carried forward by the
Company for a specified period of time, hence, it is presented as Deferred Tax Asset.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also
recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

-temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

-temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the extent thatthe
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not
reverse in the foreseeable future;

-and taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be
available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the
extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable
profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.

Deferred tax assets- unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to
the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets,
and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities,
but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised
simultaneously.

Segmentreporting
Identification of segments

The Company is operating only one business segment "pharmaceutical" as its primary segment. The analysis of
geographical segments is based on the revenue generating locations. The geographical segment information of the
company is categorized under domestic sales and export sales.

Earnings Per Share
Basic EPS is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted

EPS is computed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares outstanding
during the period except where the results would be anti-dilutive.
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Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:

A provision is recognised if as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to setile the
obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
atthe balance sheet date. Ifthe effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may,
but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount can not be estimated
reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of
resources is remote. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However,
when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is
appropriate.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank including fixed deposits
(having original maturity of less than 3 months), cheques in hand and cash in hand.

Measurement of Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA)

The Company has elected to present EBITDA as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss.
The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit / (loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, the
Company does not include depreciation and amortization, finance costs and tax expense.

Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires judgements, estimates and
assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial
statements, the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period and the disclosures relating
to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. Although these estimates are based on the
management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes different from the estimates. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised
in the period in which the results are known or materialise. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future periods.

Management considers the accounting estimates and assumptions discussed below to be its critical accounting
estimates and, accordingly, provide an explanation of each below. The discussion below should also be read in
conjunction with the Company's disclosure of significant accounting policies which are provided in Note 3 to the
standalone financial statements, 'Significant accounting policies".

a. Estimate of current and deferred tax

The Company's tax charge on ordinary activities is the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges. The
calculation of the Company's total tax charge necessarily involves a degree of estimation and judgement in
respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined until resolution has been reached with
the relevant tax authority or, as appropriate, through a formal legal process. The final resolution of some of these
items may give rise to material profits/losses and/or cash flows.
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The complexity of the company's structure makes the degree of estimation and judhe complexity of the Cgement
more challenging. The resolution of issues is not always within the control of the Company and it is often
dependent on the efficiency of the legal processes in the relevant taxing jurisdictions in which the Company
operates. Issues can, and often do, take many years to resolve. Payments in respect of tax liabilities for an
accounting period result from payments on account and on the final resolution of open items. As a result, there
can be substantial differences between thetax charge inthe Statement of Profit and Loss and tax payments.

Recognition of MAT credit entitlement

The credit availed under MAT is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence
that the company will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for
set off against the normal tax liability. This requires significant management judgement in determining the
expected availment of the credit based on business plans and future cash flows of the Company.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is more likely than not that sufficient and suitable
taxable profits will be available in the future against which the reversal of temporary differences can be deducted.
To determine the future taxable profits, reference is made to the latest available profit forecasts. Where the
temporary differences are related to losses, relevant tax law is considered to determine the availability of the
lossesto offset againstthe future taxable profits.

Estimation of useful life

The useful life used to amortise or depreciate intangible assets or property, plant and equipment respectively
relates to the expected future performance of the assets acquired and management's judgement of the period
over which economic benefit will be derived from the asset based on its technical expertise. The charge in
respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the
expected residual value at the end of its life. Increasing an asset's expected life or its residual value would resultin
areduced depreciation charge in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is
acquired and reviewed annually for appropriateness. The lives are based on historical experience with similar
assets as well as anticipation of future events which may impact their life such as changes in technology.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company exercises judgement in measuring and recognising provisions and the exposures to contingent
liabilities related to pending litigation or other outstanding claims subject to negotiated settlement, mediation,
arbitration or government regulation, as well as other contingent liabilities. Judgement is necessary in assessing
the likelihood that a pending claim will succeed, or a liability will arise, and to quantify the possible range of the
financial settlement. Because of the inherent uncertainty in this evaluation process, actual losses may be
different from the originally estimated provision.
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f. Fairvalue measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for the financial reporting purposes.
Central corporate treasury team works with various banks for determining appropriate fair value of derivative
assets and liabilities. Central treasury team reports to the Chief Financial Officer. In estimating the fair value of
derivative assets and liabilities, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent itis available. Information
about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are
disclosed in notes to financial statements.

g. Defined BenefitPlans:

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and present value of the gratuity
obligation are determined using actuarial valuation. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual development in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

h. Provision for anticipated sales return:

In determining the provision for anticipated sales returns, estimates for probable saleable and non-saleable
returns of goods from the customers are made on scientific basis after factoring in the historical data of such
returns and its trend.

i. Biological Assets

Management uses inputs relating to production and market prices in determining the fair value biological assets.

74
























































































































Bharat Serums & Vaccines Limited

Notes to the standalone IND AS financial statements (Continued) (as at 31 March 2019)

(Currency : Indian rupees in Lakhs)

43 Recent accounting pronouncements (Continued)

* An amount equal to the lease liability , adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that
lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application. Certain practical expedients are
available under both the methods. Effective date for the application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or
after April 1, 2019. The Company is currently evaluating the effect of thisamendment.

Ind AS 12, Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

On March 30, 2019, the ministry of corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12, Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses , unused tax
credits and tax rates , when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix,
companies need to determined the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax
treatment, that the companies have used or plan to use in theirincome taxfilling which has to be considered to compute the most
likely amount or expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credit and tax rates.

The Standard Permits two possible methods of transition:

* Full Retrospective Approach- Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight, and

* Retrospectively with cumulative effect on initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initial application,
without adjusting comparatives

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company will
adopt the Standard on April 1, 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the date of initial applicationi.e.
April 1, 2019 without adjusting comparatives .

Effective date for the application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company is
currently evaluating the effect of this amendment.

Amendment to Ind AS 12, Income Taxes

On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, Income Taxes, in
connection with accounting for dividend distribution tax.

The amendments clarifies that an equity shall recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in Profit or Loss, other
comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognize those past transactions or events.

Effective date for the application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company is
currently evaluating the effect of thisamendment.

Amendment to Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits, in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailment and
seitlement:

The amendment requires an entity:

» To use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan
amendment, curtailment and settlement ; and

* To recognize in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or a loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus even
if that surplus was not previously recognize because ofthe impact ofthe asset ceiling .

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company does not
have any impact on account of thisamendment.
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44 Government Grants

The Company had received government grant which was capitalised in 2014-15 amounted to Rs 637.97 Lakhs with
respect to Amphomul project. This grant, recognized as deferred income, is being amortized over the useful life of the
Intangible assets in proportion in which the related depreciation expense is recognised.

45 Thefinancial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 were audited by BS R & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants, the predecessor auditor.

46 Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classification
/ disclosure.

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited
CIN : U24230MH1971PLC015134

Sd/- Sd/-
Bharat V Daftary Gautam V Daftary
Chairman and Managing Director Managing Director
DIN : 00011518 DIN : 00009326
Sd/- Sd/-
Anil M Damle Charudatta S Samant
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No : A22337
Place: Mumbai

Date: 30th July 2019
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Independent auditor’s report

Board of Directors,
BSV Biosciences, Inc.

‘We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of BSV Biosciences, Inc. (‘the Company’) as at March 31, 2019
and March 31, 2018 and the related statements of income, changes in stockholder’s equity, the cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the organization's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

‘We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 and the result of its operations, stockholder’s
equity and the cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Atlanta, Georgia
July 3, 2019
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Balance sheets As at

(ALl amounts are stated in United States Dollars unless otherwise stated) ~ Match 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,184 42,629
Accounts receivable, from related parties 182,981 -
Total current assets 184,165 42,629
Total assets 184,165 42,629
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY

Current liabilities

Accounts payable 68,840 117
Other cutrent liabilities 25,949 20,674
Total cutrent liabilities 94,789 20,791
Total liabilities 94,789 20,791
Stockholder’s equity

Common stock, authorized, 2,000,000 common shates, 1,000,000 1,000,000
$ 1 par value; issued and outstanding, 1,000,000 common

shares, $ 1 par value

Accumulated deficit (910,624) (978,162)
Total stockholdet’s equity 89,376 21,838
Total liabilities and stockholder’s equity 184,165 42,629

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)
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Statements of income

(ALl amonnts are stated in United States Dollars unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

Operating revenue

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization

Research and development expenses

Total costs and expenses

Income before taxes
Current tax expense

Net income

Mazch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
764,569 765,024
692,060 658,340
- 292
4171 23,122
696,231 681,754
68,338 83,270
800 1,600
67,538 81,670

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)
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Statements of stockholder’s equity
For the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018
(AL amonnts are stated in United States Dollars except number of sharey

Common stock

Authorized Issued & outstanding Accumulated sto;:rk(;:;:der’s
Particulars Shares Value in US$ Shares Value in US$ deficit equity (deficit)
Balance as on A;ril 1, 2017 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 (1,059,832) (59,832)
Net income - - - - 81,670 81,670
Balance as at March 31, 2018 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 (978,162) 21,838
Balance as on April 1, 2018 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 (978,162) 21,838
Net income - - - - 67,538 67,538
Balance as at March 31, 2019 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 (910,624) 89,376

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)
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Statements of cash flows For the year ended
(ALl amounts are stated in United States Dollars unless otherwise stated) ~ March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Cash flow from operating activities
Net income 67,538 81,670

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in)
provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization - 292
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable, from related parties (182,981) 1,569
Other current liabilities 5,275 (14,199)
Accounts payable 68,723 (34,935)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (41,445) 34,397
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (41,445) 34,397
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 42,629 8,232
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,184 42,629

Supplemental cash flow information
Income taxes paid 800 800

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements)
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Notes to financial statements

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying financial
statements is as follows:

1.

Business

BSV Biosciences, Inc. (“the Company”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bharat Serums & Vaccines Ltd.
(“Parent”), an India company. The Company was incorporated on March 23, 2005 and commenced
opetations in Aptil 2005. The Company provides biomedical research and consulting services to its Parent
company and the affiliate company Advy Chemicals Limited.

Basis of preparation

a. 'The accompanying financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on the
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accounting and reporting requirements of generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States (“US GAAP”) to reflect the financial position,
results of operation and cash flows of the Company.

b. The financial statements are for the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018.

c. Certain reclassifications, regroupings and reworking have been made in the financial statements of
prior years to conform to the classifications used in the current year. This has no impact on the
statement of income.

Estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
fequires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses duting the reporting period. The management’s estimates for
realization of deferred tax assets, determination of useful lives for property, plant and equipment, allowance
for doubtful debts and estimation relating to unsettled transactions and events at the balance sheet date
represent certain of these particularly sensitive estimates. Management believes that the estimates used in
the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from
these estimates. Approptiate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments and deposits with an original maturity of ninety days
ot less to be cash equivalents.

Computer equipment

Computer equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Acquisitions of computer equipment
are recorded at cost.

The estimated useful life of computer equipment is 3 years.
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6.  Allowance for doubitful accounts

The Company follows specific identification method for recognizing bad debts. Management analyzes
accounts receivable and the composition of the accounts receivable aging, historical bad debts, current
economic trends and customer credit worthiness when evaluating the adequacy of the provision for
doubtful accounts. Allowance for doubtful accounts is included in marketing and selling expenses in the
statements of income. The Company charges off uncollectable amounts against the reserve in the period
in which it determines they ate uncollectable.

7.  Revenue recognition

The Company's only source of revenue is from the Parent company or affiliate company. Under a service
agreement that commenced September 1, 2005, the Parent agreed to reimburse the Company each month
for its operating expenses plus a mark-upon the costs. In accordance with the agreement, the Company
recognizes the reimbursement revenue when invoiced to the Parent each month, as the setvices are
rendered.

8.  Income taxes

In accordance with the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 740 “Income Taxes,” income taxes are accounted for using the asset
and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities
and theit respective tax bases and operating loss carty-forward. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in income in the petiod that includes the enactment date. The defetred
tax asset is reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the asset

will not be realized.

The Company recognizes liabilities for uncertain tax positions based on a twostep process. The first step
is to evaluate the tax position for recognition by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates
it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals
or litigation processes, if any. The second step is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount which is
more than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company recognizes interest and
penalties related to uncertain tax positions within the provision for income taxes.

9. Fair value of financial wistraments

The Company applies fair value measurements to certain assets, liabiliies and transactions that are
petiodically measured at fair value.

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value in the financial statements are categorized based upon the level
of judgment associated with the inputs used to measure their fair value. Hierarchical levels which are
directly related to the amount of subjectivity associated with the inputs to the valuation of these assets or
liabilities are as follows:

Level 1 — unadjusted quoted ptices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has
the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are directly obsetvable for the asset
or liability or indirectly observable through corroboration with observable market data.
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Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability only used when there is little, if any, market activity
for the asset or liability at the measurement date.

This hierarchy requires the Company to use observable market data, when available, and to minimize the
use of unobservable inputs when determining fair value.

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities. The estimated fair value of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and
accrued liabilities approximate their carrying amounts due to the short-term nature of these instruments.
None of these instruments are held for trading purposes.

10. Concentration of credit rik

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consist
ptimarily of cash and accounts receivable. The Company's cash is on deposit in a checking account with a
high-quality financial institution. The Company has not expetienced any losses and does not believe it is
exposed to any significant credit risk.

The Company’s accounts teceivable as at Match 31, 2019 comprised of dues from the parent or one of the
parent's wholly owned subsidiaties and as at March 31, 2018 the accounts receivable were NIL.

The above-mentioned customets comptised of 100% of total revenue for the year ended March 31, 2019
and March 31, 2018.

11. Commitment and contingencies
Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines, and penalties and other
sources are recorded when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably
estimated. Legal costs incurred in connection with loss contingencies are expensed as incurred. Contingent
liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor
disclosed in the financial statements.

NOTE B - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following:

As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Cash at bank 984 42,429
Cash in hand 200 200
Total 1,184 42,629

Cash balances in bank accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Cotporation up to an aggregate
per bank of $ 250,000 (previous year - $ 250,000). As at March 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company had no cash
at risk.
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NOTE C - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, FROM RELATED PARTIES

Accounts receivable, from related parties include the following:

As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Receivables from related party 182,981 -
Accounts receivables 182,981 -
The allowance for doubtful accounts was $ Nil at March 31, 2019 and 2018.
NOTE D -COMPUTER EQUIPMENT, NET
Property, plant and equipment include the following:
As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Computers equipment 2,936 2,936
Less: Accumulated depreciation (2,936) (2,936)
Computers equipment, net - -
Depreciation for the year ended March 31, 2019 was § Nil (March 31, 2018: § 292).
NOTE E - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other current liabilities include the following:
As at
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Accrued vacation 25,149 19,874
Provision for income tax 800 800
Total 25,949 20,674

NOTE F - INCOME TAXES

The Company files federal and state tax returns as per regulations applicable to Chapter C corporations in the
United States.

The components of the provision for income taxes ate as follows:

Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Current taxes
State 800 1,600
Total provision for taxes 800 1,600

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant
components of the Company's net deferred income taxes are as follows:
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As at
Match 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Deferred tax assets

Computer equipment 47 142
Accrued vacation pay 7,038 -
Net operating losses 171,433 191,114
‘Total deferred tax asset 178,518 191,256
Total deferred taxes 178,518 191,256
Less: valuation allowance (178,518) (191,256)
Net deferred taxes - -

In assessing the realization of deferred tax assets, the likelihood of whether it is more likely than not that some
portion or all the deferred tax assets will not be realized must be considered. The ultimate tealization of deferred
tax assets is dependent on the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which temporary
differences become deductible. Management considers the projected future taxable income and tax planning
strategies in making this assessment. The Company has provided a valuation allowance of § 178,518 and §
191,256 as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 against the net deferred tax assets. The change in valuation
allowance is $ 12,738 during the year ended March 31, 2019.

The Company has net operating loss carry forwards of $ 798,128 as of March 31, 2019 available to reduce
future federal income taxes. If not used, the catry forwards will begin to expire in 2028. The Company has
carried forward losses totaling $ 784,500 which are available to reduce future state income taxes. If not used,
the carry forwards will begin to expire from 2018.

Accounting for uncertain tax position

The Company recognizes the financial statement impact of a tax position when it is more likely than not that
the position will be sustained upon examination. The adoption of this standard had no material effect on the
Company's financial position, results of operation or cash flows.

The tax years 2015 to 2017 remain subject to examination by the taxing authorities.

NOTE G- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(1) The Company has entered into transactions with the following related parties —
a. Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (Parent)
b. Advy Chemicals Limited (affiliate company)

The total operating revenue from the Parent amounted to § 696,807 for the year ended March 31, 2019 and $§
670,000 for the year ended March 31, 2018. The Company had a receivable outstanding from the Parent
amounting to § 143,127 as on March 31, 2019 and § Nil as on March 31, 2018

The total operating revenue from the affiliate company amounted to § 67,762 for the year ended March 31,

2019 and § 95,024 for the year ended March 31, 2018. The Company had a receivable outstanding from the
affiliate company amounting to § 39,854 as on March 31, 2019 and $ Nil as on March 31, 2018.
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NOTE H - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit tisk consist principally
of cash equivalents and trade receivables. The cash resources of the Company are invested with banks after an
evaluation of the credit risk. By their nature, all such cash equivalents and trade receivables involve risk including
the credit risk of non-performance by counter parties. In management’s opinion, as of March 31, 2019 and
2018, there was no significant risk of loss in the event of non-performance of the counter parties to these cash
equivalents and trade receivables.

NOTE I - STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY

Common stock issued
Common stock issued as at March 31, 2019 was 1,000,000 shares of $ 1 par each (March 31, 2018: 1,000,000
shares of $ 1 par each).

Voting
Each holder of common stock is entitled to one vote in respect of each share held by him in the records of
the Company for all matters submitted to a vote.

Liguidation

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of common stock shall be entitled to receive all of the
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. Such amounts will be
in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

NOTE ] - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Company evaluated all events and transactions that occurred after March 31, 2019 through July 3, 2019

the date the financial statements are issued. Based on the evaluation, the Company is not aware of any events
or transactions that would require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.
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translation or for any errors or misunderstandings that may arise from the translation.
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To BSV Bioscience GmbH, Baesweiler

[ Audil Engagement

The management

of BSV Bioscience GmbH, headquartered in Baesweiler,
- hereinafter also referred to as ‘BSV' or ‘Company’ —

has engaged us to audit the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019, together
with the accounting records.

The terms governing this engagement are set out in the General Engagement Terms for
Wirtschaftsprifer and Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaften [German Public Auditors and Public
Audit Firms] as amended on 1 January 2017, which are attached to this report as Appendix 4.
Our liability is governed by Clause 9 of the General Engagement Terms. Our liability towards
third parties is defined under Clauses 1 (2) and 9 of the General Engagement Terms.
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/ Reproduction of the Independent
Auditor's Repart (Transiation)

Based on the results of our audit, we have issued the following unqualified audit opinion:

J2)

Independent Auditor’s Report (Translation)

To BSV Bioscience GmbH, Baesweiler

Opinion

We have audited the annual financial statements of BSV Bioscience GmbH, Baesweiler, which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, and the Income Statement for the period
from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019, and notes to the financial statements, including the
recognition and measurement policies presented therein.

In our opinion, on the basis of the knowledge obtained in the audit, the accompanying annual
financial statements comply, in all material respects, with the requirements of German
commercial law applicable to business corporations and give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities and financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2019 and of its financial
performance for the financial year from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019, in accordance with
German Legally Required Accounting Principles.

Pursuant to Section 322 (3) sentence 1 HGB [Handelsgesetzbuch: German Commercial Codel,
we declare that our audit has not led to any reservations relating to the legal compliance of the
annual financial statements.

Basis for the Opinion

We conducted our audit of the annual financial statements in accordance with

Section 317 HGB and the German Generally Accepted Standards for Financial Statement
Audits promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprifer [Institute of Public Auditors in
Germany] (IDW). Our responsibilities under those requirements and principles are further

135



. BSV Biosciences, Gmbh

described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual Financial Statements”
section of our auditor’s report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
requirements of German commercial and professional law, and we have fulfilled our other
German professional responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on the annual financial statements.

Responsibilities of Management for the Annual Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements that comply,
in all material respects, with the requirements of German commercial law applicable to
business corporations, and that the annual financial statements give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, financial position and financial performance of the Company in compliance
with German Legally Required Accounting Principles. In addition, management is responsible
for such internal control as they, in accordance with German Legally Required Accounting
Principles, have determined necessary to enable the preparation of annual financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. They also have the responsibility for
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern. In addition, they are responsible for
financial reporting based on the going concern basis of accounting, provided no actual or legal
circumstances conflict therewith.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, as
well as to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion on the annual financial
statements.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Section 317 HGB and in compliance with the German Generally
Accepted Standards for Financial Statement Audits promulgated by the Institut der
Wirtschaftsprifer (IDW) will always detect a material misstatement. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these annual financial statements.

We exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
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than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit of the annual financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of these systems.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used by management and the
reasonableness of estimates made by management and related disclosures.

conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in the auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the annual
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our respective
opinions. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
be able to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the annual financial statements present the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that the annual financial statements give a
true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and financial performance of
the Company in compliance with German Legally Required Accounting Principles.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Disseldorf, 14 June 2019

KPMG AG
Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft
[Original German version signed by:]

[signature] Hemker [signature] Stelzer
Wirtschaftsprifer Wirtschaftspriifer
[German Public Auditor] [German Public Auditor]
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3 Performance of the Audt

3.1 Scope of the Audit

We have audited the annual financial statements — comprising the balance sheet as at 31
March 2019, the Income Statement for the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 as well
as the Notes to the Financial Statements — including the accounting records of BSV
Bioscience GmbH for the annual financial year ended 31 March 2019.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the annual financial statements based on our
audit.

An audit only covers compliance with other regulations to the extent that these other
regulations can be expected to have an impact on the annual financial statements.

Pursuant to Section 317 (4a) HGB, an audit is not intended to extend to whether the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern or the effectiveness and efficiency of
management can be assured.

The Company meets the criteria of a small corporation as defined by Section 267 (1) HGB. It
made use of the reporting relief under Section 264 (1) sentence 4 HGB and therefore did not
prepare a management report.

3.2 Nature and scope of audit procedures

The general principles of our audit approach are already presented in the Independent
auditor's Report (see Section 2 of this report). In addition, we provide the following
information on our audit approach and audit performance:

We planned and based our audit on an understanding of our client’s business and an
assessment of company-specific risks as well as accounting-related processes and controls of
the Company. We assessed their impact on the annual financial statements by taking account
of the principle of materiality and, as a result, established the following audit focus areas:

Audit of the process of preparing the financial statements
Valuation and existence of inventories
Existence and measurement of trade accounts receivable

Accuracy of sales cut-off
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The extent of the Company’s internal control system reflects the small number and low
complexity of its business transactions. We obtained sufficient knowledge of the processing
of business transactions and management’s handling of business risks.

Our audit procedures mainly consisted of tests of details on a sample basis and analytical
reviews of items in the financial statements. Our tests of details included requesting
confirmations of balances from customers (representative sample) and suppliers (specified
sample). We also requested confirmations from the Company's lawyers and credit
institutions.

We concluded our audit with an overall evaluation of the audit results as well as the annual
financial statements. This overall evaluation was then used for issuing our opinion in the
Independent Auditor's Report. Together with the audit report, the Independent Auditor’s
Report is part of our reporting on the audit performed.

We performed our audit including a preliminary audit in the period of May and June 2019 until
14 June 2019.

All explanations and evidence requested by us were provided. The management confirmed in
writing that the accounting records and the annual financial statements are complete.
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4 Hndings on accounting and financia
8porting

4.1 Accounting records and related documents

The Company’s accounting records have been properly kept and maintained. The accounting
records and related documents are properly authorised, sufficiently explained and filed in an
orderly manner. Based on our findings, the accounting records and related documents comply
with German legal requirements.

Based on our audit, we found that the measures taken by the Company are appropriate to
ensure the security of processed accounting-related data.

4.2 Annual financial statements

The annual financial statements as at 31 March 2019, presented to us for audit, were properly
derived from the Company’s accounting records and related documents. The opening balance
sheet figures were properly carried forward from prior year’s annual financial statements. The
German legal recognition, presentation and measurement requirements have been observed,
in all material respects.

The balance sheet and income statement have been prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the provisions of German commercial law applicable to business
corporations, including the German Legally Required Accounting Principles. The notes to the
financial statements include all legally required information.

The disclosure reliefs based on size provided by Sections 274a, 276 and 288 HGG have been
correctly (and partially) applied.
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o Joinion onthe Overall Presentation of the
annual financial Statements

5.1 Comments on overall presentation

The accounting policies applied to the annual financial statement items, in all material
respects, comply with the requirements of German commercial law applicable to corporations.
These are described in the notes to the financial statements (see Appendix 2.3 Section Il.).

The exercise of accounting and valuation options as well as accounting judgements with
regard to the following annual financial statement items has a material effect on the
Company's assets, liabilities, financial position and financial performance:

Sales prices to affiliated companies

The Company generates approximately 42% of its net sales with the shareholder Bharat
Serums and Vaccines Limited, Mumbai/lndia. Within the financial year ended 31 March 2019
the transfer prices for sales to the shareholder Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited,
Mumbai/lndia, have been adjusted. The effective date of the adjustment was 1 April 2018.
Overall, the transfer prices should ensure appropriate sales prices for the Company.

5.2 Conclusion on the overall presentation of the annual
financial statements

Based on an overall consideration of the accounting policies described above, we are of the
opinion that the annual financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities
and financial position of the Company and of its financial performance in accordance with
German Legally Required Accounting Principles.

141



BSV Biosciences, Gmbh

0 oncluding remarks

This audit report has been prepared in accordance with the principles of Auditing Standard 450
{as amended), promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprifer [Institute of Public Auditors in
Germany] (IDW).

We hereby confirm pursuant to Section 321 {4a) HGB that we have conducted our audit in
accordance with the applicable independence regulations.

The Independent Auditor’s Report is presented in Section 2. The original Independent
Auditor’s Report is presented as Appendix 3.

Dusseldorf, 14 June 2019 oo

KPMG AG
Wirtschaftsprifungsgesellschaft

Mew d oy

. AAAAALL .

Hemker Stelzer Tvvvvve:
Wirtschaftsprifer Wirtschaftsprifer
[German Public Auditor] [German Public Auditor]

Tvvwwwy -
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Annual Financia
olalements

as 0f 3l March 2019

1.1 Balance Sheet

1.2 Income Statement
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BSV Bioscience GmbH,
Baesweiler

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

Assets

31/3/2019 31/3/12018

EUR EUR
A. Fixed Assets

I. Intangible Assets 127,553.87 85,097.71
Il. Property, plant and equipment 3,263,485.63 3,414,183.42
3,391,039.50  3,499,281.13

B. Current Assets
. Inventories 2,730,829.10  1,625,335.74
Il. Receivables and other assets 2,226,023.88 1,500,316.65
lll. Cash and cash equivalents 570,789.41 523,291.31
5,527,642.39  3,648,943.70
C. Prepayments 74,705.30 71,813.93
8,993,387.19  7,220,038.76
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Equity and liabilities

31/3/2019 31/3/12018
EUR EUR
. Equity
. Subscribed capital 1,025,000.00  1,025,000.00
Il. Capital reserve 1,700,000.00  1,700,000.00
lll. Loss carried forward -238,451.61 -911,146.84
IV. Net income for the year 1,096,235.55 672,695.23
3,582,783.94  2,486,548.39
. Provisions 215,753.84 193,815.57
. Liabilities 5,194,849.41 4,539,674.80
— thereof due to taxes
EUR 49.400,67 (prior year: EUR 20,747.95) —
— thereof due in one year
EUR 2.665.270,99 (prior year: EUR 2,185,096.34) —
— thereof due in more than one year but less than five years
EUR 2.529.578,42 (prior year: EUR 2,354,578.42) —
8,993,387.19  7,220,038.76
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BSV Bioscience GmbH,
Baesweller

Income Statement for the period
from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

EUR EUR EUR EUR

1. Gross profit 5,837,827.39 4,653,842.00
2. Personnel expenses

a) Wages and salaries -1,574,555.98 -1,414,888.37

b) Social security -330,937.67 -1,905,493.65 -284,843.68 -1,699,732.05
3. Amortization of intangible assets and

depreciation of property, plant and equipment -380,675.13 -311,808.10
4. Other operating expenses -2,095,638.32 -1,730,526.60
5. Other interests and similar income 0.00 0.09
6. Interests and similar expenses -239,676.50 -238,720.01

— thereof from affiliated companies EUR 14.444,66
(prior year: EUR 33,841.00) —

7. Income taxes -119,984.17 0.00
8. Profit after tax 1,096,359.62 673,055.33
9. Other taxes -124.07 -360.10
10. Net income for the year 1,096,235.55 672,695.23
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BSV Bioscience GmbH,

Baesweller

Bilanz zum 31. Marz 2019

Aktiva

31.3.2019 31.3.2018

A. Anlagevermdgen
I. Immaterielle Vermdgensgegenstinde

Il. Sachanlagen

EUR

127.553,87

3.263.485,63
3.391.039,50

EUR

85.097,71

3.414.183,42
3.499.281,13

B. Umlaufvermégen

I. Vorrite 2.730.829,10  1.625.335,74

Il. Forderungen und sonstige Vermdgensgegenstinde 2.226.023,88 1.500.316,65

lll. Kassenbestand und Guthaben bei Kreditinstituten 570.789,41 523.291,31
5.527.642,39  3.648.943,70

C. Rechnungsabgrenzungsposten 74.705,30 71.813,93
8.993.387,19  7.220.038,76
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Passiva

3132019 3132018
EUR EUR

A. Eigenkapital

I. Gezeichnetes Kapital 1.025.000,00 1.025.000,00
Il. Kapitalriicklage 1.700.000,00  1.700.000,00
lll. Verlustvortrag -238.451,61 -911.146,84
IV. Jahresiiberschuss 1.096.235,55 672.695,23
3.582.783,94  2.486.548,39
B. Rl'ickstellungen 215.753,84 193.815,57
C. Verbindlichkeiten 5.194.849,41  4.539.674,80

—davon aus Steuern
EUR 49.400,67 (i. Vj. EUR 20.747,95) —
— davon mit einer Restlaufzeit bis zu einem Jahr
EUR 2.665.270,99 (i. Vj. EUR 2.185.096,34) —
— davon mit einer Restlaufzeit von mehr als einem Jahr
und weniger als fiinf Jahren
EUR 2.529.578,42 (i. Vj. EUR 2.354.578,42) —

8.993.387,19  7.220.038,76
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BSV Bioscience GmbH,
Baesweller

Gewinn- und Verlustrechnung fiir die Zeit
vom 1. April 2018 bis 31. Marz 2019

EUR EUR EUR EUR

1. Rohergebnis 5.837.827,39 4.653.842,00
2. Personalaufwand

a) Léhne und Gehdlter -1.574.555,98 -1.414.888,37

b) Soziale Abgaben -330.937,67 -1.805.493,65 -284.843,68 -1.699.732,05
3. Abschreibungen auf immaterielle Vermégensgegen-

stdnde des Anlagevermdgens und Sachanlagen -380.675,13 -311.808,10
4. Sonstige betriebliche Aufwendungen -2.095.638,32 -1.730.526,60
5. Sonstige Zinsen und &hnliche Ertrage 0,00 0,09
6. Zinsen und dhnliche Aufwendungen -239.676,50 -238.720,01

—davon an verbundene Unternehmen
EUR 14.444,66 (i. Vj. EUR 33.841,00) —

7. Steuern vom Einkommen und vom Ertrag -119.984,17 0,00
8. Ergebnis nach Steuern 1.096.359,62 673.055,33
9. Sonstige Steuem -124,07 -360,10
10. Jahresliberschuss 1.096.235,55 672.695,23
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Anhang fiir das Geschéftsjahr vom 1. April 2018 bis 31. Madrz 2019

BSV Bioscience GmbH
Sitz: Baesweiler
Handelsregister: HRB 14876 beim Amtsgericht Aachen

I. Alilgemeine Angaben

Der vorliegende Jahresabschluss wurde gemaR den §§ 242 ff. und 264 ff. HGB sowie
nach den einschlagigen Vorschriften des GmbHG und des Gesellschaftsvertrages aufge-
stellt.

Die Gesellschaft ist erstmalig eine mittelgroRe Kapitalgesellschaft gemaR § 267
Abs. 2 HGB. Fir die Gesellschaft gelten daher gema § 267 Abs. 2 i.V.m. Abs. 4 Satz 1
HGB weiterhin die Vorschriften fir kleine Kapitalgesellschaften im Sinne von § 267 Abs. 1
HGB. Die gréRenabhéangigen Erleichterungen bei der Aufstellung wurden teilweise in An-
spruch genommen.

Il. Bilanzierungs- und Bewertungsmethoden

Fur die Erstellung des Jahresabschlusses waren die nachfolgenden, gegeniiber dem Vor-
jahr unveranderten, Bilanzierungs- und Bewertungsmethoden maf3gebend.

Entgeltlich erworbene immaterielle Vermégensgegenstinde wurden zu Anschaffungskos-
ten aktiviert und, sofern sie der Abnutzung unterliegen, entsprechend ihrer Nutzungsdauer
um planméagige Abschreibungen (lineare Methode) vermindert.

Die Vermdgensgegenstande des Sachanlagevermdgens wurden nach MaRgabe der vo-
raussichtlichen Nutzungsdauer um planmaRige Abschreibungen in Anlehnung an steuerlich
anerkannte Hochstsatze vermindert. Zugadnge des Geschéftsjahres wurden
pro-rata-temporis abgeschrieben.

Fur Vermdgensgegenstande des Anlagevermégens mit einem Wert zwischen 150,00 EUR
und 1.000,00 EUR wurde im Zugangsjahr ein Sammelposten gebildet, der tber finf Jahre
abgeschrieben wird.

Die Bewertung der Roh-, Hilfs- und Betriebsstoffe sowie Waren erfolgte zu Anschaffungs-
kosten. Fertige und unfertige Erzeugnisse wurden zu Herstellungskosten gemaR § 255
HGB bewertet. Fremdkapitalzinsen wurden nicht aktiviert. Notwendige Abwertungen auf-
grund des Niederstwertprinzips wurden vorgenommen.

Fur die im Vorratsvermégen ausgewiesenen Verbrauchsartikel des Labors wurde ein
Festwert gemaR § 240 Abs. 3 HGB gebildet.

Forderungen und sonstige Vermégensgegenstande wurden grundsétzlich zum Nennwert
bewertet.

Kassenbestand und Guthaben bei Kreditinstituten sind zum Nennwert angesetzt.

Aktive Rechnungsabgrenzungsposten werden mit den anteiligen Ausgaben aus der Zeit vor
dem Abschlussstichtag, die Aufwendungen fiir Folgejahre darstellen, bewertet.

1
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Das gezeichnete Kapital und Riicklagen sind zum Nennwert angesetzt.

Die sonstigen Rickstellungen beriucksichtigen alle erkennbaren Risiken und ungewissen
Verbindlichkeiten. Sie sind ausreichend bemessen und nach verninftiger kaufmannischer
Beurteilung in Hohe des notwendigen Erfilllungsbetrages bewertet. Die Bewertung erfolgte
einzeln.

Verbindlichkeiten wurden mit dem Erfullungsbetrag angesetzt.

Auf fremde Wahrung lautende kurzfristige Vermégensgegensténde und Schulden sind zum
Stichtag mit dem Devisenkassamittelkurs auf Euro umgerechnet worden.

lll. Erlduterungen zur Bilanz

Die Entwicklung der einzelnen Posten des Anlagevermdgens sowie die Abschreibungen
des laufenden Geschéftsjahres sind im Anlagespiegel gesondert dargestellt.

Forderungen gegen die Gesellschafterin bestanden zum Bilanzstichtag in Hohe von
EUR 511.035,20 (Vorjahr EUR 741.031,60).

Verbindlichkeiten gegeniiber der Gesellschafterin bestanden zum Bilanzstichtag in Héhe
von EUR 367.564,16 (Vorjahr EUR 254.019,64).

Die Forderungen und Verbindlichkeiten gegentuiber der Gesellschafterin haben insgesamt
Restlaufzeiten von bis zu einem Jahr.

Die Verbindlichkeiten gegeniber Kreditinstituten in Hé6he von EUR 2.829.578,42 sind wie

folgt besichert:

— Sicherungsibereignung von Anlage- und Umlaufvermdégen,

— Globalzession samtlicher Forderungen mit Ausnahme der Anspriche aus Lieferungen
und Leistungen, sofern diese an eine Factoring Gesellschaft abgetreten werden,

— Burgschaft des Mutterunternehmens Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited, Mumbai,
Indien, nach indischem Recht,

— Kapitalbelassungserklarung des Mutterunternehmens Bharat Serums and Vaccines
Limited, Mumbai, Indien, an den Geschéftsanteilen der BSV dahingehend, dass diese
Anteile nicht ohne vorherige schriftliche Zustimmung der EXIM-Bank verduRert werden.

IV. Angaben zur Gewinn- und Verlustrechnung

Die Gewinn- und Verlustrechnung ist nach dem Gesamtkostenverfahren aufgestellt.

Im Rohergebnis sind Ertrdge aus Wéahrungsumrechnung in Héhe von 78.035,91 (Vorjahr
EUR 250.749,65) enthalten. In den sonstigen betrieblichen Aufwendungen sind Aufwen-
dungen aus Wahrungsumrechnung in Héhe von EUR142.153,35 (Vorjahr
EUR 125.881,68) enthalten.
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V. Sonstige Angaben

Die Geschaftsfuhrung wurde im Jahr 2018/19 wahrgenommen von:

— Herrn Raj Angchekar, Kaufmann, Wiirselen (seit dem 16. November 2018)

— Herrn Anil Damle, Kaufmann, Mumbai, Indien (bis zum 16. November 2018)

— Herrn Rahul Srivastava, Kaufmann, Mumbai, Indien (bis zum 16. November 2018)

Im Geschéftsjahr wurden durchschnittlich 34 Mitarbeiter beschéftigt.

Mutterunternehmen (Beteiligungsquote 100 %) der BSV ist Bharat Serums and Vaccines
Limited, die den Konzernabschluss fir den gréten und kleinsten Kreis von Unternehmen
aufstellt. Sitz des Mutterunternehmens: 17t Floor, Hoechest House, Nariman Point,
Mumbai - 400021, Indien. Der Konzernabschluss des Mutterunternehmens ist beim indi-
schen Ministry of Corporate Affairs (www.mca.gov.in) erhaltlich.

Baesweiler, den 14. Juni 2019

BSV Bioscience GmbH

Raj Angchekar
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BSV Bioscience GmbH,
Baesweller

Entwicklung des Anlagevermdgens im Geschiftsjahr 2018/19

Anschaffungs- und Herstellungskosten

1.4.2018 Zugénge Abgiinge Umbuchung  31.3.2019
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
I. Immaterielle Vermdgensgegenstdnds 115.632,15 54.514,00 0,00 32.850,00 202.996,15
Il._Sachanlagen 5.172.426,45 217.919,50 0,00 -32.850,00 5.357.495,95
5.288.058,60 272.433,50 0,00 0,00 5.560.492,10
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Kumulierte Abschreibungen Buchwerte
1.4.2018 Zugénge Abgénge 31.3.2019 31.3.2019 31.3.2018
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR
30.534,44 44.907,84 0,00 75.442,28  127.553,87 85.097,71
1.758.243,03  335.767,29 0,00 2.094.010,32 3.263.485,63 3.414.183.42
1.788.777,47 _ 380.675,13 0,00 2.169.452,60 3.391.039,50 3.499.281,13
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pestatigungsvermer des unabhangioen
ADSCNILSSPILIErs

An die BSV Bioscience GmbH, Baesweiler

Priffungsurteil

Wir haben den Jahresabschluss der BSV Bioscience GmbH, Baesweiler — bestehend aus der
Bilanz zum 31. Marz 2019 und der Gewinn- und Verlustrechnung fur die Zeit vom 1. April 2018
bis 31. Marz 2019 sowie dem Anhang, einschlie3lich der Darstellung der Bilanzierungs- und
Bewertungsmethoden — gepriift.

Nach unserer Beurteilung aufgrund der bei der Priifung gewonnenen Erkenntnisse entspricht
der beigefligte Jahresabschluss in allen wesentlichen Belangen den deutschen, fir Kapitalge-
sellschaften geltenden handelsrechtlichen Vorschriften und vermittelt unter Beachtung der
deutschen Grundsatze ordnungsmaRiger Buchfihrung ein den tatsdchlichen Verhéltnissen
entsprechendes Bild der Vermdégens- und Finanzlage der Gesellschaft zum 31. Méarz 2019
sowie ihrer Ertragslage fiir das Geschaftsjahr vom 1. April 2018 bis 31. Méarz 2019.

GemaR § 322 Abs. 3 Satz 1 HGB erklaren wir, dass unsere Priifung zu keinen Einwendungen
gegen die OrdnungsmaRigkeit des Jahresabschlusses gefiihrt hat.

Grundlage fiir das Prifungsurteil

Wir haben unsere Priifung des Jahresabschlusses in Ubersinstimmung mit § 317 HGB unter
Beachtung der vom Institut der Wirtschaftsprifer (IDW) festgestellten deutschen Grundsatze
ordnungsmaRiger Abschlusspriifung durchgefihrt. Unsere Verantwortung nach diesen Vor-
schriften und Grundséatzen ist im Abschnitt ,Verantwortung des Abschlussprifers flr die
Priifung des Jahresabschlusses” unseres Bestatigungsvermerks weitergehend beschrieben.
Wir sind von dem Unternehmen unabhangig in Ubereinstimmung mit den deutschen handels-
rechtlichen und berufsrechtlichen Vorschriften und haben unsere sonstigen deutschen Be-
rufspflichten in Ubereinstimmung mit diesen Anforderungen erfiillt. Wir sind der Auffassung,
dass die von uns erlangten Prifungsnachweise ausreichend und geeignet sind, um als Grund-
lage fur unser Prifungsurteil zum Jahresabschluss zu dienen.
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Verantwortung der gesetzlichen Vertreter fiir den Jahresabschluss

Die gesetzlichen Vertreter sind verantwortlich fir die Aufstellung des Jahresabschlusses, der
den deutschen, flr Kapitalgesellschaften geltenden handelsrechtlichen Vorschriften in allen
wesentlichen Belangen entspricht, und dafiir, dass der Jahresabschluss unter Beachtung der
deutschen Grundsatze ordnungsmaRiger Buchflihrung ein den tatsachlichen Verhaltnissen
entsprechendes Bild der Vermdgens-, Finanz- und Ertragslage der Gesellschaft vermittelt.
Ferner sind die gesetzlichen Vertreter verantwortlich flir die internen Kontrollen, die sie in
Ubereinstimmung mit den deutschen Grundsatzen ordnungsmaRiger Buchfiihrung als not-
wendig bestimmt haben, um die Aufstellung eines Jahresabschlusses zu ermdglichen, der frei
von wesentlichen — beabsichtigten oder unbeabsichtigten — falschen Darstellungen ist.

Bei der Aufstellung des Jahresabschlusses sind die gesetzlichen Vertreter dafiir verantwort-
lich, die Fahigkeit der Gesellschaft zur Fortflihrung der Unternehmenstéatigkeit zu beurteilen.
Des Weiteren haben sie die Verantwortung, Sachverhalte in Zusammenhang mit der Fortfih-
rung der Unternehmenstatigkeit, sofern einschlagig, anzugeben. Dariiber hinaus sind sie dafiir
verantwortlich, auf der Grundlage des Rechnungslegungsgrundsatzes der Fortflihrung der
Unternehmenstétigkeit zu bilanzieren, sofern dem nicht tatsdchliche oder rechtliche Gegeben-
heiten entgegenstehen.

Verantwortung des Abschlusspriifers fiir die Priifung des Jahresabschlusses

Unsere Zielsetzung ist, hinreichende Sicherheit dariiber zu erlangen, ob der Jahresabschluss
als Ganzes frei von wesentlichen — beabsichtigten oder unbeabsichtigten — falschen Darstel-
lungen ist, sowie einen Bestatigungsvermerk zu erteilen, der unser Priifungsurteil zum Jah-

resabschluss beinhaltet.

Hinreichende Sicherheit ist ein hohes Malf? an Sicherheit, aber keine Garantie dafiir, dass eine
in Ubereinstimmung mit § 317 HGB unter Beachtung der vom Institut der Wirtschaftsprifer
{IDW) festgestellten deutschen Grundsétze ordnungsmafiger Abschlussprifung durchgefihr-
te Prifung eine wesentliche falsche Darstellung stets aufdeckt. Falsche Darstellungen kénnen
aus VerstoRRen oder Unrichtigkeiten resultieren und werden als wesentlich angesehen, wenn
verninftigerweise erwartet werden kénnte, dass sie einzeln oder insgesamt die auf der
Grundlage dieses Jahresabschlusses getroffenen wirtschaftlichen Entscheidungen von Adres-
saten beeinflussen.

Wahrend der Priifung tben wir pflichtgemaRes Ermessen aus und bewahren eine kritische
Grundhaltung. Darlber hinaus

identifizieren und beurteilen wir die Risiken wesentlicher — beabsichtigter oder unbeabsich-
tigter — falscher Darstellungen im Jahresabschluss, planen und fiihren Priifungshandlungen
als Reaktion auf diese Risiken durch sowie erlangen Priifungsnachweise, die ausreichend
und geeignet sind, um als Grundlage fur unser Prifungsurteil zu dienen. Das Risiko, dass
wesentliche falsche Darstellungen nicht aufgedeckt werden, ist bei VerstdRen héher als
bei Unrichtigkeiten, da VerstdRe betriigerisches Zusammenwirken, Falschungen, beabsich-
tigte Unvollstandigkeiten, irreflihrende Darstellungen bzw. das AuRerkraftsetzen interner
Kontrollen beinhalten kénnen.
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gewinnen wir ein Verstandnis von dem fir die Priifung des Jahresabschlusses relevanten
internen Kontrollsystem, um Priifungshandlungen zu planen, die unter den gegebenen
Umsténden angemessen sind, jedoch nicht mit dem Ziel, ein Prifungsurteil zur Wirksam-
keit dieses Systems der Gesellschaft abzugeben.

beurteilen wir die Angemessenheit der von den gesetzlichen Vertretern angewandten
Rechnungslegungsmethoden sowie die Vertretbarkeit der von den gesetzlichen Vertretern
dargestellten geschatzten Werte und damit zusammenhangenden Angaben.

ziehen wir Schlussfolgerungen iber die Angemessenheit des von den gesetzlichen Vertre-
tern angewandten Rechnungslegungsgrundsatzes der Fortflihrung der Unternehmensté-
tigkeit sowie, auf der Grundlage der erlangten Priifungsnachweise, ob eine wesentliche
Unsicherheit im Zusammenhang mit Ereignissen oder Gegebenheiten besteht, die bedeut-
same Zweifel an der Fahigkeit der Gesellschaft zur Fortfiihrung der Unternehmenstétigkeit
aufwerfen kénnen. Falls wir zu dem Schluss kommen, dass eine wesentliche Unsicherheit
besteht, sind wir verpflichtet, im Bestatigungsvermerk auf die dazugehd&rigen Angaben im
Jahresabschluss aufmerksam zu machen oder, falls diese Angaben unangemessen sind,
unser Prifungsurteil zu modifizieren. Wir ziehen unsere Schlussfolgerungen auf der Grund-
lage der bis zum Datum unseres Bestétigungsvermerks erlangten Priifungsnachweise. Zu-
kiinftige Ereignisse oder Gegebenheiten kdnnen jedoch dazu fiihren, dass die Gesellschaft
ihre Unternehmenstatigkeit nicht mehr fortflihren kann.

beurteilen wir die Gesamtdarstellung, den Aufbau und den Inhalt des Jahresabschlusses
einschlieRlich der Angaben sowie ob der Jahresabschluss die zugrunde liegenden Ge-
schéaftsvorfélle und Ereignisse so darstellt, dass der Jahresabschluss unter Beachtung der
deutschen Grundsétze ordnungsmaliger Buchfiihrung ein den tatséchlichen Verhéltnissen
entsprechendes Bild der Vermoégens-, Finanz- und Ertragslage der Gesellschaft vermittelt.

Wir erértern mit den fir die Uberwachung Verantwortlichen unter anderem den geplanten
Umfang und die Zeitplanung der Priifung sowie bedeutsame Prifungsfeststellungen, ein-
schlieRlich etwaiger Mangel im internen Kontrollsystem, die wir wahrend unserer Priifung
feststellen.

Disseldorf, den 14. Juni 2019 AN

KPMG AG
Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft

b A ey

W
Hemker Stelzer

Wirtschaftsprifer Wirtschaftsprifer

159



BSV Biosciences, Gmbh

Appendix 4
(seneral Engagement
[erms




1QA2LCO

DokID: 912791

All rights reserved. This form may not be reprinted, either in whole or in part, or copied in any manner,

without the express written consent of the publisher,
© IDW Verlag GmbH - Tersteegenstrale 14 - 40474 Diisseldorf

BSV Biosciences, Gmbh

[Translator's notes are in square brackets]

General Engagement Terms

Wirtschaftspriifer and Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaften
[German Public Auditors and Public Audit Firms]
as of January 1, 2017

1. Scope of application

{1) These engagement terms apply to contracts between German Public
Auditors  (Wirtschaftspritffer) or Germman Public Audit Firms
Wirt: prifungsgeselischaften) — hereinafter collectively referred to as
"German Public Auditors® — and their engaging parties for assurance
services, tax advisory services, advice on business matters and other
engagements except as otherwise agreed in writing or prescribed by a
mandatory rule.

(2) Third parties may derive claims from contracts between German Public
Auditors and engaging parties only when this is expressly agreed or results
from mandatory rules prescribed by law. In relation to such claims, these
engagement terms also apply to these third parties.

2. Scope and tion of the eng t

(1) Object of the engagement is the agreed service — not a particular
economic result. The engagement will be performed in accordance with the
German Principles of Proper Professional Conduct (Grundséatze ord-
nungsmagiger Berufsaustbung). The Geman Public Auditor does not
assume any management functions in connection with his services. The
German Public Auditor is not responsible for the use or implementation of
the results of his services. The German Public Auditor is entifled to make
use of competent persons to conduct the engagement.

(2) Except for assurance engagements (befriebswirtschaftliche Prifungen),
the consideration of foreign law requires an express written agreement.

(8) If circumstances or the legal situation change subsequent to the release
of the final professional statement, the German Public Auditor is not obli-
gated to refer the engaging party to changes or any consequences result-
ing therefrom.

3. The obligati of the ing party to perat

(1) The engaging party shall ensure that all documents and further infor-
mation necessary for the performance of the engagement are provided to
the German Public Auditor on a timely basis, and that he is informed of all
events and circumstances that may be of significance to the performance
of the engagement. This also applies to those documents and further
information, events and circumstances that first become known during the
German Public Auditor's work. The engaging party will also designate
suitable persons to provide information.

{2) Upon the request of the German Public Auditor, the engaging party
shall confirm the completeness of the documents and further information
provided as well as the explanations and statements, in a written statement
drafted by the German Public Auditor.

4. Ensuring independence

(1) The engaging party shall refrain from anything that endangers the
independence of the German Public Auditor’s staff. This applies throughout
the term of the engagement, and in particular to offers of employment or to
assume an executive or non-executive role, and to offers to accept en-
gagements on their own behalf.

(2) Were the performance of the engagement to impair the independence
of the German Public Auditor, of related firms, firms within his network, or
such firms associated with him, to which the independence requirements
apply in the same way as to the German Public Auditor in other engage-
ment relationships, the German Public Auditor is entitled to terminate the
engagement for good cause,

5. Reporting and oral information

To the extent that the German Public Auditor is required to present results
in writing as part of the work in executing the engagement, only that written
work is authoritative. Drafts are non-binding. Except as otherwise agreed,
oral statements and explanations by the German Public Auditor are binding
only when they are confirmed in writing. Statements and information of the
German Public Auditor outside of the engagement are always non-binding.

Lizensiert fir/Licensed to: KPMG AG | 5218980

6. Distribution of a German Public Auditor‘s professional statement

(1) The distribution to a third party of professional statements of the Ger-
man Public Auditor (results of work or extracts of the results of work wheth-
er in draft or in a final version) or information about the German Public
Auditor acting for the engaging party requires the German Public Auditor’s
written consent, unless the engaging party is obligated to distribute or
inform due to law or a regulatory requirement.

(2) The use by the engaging party for promotional purposes of the German
Public Auditor's professional statements and of information about the
Geman Public Auditor acting for the engaging party is prohibited.

7. Deficiency rectification

(1) In case there are any deficiencies, the engaging party is entitled to
specific subsequent performance by the Gemman Public Auditor. The
engaging party may reduce the fees or cancel the contract for failure of
such subsequent performance, for subsequent non-performance or unjusti-
fied refusal to perform subsequently, or for unconscionability or impossibil-
ity of subsequent performance. If the engagement was not commissioned
by a consumer, the engaging party may only cancel the contract due to a
deficiency if the service rendered is not relevant to him due to failure of
subsequent performance, to subsequent non-performance, to unconscion-
ability or impossibility of subsequent performance. No. 9 applies to the
extent that further claims for damages exist.

{(2) The engaging party must assert a claim for the rectification of deficien-
cies in writing (7Textform) [Transiators Note: The German term “Textform”
means in writen form, but without requinng a signature] without delay.
Claims pursuant to paragraph 1 not arising from an intentional act expire
after one year subsequent to the commencement of the time limit under the
statute of limitations.

(3) Apparent deficiencies, such as clerical errors, arithmetical errors and
deficiencies associated with technicalities contained in a German Public
Auditor's professional statement (long-form reports, expert opinions etc.)
may be corrected — also versus third parties — by the German Public
Auditor at any time. Misstatements which may call into question the results
contained in a German Public Auditor's professional statement entitle the
Gemnan Public Auditor to withdraw such statement — also versus third
parties. In such cases the German Public Auditor should first hear the
engaging party, if practicable.

8. Confidentiality towards third parties, and data protection

(1) Pursuant to the law (§ [Article] 323 Abs 1 [paragraph 1] HGB [German
Commercial Code: Handelsgesetzbuch], § 43 WPO [German Law regulat-
ing the Profession of Wirtschaftsprifer: Wirtschafispriiferordnung), § 203
StGB [German Criminal Code: Strafgesetzbuch]) the German Public
Auditor is obligated to maintain confidentiality regarding facts and circum-
stances confided to him or of which he becomes aware in the course of his
professional work, unless the engaging party releases him from this confi-
dentiality obligation.

(2) When processing personal data, the German Public Auditor will observe
national and European legal provisions on data protection.

9, Liability

(1) For legally required services by German Public Auditors, in particular
audits, the respective legal limitations of liability, in particular the limitation
of liability pursuant to § 323 Abs. 2 HGB, apply.

(2) Insofar neither a statutory limitation of liability is applicable, nor an
individual contractual limitation of liability exists, the liability of the German
Public Auditor for claims for damages of any other kind, except for dam-
ages resulting from injury to life, body or health as well as for damages that
constitute a duty of replacement by a producer pursuant to § 1 ProdHaftG
[German Product Liability Act: Produkthaftungsgesetz], for an individual
case of damages caused by negligence is limited to € 4 million pursuant to
§ 54 a Abs. 1 Nr. 2 WPO.

(3) The Geman Public Auditor is entitled to invoke demurs and defenses
based on the contractual relationship with the engaging party also towards
third parties.
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{4) When multiple claimants assert a claim for damages arising from an
existing contractual relationship with the German Public Auditor due to the
German Public Auditor's negligent breach of duty, the maximum amount
stipulated in paragraph 2 applies to the respective claims of all claimants
collectively.

{5) An individual case of damages within the meaning of paragraph 2 also
exists in rejation to a uniform damage ariging from a number of breaches of
duty. The individual case of encomp: all consequences from
a breach of duty regardless of whether the damages occurred in one year
or in a number of successive years. In this case, multiple acts or omissions
based on the same source of error or on a source of error of an equivalent
nature are deemed to be a single breach of duty if the matters in question
are legally or economically connected to one another. In this event the
claim against the German Public Auditor is limited to € 5 million. The
limitation to the fivefold of the minimum amount insured does not apply to
compulsory audits required by law.

{6) A claim for damages expires if a suit is not filed within six months
subsequent to the written refusal of acceptance of the indemnity and the
engaging party has been informed of this consequence. This does not
apply to daims for damages resulting from scienter, a culpable injury to life,
body or health as well as for damages that constitute a liability for replace-
ment by a producer pursuant to § 1 ProdHaftG. The right to invoke a plea
of the statute of limitations remains unaffected.

10. Supplementary provisions for audit engagements

{1) If the engaging party subsequently amends the financial statements or
management report audited by a German Public Auditor and accompanied
by an auditor's report, he may no longer use this auditor's report.

If the German Public Auditor has not issued an auditor's report, a reference
to the audit conducted by the German Public Auditor in the management
report or any other public reference is permitted only with the German
Public Auditor's written consent and with a wording authorized by him.

{2) I the German Public Auditor revokes the auditor's report, it may no
longer be used. If the engaging party has already made use of the auditor's
report, then upon the request of the German Public Auditor he must give
notification of the revocation.

(3) The engaging party has a right to five official copies of the report.
Additional official copies will be charged separately.

11. Supplementary provisions for assistance in tax matters

{1) When advising on an individual tax issue as well as when providing
ongoing tax advice, the German Public Auditor is entitied to use as a
correct and complete basis the facts provided by the engaging party —

peci numerical di this also applies to bookkeeping en-
gagements, Nevertheless, he is obligated to indicate to the engaging party
any errors he has identified.

{2) The tax advisory engagement does not encompass procedures required
to observe deadlines, unless the German Public Auditor has explicitly
accepted a corresponding engagement. In this case the engaging party
must provide the German Public Auditor with all documents required to
observe deadlines — in particular tax assessments — on such a timely basis
that the German Public Auditor has an appropriate lead time.

{3) Except as agreed otherwise in writing, ongoing tax advice encompasses
the following work during the contract period:

a) preparation of annual tax returns for income tax, corporate tax and
business tax, as well as wealth tax retums, namely on the basis of the
annual financial statements, and on other schedules and evidence
documents required for the taxation, to be provided by the engaging
party

b) ination of tax
@

c) negotiations with tax authorities in connection with the returns and
assessments mentioned in (a) and (b)

ts in relation to the taxes referred to in

d

support in fax audits and evaluation of the results of tax audits with
respect to the taxes referred to in (a)

e) participation in petition or protest and appeal procedures with respect
to the taxes mentioned in (a).

In the aforementioned tasks the German Public Auditor takes into account
material published legal decisions and administrative interpretations.

{4) I the German Public auditor receives a fixed fee for ongoing tax advice,
the work mentioned under paragraph 3 (d) and (e) is to be remunerated
separately, except as agreed otherwise in writing.

{5) Insofar the German Public Auditor is also a German Tax Advisor and
the German Tax Advice Remt ion F ion (Steuerber g ]
tungsverordnung) is to be applied to calculate the remuneration, a greater
or lesser remuneration than the legal default remuneration can be agreed
in writing (Textform).
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(6) Work relating to special individual issues for income tax, corporate tax,
business tax, valuation assessments for property units, wealth tax, as well
as all issues in relation to sales tax, payroll tax, other taxes and dues
requires a separate engagement, This also applies to:

a) work on non-recurring tax matters, e.g. in the field of estate tax, capital
transactions tax, and real estate sales tax;

b) support and representation in proceedings before tax and administra-
tive courts and in criminal tax matters;

¢) advisory work and work related to expert opinions in connection with
changes in legal form and other re-organizations, capital increases
and reductions, insolvency related business reorganizations, admis-
sion and retirement of owners, sale of a business, liquidations and the
like, and

d) support in complying with disclosure and documentation obligations.

(7} To the extent that the preparation of the annual sales tax return is
undertaken as additional work, this includes neither the review of any
special accounting prerequisites nor the issue as to whether all potential
sales tax allowances have been identified. No guarantee is given for the
complete compilation of documents to claim the input tax credit.

12, Electronic communication

Communication between the German Public Auditor and the engaging
party may be via e-mail. In the event that the engaging party does not wish
to communicate via e-mail or sets special security requirements, such as
the encryption of e-mails, the engaging party will inform the German Public
Auditor in writing (7extform) accordingly.

13. Remuneration

{1) In addition to his claims for fees, the German Public Auditor is entitled to
claim reimbursement of his expenses; sales tax will be billed additionally.
He may daim appropriate advances on remuneration and reimbursement
of expenses and may make the delivery of his services dependent upon the
complete satisfaction of his claims. Multiple engaging parties are jointly and
severally liable.

{2) If the engaging party is not a consumer, then a set-off against the
German Public Auditor's claims for rer ion and reimbt it of
expenses is admissible only for undisputed claims or claims determined to
be legally binding.

14. Dispute Settlement

The Gemman Public Auditor is not prepared to participate in dispute settle-
ment procedures before a consumer arbitration board (Verbraucherschiich-
tungsstelle) within the meaning of § 2 of the German Act on Consumer
Dispute Settlements (Verbraucherstreitheilegungsgesetz).

15. Applicable law

The contrect, the performance of the services and all claims resulting
therefrom are exclusively govemed by German law.
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The KPMG Center, 9/F

6787 Ayala Avenue, Makati City
Philippines 1226

Telephone +63 (2) 885 7000
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING
WITH THE BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
BSV BioScience Philippines, Inc,

3805 One San Miguel Ave. Condominium
San Miguel Ave. Cor Shaw Bivd.

Pasig City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BSV BioScience Philippines,
Inc. as at and for the year ended December 31, 2018, on which we have rendered our
report dated June 19, 2019.

In compliance with Revenue Regulations V-20, we are stating that no partner of our Firm
is related by consanguinity or affinity to the president, manager or principal stockholder
of the Company.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

G.YU

artner
CPA License No. 108798
SEC Accreditation No. 1574-A, Group A, valid until August 11, 2019
Tax [dentification No. 225-454-652
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-35-2018

Issued September 20, 2018; valid until September 19, 2021
PTR No. MKT 7333641

Issued January 3, 2019 at Makati City

June 19, 2019
Makati City, Metro Manila
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
BSV BioScience Philippines, Inc.

3805 One San Miguel Ave. Condominium
San Miguel Ave. Cor Shaw Blvd.

Pasig City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BSV BioScience Philippines, Inc.

(the “Company”), which comprise the statements of financial position as at

December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the statements of comprehensive income,
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the year then ended
and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly in all material
respects the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 and
its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standard (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audits of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in arcc * | with thaea ranniremants and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit ..Jence we h :nt and
appropriate to provide a basis fo )pinion. -
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Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements, which indicates that the
Company incurred a capital deficiency of P21.86 million as at December 31, 2018. This
condition indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The future funding requirements
of the Company are expected to be met through net cash inflows generated from
operating activities and the continuing financial support of Bharat Serums & Vaccines
Limited, the parent company, which it has confirmed to enable the Company to continue
as a going concern. We conducted sufficient audit procedures to verify the validity of the
aforementioned plan. The accompanying financial statements do not include any
adjustment that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsibie for éverseeihgf\_t.he Company’s financial
reporting process. o
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial StatementL/ C

P .
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance abou;»wbetﬁer the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstafement, whether due to fraud or
errar, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= QObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company'’s internal control.

166



BSV Biosciences Philippines, Inc.

kPt

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our apinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
.underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations
No. 15-2010 of the Bureau of Internal Revenue

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 17 to the financial
statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such supplementary information is
the responsibility of management. The supplementary information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our
opinion, the supplementary information is fairly sated in all material respects in relation
to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

LOG. YU

Partner ‘
CPA License No. 108798
SEC Accreditation No. 1574-A, Group A, valid until August 11, 2019
Tax identification No. 225-454-652
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-35-2018

Issued September 20, 2018; valid until September 19, 2021
PTR No. MKT 7333641

Issued January 3, 2019 at Makati City

./‘

June 19, 2019
Makati City, Metro Manila
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The management of BSV BioScience Philippines, Inc. (the “Company”) is
responsible for all information and representations contained in the Annual Income
Tax Return for the year ended December 31, 2018. Management is likewise
responsible for all information and representations contained in the financial
statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax Return covering the same
reporting period. Furthermore, Management is responsible for all information and
representations contained in all the other tax returns filed for the reporting period
including, but not limited, to the withholding tax returns and any and all other tax
retuns.

In this regard, Management affirms that the attached audited financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2018 and the accompanying Annual income Tax
Return are in accordance with the books and records of the Company, complete and
correct in all material respects. Management likewise affirms that:

(@)  the Annual Income Tax Return has been prepared in accordance with the
provisions of the National Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent
tax regulations and other issuances of the Department of Finance and the
Bureau of Internal Revenue;

(b)  any disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the preparation of
financial statements pursuant to Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and
the preparation of the income tax return pursuant to tax accounting rules has
been reported as reconciling items and maintained in the Company’s books
and records in accordance with the requirements of Revenue Regulations No.
8-2007 and other relevant issuances; and

{c) the Company has filed all applicable tax retumns, reports and statements
required to be filed under Philippine tax laws for the reporting period, and all

taxes and other impositions shown thereon to be due and payable have been
paid for the reporting period, except those contested in good faith.

e

R

AN N B AR Srn R R R W b WA e VNS Al Y

Treasurer

Signed this _day of 2019

168









BSV Biosciences Philippines, Inc.

BSV BIOSCIENCE PHILIPPINES, INC.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Years Ended December 31

2018 2017
CAPITAL STOCK - P1 par value
Authorized - 1,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding - 9,350,000 shares P9,350,000 P9,350,000
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)
Balance at beginning of the period 3,396,563 (87,249)
Net income (loss) for the period (34,607,068) 3,483,812
Balance at end of the period (31,210,505) 3,396,563
Balance at December 31, 2018 (P21,860,505) P12,746,563

See Notes to the Financial Statements.
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BSV BIOSCIENCE PHILIPPINES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

Note 2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before income tax (P39,201,374) P4,956,182
Adjustments for:

Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) 16 15,314,353 (4,169,156)

Depreciation and amortization 8 9 969,480 296,352
Operating income (loss) before working capital

changes (22,917,541) 1,083,378
Decrease (Increase) in:

Receivables 11,605,409 (67,991,746)

Inventories (16,888,584) (79,265,064)

Prepayments and other current assets (7,637,097) (5,316,081)
Increase (Decrease) in:

Trade payables and accrued expenses 3,500,723 147,030,182

Due to related parties 1,926,897 14,375,537
Cash generated (used) from operations (30,410,193) 9,916,206
Income tax paid - (221,623)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (30,410,193) 9,694,583
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of:

Property and equipment 8 (485,868) (1,249,946)

Intangible asset 9 - (2,754,000)
Cash used in investing activities (485,868) (4,003,946)
CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY
Proceeds from advances from related parties 10 55,734,800 -
NET INCREASE IN CASH 24,838,739 5,690,637
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 15,040,637 9,350,000
CASH AT END OF YEAR P39,879,376 P15,040,637

See Notes to the Financial Statements.
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BSV BIOSCIENCE PHILIPPINES, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Reporting Entity

BSV BioScience Philippines, Inc. (the “Company”) was registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 11, 2016 primarily to own,
manage, operate and engage in all acts associated in the conduct of business of
manufacturers, researchers, importers, druggist, distributors, and dealers in
pharmaceutical, biological, biotech, medical, cosmetic, nutraceuticals, medical
devices, and chemical products; to research, develop, manufacture, process,
purchase, market, store, repack, sell, import, export, or otherwise distribute in
wholesale, drugs, medicines, diagnostics, injectable biological, pharmaceutical, and
biotechnology products and preparations of all kinds and description and articles,
compounds, oils, paints, pigments, and color grinders, makers; and to establish and
maintain laboratories, plants, and other facilities for the manufacture or repacking on
a commercial basis of such products and supplies; to import, buy, sell and generally
deal in all kinds of machinery, equipment, in proprietary articles of all kinds and of
electrical, chemical photographical, scientific apparatus, appliances and instruments
as well as in raw materials in bulk, compounds, extracts and other chemicals or
ingredients required for such manufacturing operations; to research, develop, and
conduct tests and clinical trials for medical treatments; and to provide technical and
management advice to physicians, dentists, nurses, pharmacists, hospitals,
pharmacies and similar healthcare professionals and establishments.

The Company is 99% owned by Bharat Serums & Vaccines Limited (the “Parent
company”), a company incorporated in India. The rest is owned by individuals.

On April 16, 2018, the Company amended its Articles of Incorporation and By-laws.
Its secondary purpose was amended to include training to medical
representatives/territory managers, whose primary purpose is to introduce and
promote company’s product to qualified personnel by informing them of the products’
important feature and benefit. Effective April 1, 2019, the Company'’s fiscal year was
amended to begin on the first day of April and end on the last day of March of each
year.

Status of Operations

The financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will
continue as a going concern. The Company incurred a capital deficiency of
P21.86 million as at December 31, 2018. This condition indicates that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. The future funding requirements of the Company are
expected to be met through net cash inflows generated from operating activities and
the continuing financial support of the Parent company which it has confirmed to
enable the Company to continue as a going concern.

The Company's registered office address is located at 3805 One San Miguel Ave.
Condominium, San Miguel Ave, corner Shaw Blvd., Pasig City.
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2. Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRSs). PFRSs are based on International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB). PFRSs which are issued by the Financial Reporting Standards
Council (FRSC), consist of PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PASs), and
Philippine Interpretations.

This is the first set of the Company's financial statements in which PFRS 15,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers and PFRS 9, Financial Instruments have
been applied. Changes to significant accounting policies are described in Note 3.

The Company qualifies as a Small and Medium-sized Entity (SME) based on the
criteria set by the SEC. However, as provided under the Securities Regulation Code
Rule 68, As Amended, the Company availed of the exemption from the mandatory
adoption of the PFRS for SMEs on the basis that the Company is a subsidiary of a
parent company whose country has a probable convergence plan with IFRS.

The accompanying financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors (BOD) on June 18, 2019.

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis of
accounting.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Company's
functional currency. All financial information presented in Philippine peso has been
rounded to the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.

Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with PFRSs requires
management to make judgments, estimates and use assumptions that affect the
application of policies and the amounts reported in the financial statements. The
judgments, estimates and assumptions used in preparing the accompanying financial
statements are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and
circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Judgments, estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised
and in any future periods affected.
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Judgments

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has
made the judgment below, apart from those involving estimations, that has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

Classification of Financial Instruments

The Company exercises judgment in classifying a financial instrument, or its
component parts, on initial recognition as either a financial asset, a financial liability
or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement and the definitions of a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity
instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form,
governs its classification in the statement of financial position.

In addition, the Company classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others,
whether the asset is quoted or not in an active market. Included in the evaluation on
whether a financial asset is quoted in an active market is the determination on
whether quoted prices are readily and regularly available, and whether those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length
basis.

Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease

The Company uses its judgment in determining whether an arrangement contains a
lease, based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date, and makes
assessment on whether the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset
or assets, the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset and the arrangement
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the
Company.

Operating Lease
The Company as Lessee. The Company has entered into lease arrangements as a
lessee. The Company has determined that the lessors retain all the risks and
rewards of ownership on the leased assets, thus, the said leases are classified as an
operating lease.

Rent expense recognized in profit or loss by the Company for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to P943,211 and P777,111, respectively
(see Note 14).

Determining the Timing of Recognizing Revenue

The Company uses its judgment in determining the timing of the transfer of control
on the goods that it delivered and services that it rendered. The Company
determined that the control is transferred for sale of goods upon customer's
acceptance.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at a point in time when the control of the
goods has transferred to the customer, being at the point the customer received and
accepted the goods at their premises.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred taxes at the reporting date
and reduces deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are
determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences. If the
amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognize a deferred tax
asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary
differences, are considered, based on the business plans of the Company.
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The Company has deferred tax assets amounting to P3,343,559 and nil as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The Company has unrecognized
deferred tax assets in respect of net operating loss carry-over (NOLCO) to
P7,173,161 and nil as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, since
management does not expect to have sufficient future taxable profit against which
the Company can utilize benefit therefrom (Note 15).

Estimates

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation and
uncertainty at reporting date that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below:

Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Equipment, and Intangible Asset

The Company reviews at each reporting date the estimated useful lives (EUL) of
property and equipment, and intangible asset based on the period over which the
assets’ future economic benefits are expected to be utilized or consumed. These are
revised if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear,
and technical and commercial obsolescence.

In addition, estimation of the useful lives of property and equipment, and intangible
asset is based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical
evaluation and experience with similar asset. It is possible however, that future
results of operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates
brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above. A reduction in the EUL
would increase the recorded depreciation and amortization expense and decrease
noncurrent assets (see Note 8).

The EUL of the Company’s property and equipment, and intangible asset are as
follows:

Number of Years

Computer eguipment 3
Leasehold improvements 2 - 3 or lease term,
whichever is shorter
Office furniture and fixtures 5-10
Intangible asset 5

The carrying amount of the Company’s property and equipment amounted to
P1,020,782 and P953,594 as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively
(see Note 8). As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, capitalized software net of
accumulated amortization amounted to P2,203,200 and P2,754,000, respectively
(see Note 9).

Estimating Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an
item of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset may be impaired.
Determining the value of the assets, which requires the determination of future cash
flows expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of
such assets, requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that can
materially affect the financial statements. Any resulting impairment loss could have a
material impact on the financial position and financial performance of the Company.
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The preparation of the estimated future cash flows involves estimations and
assumptions. While the Company believes that its assumptions are appropriate and
reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect the
Company's assessment of the recoverable amounts and may lead to future
additional impairment charges.

The Company assessed that its property, plant and equipment and capitalized
software are not impaired as at the reporting date.

Estimating Provisions and Contingencies

Provision is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to reflect the current
best estimates. These estimates are based on consultations with independent
outside parties, historical experience and other available data. While management
believes that the bases of these estimates are reasonable and appropriate,
significant differences in actual experience or assumption may materially affect the
recorded provision.

The estimate of the probable costs for the resolution of possible claims has been
developed in consultation with outside legal counsel handling the Company's
defense in these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential results
Management and its legal counsel believe that the Company has substantial legal
and factual bases for its position and is of the opinion that losses arising from these
legal claims, if any, will not have a material adverse impact on the financial
statements as at December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Estimating Impairment Losses on Receivables

The Company uses the expected credit loss model (ECL) in estimating the level of
allowance which includes forecasts of future events and conditions. A credit loss is
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (the difference between the cash
flows that the Company expects to receive). The model represents a
probability-weighted estimate of the difference over the remaining life of the
receivables. The maturity of the Company's receivables is less than one year so the
lifetime expected credit loss and the 12-month expected credit losses are similar. In
addition, management assessed the credit risk of the receivables as at the reporting
date as low, therefore the Company did not have to assess whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred. An increase in the allowance for impairment
losses would increase the recorded general and administrative expenses and
decrease current assets.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, allowance for impairment losses on receivables

amounted to nil. The carrying amount of receivables amounted to P56,386,337 and
P67,991,746 as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (Note 5).
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3. Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years
presented in these financial statements, except for the changes in accounting
policies as explained below.

Adoption of New Standards and Interpretations

The Company has adopted the following amendments to standards starting
January 1, 2018 and accordingly, changed its accounting policies. Except as
otherwise indicated, the adoption of these amendments to standards did not have
any impact on the Company’s financial statements. These are as follows:

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014) replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and supersedes the previously published
versions of PFRS 9 that introduced new classifications and measurement
requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting model (in 2013).

PFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of
financial assets that reflects the business model in which assets are managed
and their cash flow characteristics, including a new forward-looking expected
credit loss model for calculating impairment, and guidance on own credit risk on
financial liabilities measured at fair value. PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge
accounting requirements that represent a major overhaul of hedge accounting
and introduces significant improvements by aligning the accounting more closely
with risk management.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

The following table shows the original measurement categories under PAS 39
and the new measurement categories under PFRS 9 for each class of the
Company’s financial assets as at January 1, 2018.

Original New

Original New Carrying Carrying

Classification Classification Amount Amount

Financial Assets under PAS 39 under PFRS 9 under PAS 39 under PFRS 9

Cash Loans and Amortized cost P 15,040,637 P15,040,637
receivables

Receivables Loans and Amortized cost 67,991,746 67,991,746
receivables

Total Financial Assets £83,032,383 P83,032,383

Impairment of Financial Assets

PFRS 9 replaces the incurred loss model in PAS 39 with an ECL model. The
new impairment model applies to financial assets measured at amortized cost.
For assets in the scope of PFRS 9 impairment model, impairment losses are
generally expected to increase and become more volatile. The Company has
assessed that the impact of providing ECL is immaterial. Thus, the Company has
determined that the application of PFRS 9's impairment requirements at
January 1, 2018 did not result in an additional allowance for impairment.

The Company has used an exemption not to restate comparative information for
prior periods with respect to classification and measurement (including
impairment) requirements. Accordingly, the information presented for 2017 does
not generally reflect the requirements of PFRS 9, but rather those of PAS 39.
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Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilities

The Company has not designated any financial liabilities at Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss (FVTPL). There are no changes in the classification and
measurement of the Company’s financial liabilities.

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, replaces PAS 11,
Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue, IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty
Programmes, |FRIC 18, Transfer of Assets from Customers and SIC-31,
Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services.

The new standard introduces a new and more comprehensive revenue
recognition model for contracts with customers which specifies that revenue
should be recognized when (or as) a company transfers control of goods or
services to a customer at the amount to which the company expects to be
entitled.

PFRS 15 requires a contract with a customer to be legally enforceable and to
meet certain criteria to be within the scope of the standard and for the general
model to apply. It introduces detailed guidance on identifying performance
obligations which requires entities to determine whether promised goods or
services are distinct. It also introduces detailed guidance on determining
transaction price, including guidance on variable consideration and consideration
payable to customers. The transaction price will then be generally allocated to
each performance obligation in proportion to its stand-alone selling price.
Depending on whether certain criteria are met, revenue is recognized over time,
in a manner that best reflects the entity's performance, or at a point in time, when
control of the goods or services is transferred to the customer.

The standard does not apply to insurance contracts, financial instruments or
lease contracts, which fall in the scope of other PFRSs. It also does not apply if
two companies in the same line of business exchange non-monetary assets to
facilitate sales to other parties. Furthermore, if a contract with a customer is
partly in the scope of another PFRS, then the guidance on separation and
measurement contained in the other PFRS takes precedence.

The Company has adopted PFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method, with no
adjustment recognized at the date of initial application (January 1, 2018).
Accordingly, the information presented for 2017 has not been restated. It is
presented, as previously reported, under PAS 18 and related interpretations.
Additionally, the disclosure requirements in PFRS 15 have not generally been
applied to comparative information.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration. The interpretation clarifies that the transaction date to be used for
translation for foreign currency transactions involving an advance payment or
receipt is the date on which the entity initially recognizes the prepayment or
deferred income arising from the advance consideration. For transactions
involving multiple payments or receipts, each payment or receipt gives rise to
separate transaction date. The interpretation applies when an entity pays or
receives consideration in a foreign currency and recognizes a non-monetary
asset or liability before recognizing the related item.
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Financial Instruments

Non-denivative Financial Instruments

Financial instruments comprise cash, trade receivables, deposits, trade payables
and accrued expenses (excluding payable to government) and due to related parties.

Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability
in the statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of
financial assets, recognition and derecognition, as applicable, is done using trade
date accounting.

Initial Recognition of Financial Instruments. Financial instruments are recognized
initially at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration given or received.
The fair value of the consideration given or received is determined by reference to
the transaction price or other market prices. If such market prices are not reliably
determinable, the fair value of the consideration is estimated as the sum of all future
cash payments or receipts, discounted using the prevailing market rate of interest for
similar instruments with similar maturities. The initial measurement of financial
instruments, except for those designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),
includes transaction cost.

Financial Assets
Financial assets - Accounting Policy Applicable from January 1, 2018

Classification and Subsequent Measurement. On initial recognition, the Company
classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: amortized
cost; FVOCI - debt investment; FVOCI - equity investment; or FVTPL.

The classification depends on the Company’'s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case
all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting
period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method if
it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

= |t is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

= |ts contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Included in this category are the Company's cash, trade receivables and deposits.

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks which are stated at face value. Cash in
banks earns interest at the respective deposit rates.
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'‘Day 1’ Profit

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of
the other observable current market transactions for same instrument or based on a
valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the
Company recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value
(a ‘Day 1’ Profit) in profit or loss unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type
of asset. In cases where use is made of data which are not observable, the
difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in profit
or loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized.
For each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of
recognizing the ‘Day 1’ profit amount.

Business Model Assessment. The Company makes an assessment of the objective
of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because
this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

a. the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those
policies in practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on
earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile,
matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of
the assets;

b. how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s
management;

c. the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial
assets held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

d. how managers of the business are compensated - e.g., whether compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows
collected; and

e. the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Solely Payments of Principal and Interest Assessment. Principal is defined as the fair
value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration
for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending
risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This
includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet
this condition. [n making this assessment, the Company considers:

= contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

» terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate
features;

= prepayment and extension features; and

= terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets
(e.g. non-recourse features).
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Financial Assets
Financial assets - Accounting Policy Applicable before January 1, 2018

Classification and Subsequent Measurement. The Company classifies its financial
assets in the following categories: held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, available-for-
sale (AFS) financial assets, FVTPL financial assets, and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets are acquired and
whether the instruments are quoted in an active market. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets as at initial recognition and, where allowed
and appropriate, reevaluates such designation at every reporting date.

The measurement of financial assets subsequent to initial recognition is described
below:

* Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and maturities that are not quoted in
an active market. They are not entered into with the intention of immediate or
short-term resale and are not designated as AFS financial asset or financial
asset at FVTPL.

Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and receivables are carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment in
value. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate. Any interest earned on loans and receivables shall be recognized in profit or
loss on an accrual basis. Gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss when
the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the
amortization process.

The Company's cash and trade receivables are included in this category. Cash
includes cash on hand and cash in banks which are stated at face value.

Receivables have fixed or determinable payments and are not quoted in an
active market. These are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method less accumulated impairment. Interest is recognized by applying the
effective interest method, except for short-term receivables when the recognition
of interest would be immaterial.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company has no financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL, HTM investments and AFS financial assets.

Financial Liabilities

Classification and Subsequent Measurement. The Company classifies its financial
liabilities as either FVTPL financial liabilities or other financial liabilities. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial liabilities are incurred
and whether the instruments are quoted in an active market. Management
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition and, where
allowed and appropriate, reevaluates such designation at every reporting date.

PFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in PAS 39 for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities. The adoption of PFRS 9 does not have an effect
on the Company’s accounting policies related to financial liabilities.
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The measurement of financial instruments subsequent to initial recognition is
described below:

= Other Financial Liabilities. This category pertains to financial liabilities that are
not designated or classified as at FVTPL upon the inception of the liability. These
include liabilities arising from operations or borrowings. Other financial liabilities
are measured initially at fair value and are subsequently carried at amortized
cost, taking into account the impact of applying the effective interest rate method
of amortization (or accretion) for any related premium, discount and directly
attributable transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the amortization process.

The Company's trade payables and accrued expense, and due to related parties are
included in this category.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments
Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

= the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

« the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or

= the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and
either: (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred contro! of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes
the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Company could be required to pay.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or has expired. When an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in
profit or loss.

impairment of Financial Assets
Impairment of Financial Assets - Accounting Policy Applicable from January 1, 2018

PFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in PAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’
(ECL) model. The new impairment model applies to financial assets measured at
amortized cost, contract assets and debt investments at FVOCI, but not to
investments in equity instruments. Under PFRS 8, credit losses are recognized
earlier than under PAS 39.
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ECL is the probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the
financial instrument, representing the present value of expected cash shortfalls. The
Company applies either a 12-month ECL or a lifetime ECL. Lifetime ECL applies to
the financial assets that have experienced a significant increase in credit risk or are
already credit-impaired.

The Company considers the prabability of default upon initial recognition of asset
and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

» internal credit rating
= External credit rating (as far as available)

= Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligations

= Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the debtor

= Significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the debtor,
including changes in the payment status of debtor and changes in the operating
results of the debtor

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments and objective evidence of impairment exists. A financial asset is credit-
impaired when an event that has a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the
following observable data:

= significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
= g breach of contract such as default;

= it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or either financial
reorganization; or

» the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial
difficulties.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
The Company categorizes a receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make
payments or when it is no longer probable that the receivable will be collected.
Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage
in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries
are made, these are recognized in profit or loss.
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Impairment of Financial Assets - Accounting Policy Applicable before January 1,
2018

The Company assesses at reporting date whether a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred loss event) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

For assets carried at amortized cost such as loans and receivables, the Company
first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If no objective evidence of impairment has been identified for
a significant financial asset that was individually assessed, the Company includes
the asset as part of a group of financial assets pooled according to their credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses the group for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognized are not included in the collective assessment of
impairment.

Evidence of impairment for specific impairment purposes may include indications
that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing financial difficuity, defauit
or delinguency in principal or interest payments, or may enter into bankruptcy or
other form of financial reorganization intended to alleviate the financial condition of
the borrower.

For collective impairment purposes, evidence of impairment may include observable
data on existing economic conditions or industry-wide developments indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows of the related
assets.

If there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount of loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses) discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). Time value is generally not considered when the effect of discounting
the cash flows is not material.

The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through use of
an allowance account. The impairment loss for the period shall be recognized in
profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or
logs, to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
amortized cost at the reversal date.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is not
generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and
liabilities are presented at gross in the statement of financial position.
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Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures a number of financial and nonfinancial assets and liabilities
at fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received ta sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants and the measurement
date. The fair valued based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or, in the absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or most advantageous market must be accessible
to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1. quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

» Level2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing the categorization at the end of each
reporting period.

For purposes of the fair value disclosure, the Company has determined classes of
assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

Prepayments and QOther Current Assets

Prepayments are expenses paid in cash and recorded as assets before they are
used or consumed as the service or benefit will be received in the future.
Prepayments expire and are recognized as expense either with the passage of time
or through use or consumption.

Prepayments and other current assets include taxes paid in advance.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). The cost
of inventories, which is determined at actual cost includes expenditures incurred in
acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred in bringing these inventories to
their present location and condition.
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The NRV of finished goods is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognized
under “Cost of Sales” account in the statement of comprehensive income in the
period when the related revenue is recognized.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment losses, if any.

Initially, an item of property and equipment is measured at its cost, which comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working
condition and location for its intended use. Subsequent expenditures that can be
measured reliably are added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the asset, in excess of the originally
assessed standard of performance, will flow to the Company. All other subsequent
expenditures are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the
EUL of the property and equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized over
shorter of their EUL or the corresponding lease terms.

The assets’ residual values, EUL and depreciation methods are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted, if appropriate, to ensure that the period and depreciation
methods are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from those
assets. Any change in the expected residual values, EUL and depreciation methods
are adjusted prospectively from the time the change was determined necessary.

When an asset is disposed of, or is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal, the cost and accumulated
depreciation, amortization and impairment losses, if any, are removed from the
accounts and any resulting gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposai is
recognized in profit or loss.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with definite lives are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the
amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
reporting date. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for
by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and treated as
changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets
with finite lives is recognized in profit or loss in the expense category consistent with
the function of the intangible asset.

Intangible assets are derecognized upon disposal or when no further future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset is included in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognized.
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Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s nonfinancial assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment Ioss is
recognized in profit or loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of a nonfinancial asset is the greater of the asset's fair
value less costs to of disposal or value in use. The fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at measurement date. Value in use is the present value
of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or cash-generating
unit. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit, or CGU").

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows. If there is
an indication that a corporate asset may be impaired, then the recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset belongs. An impairment loss is
recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment iosses are recognized in profit or loss.

Capital Stock
Capital stock is classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the

issuance of capital stocks are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax
effects.

Retained Earnings (Deficit)

Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of periodic profit/loss, dividend
distributions, prior period adjustments and effect of changes in accounting policy and
capital adjustments, if any. When the retained earnings account has a debit balance,
itis called a “Deficit". A deficit is not an asset but a deduction from equity.

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholder is recognized as a liability in the
Company’s financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company'’s Board of Directors.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from Contracts with Cusfomers

The Company recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a good to a
customer. Transfer of control coincides with the customer’s acceptance and delivery
of goods and services. Revenue is measured at the transaction price which the
Company expects to be entitled, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized wiil not occur.

Revenue is recognized when the significant transfer of control of ownership have
been conveyed to the customer, recovery of consideration is probable, the
associated costs can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing management
involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Revenue is measured net of discounts and rebates.
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Revenue is recognized at a point in time when the control of the goods has

transferred to the customer, being at the point the customer received and accepted
the goods at their premises.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognized as it accrues using the effective interest rate method,
net of final tax.

Cost and Expense Recognition

Costs and expenses are decrease in economic benefits during the accounting period
in the form of outflows or decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in
decreases in equity, other than those relating to distributions to equity participants.
Costs and expenses are recognized in profit or loss when they are incurred and are
reported in the financial statements in the periods to which they relate.

Short-term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A
liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Operating Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fuffillment
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment is made after
inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

a. There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the
arrangement;

b. A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless that term of the
renewal or extension was initially included in the lease term;

c. There is a change in determination of whether fulfiiment is dependent on a
specified asset; or

d. There is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from
the date when the change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for
scenarios (a), (c) or (d) above, and at the date of renewal or extension period for
scenario (b).

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership
of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are
recognized as expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Philippine peso based on the
prevailing exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated in Philippine peso using
the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange gains or losses arising
from transaction of foreign currency denominated items at rates different from those
at which they were previously recorded are recognized in profit or loss.
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Nonmonetary items in foreign currencies that are measured in terms of historical cost
are translated using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis as either finance
income or finance cost depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a
net gain or net loss position.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is
recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current Tax. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, with certain exceptions. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable income
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be used.

Deferred tax is not recognized for:

» temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss;

= temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future; and

= taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rate that is expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for carryforward tax benefits of unused NOLCO,
unused tax credits from excess MCIT and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of
relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable temporary
differences is insufficient to recognize a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable
profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered,
based on the business plans of the Company. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable income will allow the deferred tax assets to be
recognized.

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the
same tax authority on the same taxable entity, and they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized
simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value
of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognized as interest expense. Where the Company expects a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the
receipt of the reimbursement is virtually certain. Provisions are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are
disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the financial statements
but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. Contingent assets are
assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the
financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that inflow of economic benefits
will arise, the asset and the related income are recognized in the financial statements
in the periods in which the change occurs.

Events After the Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company's
position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial
statements when material. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material.

Standards, Amendments to Standards and Interpretations lssued but Not Yet
Adopted
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. However, the
Company has not applied the following new or amended standards and
interpretations in preparing these financial statements. Unless otherwise stated,
none of these are expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

Effective January 1, 2019

= PFRS 16, Leases supersedes PAS 17, Leases and the related Philippine
Interpretations. The new standard introduces a single lease accounting model for
lessees under which all major leases are recognized on-balance sheet, removing
the lease classification test. Lease accounting for lessors essentially remains
unchanged except for a number of details including the application of the new
lease definition, new sale-and-leaseback guidance, new sub-lease guidance, and
new disclosure requirements.
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Practical expedients and targeted reliefs were introduced including an optional
lessee exemption for short-term leases (leases with a term of 12 months or less)
and low-value items, as well as the permission of portfolio-level accounting
instead of applying the requirements to individual leases. New estimates and
judgmental thresholds that affect the identification, classification, and
measurement of lease transactions, as well as requirements to reassess certain
key estimates and judgments at each reporting date, were introduced.

PFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.
Earlier application is permitted for entities that apply PFRS 15 at or before the
date of initial application of PFRS 16.

The Company is currently assessing the potential impact of PFRS 16 and plans
to adopt this new standard on the required effective date.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in PAS 12,
Income Taxes when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. Under the
interpretation, whether the amounts recorded in the financial statements will
differ to that in the tax return, and whether the uncertainty is disclosed or
reflected in the measurement, depends on whether it is probable that the tax
authority will accept the Company’s chosen tax treatment. If it is not probable
that the tax authority will accept the Company's chosen tax treatment, the
uncertainty is reflected using the measure that provides the better prediction of
the resolution of the uncertainty - either the most likely amount or the expected
value.

The interpretation also requires the reassessment of judgments and estimates
applied if facts and circumstances change - e.g., as a result of examination or
action by tax authorities, following changes in tax rules or when a tax authority's
right to challenge a treatment expires.

The interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2019. Earlier application is permitted. The interpretation can be
initially applied retrospectively applying PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, if possible without the use of hindsight, or
retrospectively with the cumulative effect recognized at the date of initial
application without restating comparative information.

The Company is currently assessing the potential impact of IFRIC 23 and plans
to adopt this interpretation on the required effective date.

Effective January 1, 2020

Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in PFRS Standards sets
out amendments to PFRS Standards, their accompanying documents and PFRS
practice statements to reflect the issuance of the revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting in 2018 (2018 Conceptual Framework). The 2018
Conceptual Framework includes:

a new chapter on measurement;

¢ guidance on reporting financial performance;

s improved definitions of an asset and a liability, and guidance supporting
these definitions; and,

» clarifications in important areas, such as the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting.
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Some Standards, their accompanying documents, and PFRS practice
statements contain references to, or quotations from, the International
Accounting Standards Committee (IASC)'s Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements adopted by the IASB in 2001 or the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in 2010. The amendments
update some of those references and quotations so that they refer to the 2018
Conceptual Framework, and makes other amendments to clarify which version of
the Conceptual Framework is referred to in particular documents.

These amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2020.

» Definition of Material (Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial
Statements and PAS 8). The amendments refine the definition of material. The
amended definition of material states that information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence the
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information
about a specific reporting entity. The amendments clarify the definition of
material and its application by:

(a) raising the threshold at which information becomes material by replacing the
term ‘could influence’ with ‘could reasonably be expected to influence’;

(b) including the concept of ‘obscuring information’ alongside the concept of
‘omitting’ and ‘misstating’ information in the definition;

(c) clarifying that the users to which the definition refers are the primary users of
general purpose financial statements referred to in the Conceptual
Framework;

(d) clarifying the explanatory paragraphs accompanying the definition; and

(e) aligning the wording of the definition of material across PFRS Standards and
other publications.

The amendments are expected to help entities make better materiality judgments
without substantively changing existing requirements.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2020. Earlier application is permitted.

4. Cash

The account as at December 31 consists of;

Note 2018 2017
Cash on hand P374,500 P -
Cash in banks 16 39,604,876 15,040,637

P39,879,376  P15,040,637

Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Interest income
earned related to these bank deposits amounted to P70,105 and P48,280 for the
period ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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5. Receivables

This account consists of:

Note 2018 2017

Trade receivables 16  P56,126,965 P67,991,746
Advances to officers and employees 259,372 -

P56,386,337 P67,991,746

Trade receivables are receivables from the Company's distributors. They are
secured, non-interest bearing and are generally settled on a 30 to 90 days term.

6. Inventories

Inventories at net realizable value consists of merchandise inventories bought from

the Company’s related party in India.

The cost of inventories amounted to P96,153,648 and P79,265,064 million as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. There were no write-down of inventories

for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

The cost of inventories sold included under the “Cost of Sales” account in the
statements of comprehensive income amounted to P247,113,462 and P72,705,231
for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 13).

7. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

This account consists of:

Note 2018 2017

Input VAT P7,797,449 P4,657,703

Prepaid taxes 5,028,729 658,378
Deposits 14, 16 127,000 -

P12,953,178 P5,316,081

Prepaid taxes account pertains to overpayment of income tax payable which can be

used by the Company in future years as a tax credit.
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8. Property and Equipment

This account consists of:

Computer Office Furniture Leasehold

Equipment and Fixtures  Improvements Total
Cost
Balance at December 31, 2016 P - P - P - P -
Additions during the year 535,970 522,394 191,582 1,249,946
Balance at December 31, 2017 535,970 522,394 191,582 1,249,946
Additions during the year 481,785 2,858 1,225 485,868
Balance at December 31, 2018 1,017,755 525,252 192,807 1,735,814
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at December 31, 2016 - - - -
Depreciation 129,100 47,823 119,429 296,352
Balance at December 31, 2017 129,100 47,823 119,429 296,352
Depreciation 284,719 81,357 52,604 418,680
Balance at December 31, 2018 413,819 129,180 172,033 715,032
Carrying Amount
December 31, 2017 P406,870 P474 571 P72,153 P953,594
December 31, 2018 P603,936 P396,072 P20,774 P1,020,782

Depreciation is recorded under the “Operating Expenses” account in the statement of

comprehensive income.

9. Intangible Asset

This account consists of:

Software Licenses

Cost

Balance at December 31, 2016 P -
Additions during the year 2,754,000
Balance at December 31, 2017 2,754,000
Additions during the year -
Balance at December 31, 2018 2,754,000
Accumulated Amortization

Balance at December 31, 2016 -
Amortization -
Balance at December 31, 2017 -
Amortization 550,800
Balance at December 31, 2018 550,800
Carrying Amount

December 31, 2017 P2,754,000
December 31, 2018 P2,203,200

Amortization is recorded under the “Operating Expenses” account in the statement of

comprehensive income.
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Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly, or
indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Such
relationships also exist between and/or among entities which are under common
control with the reporting enterprise, or between, and/or among the reporting
enterprise and its key management personnel, directors, or its stockholders. In
considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

The Company's related party transactions in 2018 and 2017 are summarized as

follows:
Outstanding Balances
Category/ Transactions Trade Due to
Transaction Year  Note During the Period Payables  Related Parties Terms and Conditi
Parent
= Purchase of 2018 a P261,494,317 P153,944,876 P - Demandcable; non- interest bearing;
inventories 2017 146,254 980 139,229,029 - unsecured; not impaired
= Advances 2018 b 55,734,800 - 55,734,800 Demandable; interest may be
2017 - - charged at the option of the creditor;
unsecured; not impaired
Entity under
Common Control
» Fung transfer 2018 c 2,288,011 6,524,851 Demandable: non- interest bearing;
2017 4,236 840 4,236,840 unsecured; not impaired
= COthers 2018 d - 10,225,946 Dernandabte; non- interest bearing;
2017 10,225.946 - 10,225,846 unsecured; not impaired
Total 2018 P153,944,876 P72,485,597

2017

P138,229,099

P14,462.786

a. The Company purchases inventories from its Parent company.

b. The Company received advances from its Parent company amounting to
$260,000 and $800,000 on May 2018 and July 2018, respectively, for working

c.

capital purposes.

The Company has payables to its affiliate, Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited

Philippines-Representative office, related to expense reimbursements.

Others contain payables due to purchases of accounting software and travel

expenses of the Company's General Manager and doctors for marketing

purposes.

11. Trade Payables and Accrued Expenses

This account consists of:

Note 2018 2017
Trade payables - related party 10 P153,944876 P139,229,099
Trade payables - third parties 1,833,919 -
Accrued expenses 4,268,386 3,087,831
Payable to government 1,259,026 544,096
Advances from employees 8,781 -

P161,314,988

P142,861,026

Accrued expenses include accruals for payroll, professional fees, sales and

marketing, travel, and other expenses.
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12. Revenue

The effect of initially applying PFRS 15 on the Company’s revenue from contracts
with customers is described in Note 3.

Revenue Stream

The Company currently generates revenue from importing, marketing and
distributing pharmaceutical products. These products are delivered and sold to
customers through sub-contracted distributors (the "Distributor”). The Distributor is
billed based on the amount of consideration received from end-customers less
distribution fees as specified in the contract.

The Company’s products are very unique and highly specialized that target specific
customers. As a strategy, these products are marketed under two (2) business units,
to wit:

Critical Care
The Critical Care strategic business unit handles two (2) sets of products.

The first group is the IV Antibiotics which are recommended for Use in Life-
threatening Infections. BSV IV Antibiotics cover both Invasive Fungal Infections
through the Amphotericin Line and combats Multi-Drug Resistant Gram-Negative
Bacterial infection through the product Polymyxin B. These are very powerful drugs
that can extend the lives of critically ill and infected patients.

The second group is highly specialized products which are the Immunoglobulins.
These are used as passive vaccines to fight autoimmune diseases like GBS/ Lupus/
Kawasaki Disease / Aplastic Anemia and others. The business unit also market a
life - saving product - Streptokinase, which is the gold standard Thrombolytic in
Acute Myocardial Infarction.

Women's Health

Women's Health strategic business unit carries both pharmaceutical products and
diagnostic devices towards the quality care of women from infertility, pregnancy,
child birth to menopause. The business unit is further divided into two (2) sales lines.
First is General Obstetrics and Gynecology that targets women under different
stages; pregnancy, adulthood and menopausal period. The second is Infertility Line
that after infertile couples.

Disaggregation of Revenue
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with
customers per business unit for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

2018 2017
Critical Care P267,493,0562 P84,818,206
Women's Health 41,501,352 3,181,930

P308,994,404 P88,000,136
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13. Cost of Sales

This account consists of:

Note 2018 2017
Beginning inventories P79,265,064 P -
Add purchases for the year 264,002,046 151,970,295
Available for sale 343,267,110 151,970,295
Less ending inventories 6 96,153,648 79,265,064

P247,113,462 P72,705,231

14. Lease Agreement

The Company entered into lease agreements, to wit:

Lessor Note  Lease Term Start Date Expiry Date
Anna Belinda Ramiscal a 12 months June 1, 2017 May 31,2018
12 months June 1, 2018 May 31, 2019

Amberland Corporation b 12 months September 6, 2017  September 5, 2018

12 months September 6, 2018  September 5, 2019
12 months February 12, 2018 February 11, 2018

a. The Company entered into a lease agreement with Anna Belinda Ramiscal to

use the office space located at Unit 3805 One San Miguel Avenue Office
Condominium Corp. with an office area of 168 square meters, located at 38"
floor and parking space of 12 square meters, located at 4™ floor. On March 2019,
the lease was renewed for another year extending until May 31, 2020.

The lease agreement for office space required the Company to pay security
deposits which are shown under “Prepayments and other current assets”
account in the statements of financial position amounting to P127,000 and nil as
at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 7).

The Company also entered a lease agreement with Amberland Corporation to
use three (3) parking slots with an area of 12.50 square meters each more or
less, located at the 4% floor of One San Miguel Avenue Condominium. The lease
agreement is effective until September 5, 2019.

On February 11, 2018, the company has entered another lease agreement with
Amberland Corporation to use a parking slot with an area of 12.50 square
meters, located at the 4th floor of One San Miguel Avenue Condominium.
On January 2019, the lease was renewed for another year extending until
February 11, 2020.

Total rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to
P943,211 and P777,111, respectively.

The future minimum lease payments under the lease agreements as at December 31
are as follows:

2018 2017
Less than one year P704,000 P726,000
More than one year and less than five years - 302,500

P704,000 P1,028,500
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The BOD oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk
management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

The following information discusses the Company's exposure to each of the above
risk and the objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risks.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows from the
Company's foreign-currency denominated assets or liabilities may fluctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Company’'s exposure to foreign currency risk relates primarily to movements of
the Philippine Peso against the United States dollar (US dollar). To manage this risk,
the Company closely monitors the movements in the exchange rates and regularly
assessed future foreign exchange rate movements.

The Company's outstanding dollar-denominated trade payables and due to related
parties as at December 31 and its Philippine peso equivalent are as follows:

US Dollar Peso
2018 $3,987,822 P209,679,681
2017 2,789,044 139,229,099

Spot rate as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 is P52.58 and P49.92, respectively.
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) amounted to (P15,314,353) and P4,169,156 in
2018 and 2017, respectively.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in
exchange rates of Philippine Peso against US Dollar, with all other variables held
constant.

Increase/Decrease in Effect on Income
Exchange Rate (Loss) before Tax Effect in Equity

2018 +5.33% (P11,175,927) (P7,823,149)
-5.33% 11,175,927 7,823,149
2017 +0.40% (556,916) (389,841)
-0.40% 556,916 389,841
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Company's cash in banks and receivables. The objective is to reduce the risk of loss
through default by counterparties.

The Company transacts only with recognized and creditworthy third parties with
whom it has already firmly established good business relationships. It is the
Company's policy that all customers who wish to contract on credit terms are subject
to credit verification procedures.
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With respect to credit risk arising from the Company’s cash in banks and trade
receivables, the Company’s exposure arises from the default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.
Individual risk limits are set originally based on Company’s evaluation of a
customer's creditworthiness and is updated based on status of the accounts
receivables and past collection experience.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.
The maximum credit exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

Note 2018 2017
Cash in banks 4 P39,574,876 P15,040,637
Trade receivables 5 56,126,965 67,991,746
Deposits 7 127,000

P95,828,841 P83,032,383

Expected Credit Loss Assessment as at December 31, 2018 under PFRS 9

The Company allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on data that is
determined to be predictive of the risk of loss (including but not limited to external
ratings, audited financial statements, management accounts and cash flow
projections and available press information about customers) and applying expected
credit judgment. Credit risk grades are defined using qualitative and quantitative
factors that are indicative of the risk of default.

Exposures within each credit risk grade are assessed based on delinquency and
actual credit loss experience. The Company considered both historical foss rate and
various forward-looking assumptions such as customer’s profile, industry and other
macro-economic data.

Trade Receivables
The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk for trade
receivables as at December 31, 2018:

Gross Impairment
Carrying Loss Credit-
Amount Allowance impaired
Current (not past due) P39,969,714 P - No
Past due:
1-30 days 10,456,505 -
31-60 days 534,500 - No
61-90 days 807,405 - No
Over 90 days but less than a
year 4,358,841 - No
P56,126,965 P -

Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over three years considering
circumstances at the reporting date. Any adjustment to the loss rates for forecasts of
future economic conditions are not expected to be material. The Company applies
the simplified approach in providing for expected credit losses prescribed by PFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision and applies a provision
matrix. The application of the expected loss rates to the receivables of the Company
does not have a material impact on the financial statements.

The maturity of the Company’s receivables is less than one year so the lifetime
expected credit losses and the 12-month expected credit losses are similar.
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Based on the historical default rates, the Company believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of receivables past due but not impaired because
such accounts relate to customers that have good payment records with the
Company. The Company’s exposure to credit risk on receivables are minimal since
its revenues from its activities are mostly supported by a letter of credit.

Impairment of Financial assets before January 1, 2018 (Prior to PFRS 9)

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate
of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The main components of
this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually significant
exposures, and a collective loss component established for groups of similar assets
in respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified. The collective loss
allowance is determined based on historical data of payment statistics for similar
financial assets.

The Company’'s exposure to credit risk arises from default of counterparty.
Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of receivables is its carrying amount
without considering collaterals or credit enhancements, if any. The Company has no
significant concentration of credit risk since the company deals with a large number
of homogenous trade customers. The Company does not execute any credit
guarantee in favor of any counterparty. The Company does not hold any collateral as
security for its receivables.

Based on Company’s assessment, no provision for impairment of receivables is
required as at December 31, 2017 as these are collectible in full.

As at December 31, 2017, none of the financial assets are impaired nor past due.

Cash in Banks

The Company held cash in bank of P39,574,876 and P15,040,637 as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The cash held with a bank are rated as
high grade.

Impairment on cash in banks has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis
and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Company considers that its
cash in banks have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the
counterparties and any ECL is expected to be immaterial.

The table below shows the credit quality of the Company's financial assets that are
neither past due nor impaired based on their historical experience with the
corresponding debtors.

As at December 31, 2018

Grade A Grade B Total
Cash in banks P39,574,876 P - P39,574,876
Trade Receivables - 56,126,965 56,126,965
Deposits 127,000 127,000
Total P39,574,876 P56,253,965 P95,828,841

As at December 31, 2017

Grade A Grade B Total
Cash in banks P15,040,637 P - P15,040,637
Trade receivables - 67,991,746 67,991,746
Deposits - - -
Total P15,040,637 P67,991,746 P83,032,383
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Grade A financial assets pertain to cash that are deposited in reputable banks and
those financial instruments from counterparties with good financial standing or
customers that consistently pay before the maturity date. Grade B includes financial
assets that are collected on their due dates even without an effort from the Company
to follow them up while financial assets which are collected on their due dates
provided that the Company made a persistent effort to collect them are included
under Grade C financial assets.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, there were no financial assets Graded as C.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations from its financial liabilities as they fall due.

The Company manages liquidity risk by forecasting projected cash flows and
maintaining a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility. Treasury controls
and procedures are in place to ensure that sufficient cash is maintained to cover
daily operational and working capital requirements. Management closely monitors
the Company’s future and contingent obligations and sets up required cash reserves
as necessary in accordance with internal requirements.

The following are the contractual matunties of financial liabilities:

Carrying  Contractual 6 Months

2018 Amount Cash Flow or Less
Trade payables and accrued

expenses* P160,055,962 P160,055,962 P160,055,962

Due to related parties 72,485,597 72,485,597 72,485,597

P232,541,559 P232,541,559 P232,541,559

* Accrued expenses shown above exclude payable to government amounting to P1,259,026.

Carrying Contractual 6 Months

2017 Amount Cash Flow or Less
Trade payables and accrued

expenses* P142,316,930 P142,316,930 P142,316,930

Due to related parties 14,462,786 14,462,786 14,462,786

P156,779,716 P156,779,716 P156,779,716

* Accrued expenses shown above exclude payable to government amounting to P544,096.

Fair Values
The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each
class of financial instruments:

Cash in Banks
The carrying amount approximates its fair value since it can be readily withdrawn
and used for operations.

Trade Receivables/Deposits/Trade Payables and Accrued Expenses/
Due to Related Parties

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, deposits, trade payables and accrued
expenses (except payable to government), and due to related parties approximate
their fair values due to the relatively short-term nature of these financial instruments.
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Capital Management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to increase the value of
shareholders’ investment and maintain high growth by applying free cash flows to
selective investments. The Company sets strategies with the objective of
establishing a versatile and resourceful financial management and capital structure.

The BOD has overall responsibility for monitoring of capital in proportion to risk. The
BOD seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position. The Company defines capital as total equity, which includes
capital stock and retained earnings (deficit). There were no changes in the
Company’s approach to capital management as at December 31, 2018. The
Company is not subject to externally-imposed capital requirements.

17. Supplementary Information Required under Revenue Regulation No. 15-2010 of
the BIR

In addition to the disclosures mandated under PFRSs, and such other standards
and/or conventions as may be adopted, companies are required by the BIR to
provide in the notes to the financial statements, certain supplementary information
for the taxable year. The amounts relating to such supplementary information may
not necessarly be the same with those amounts disclosed in the basic financial
statements which were prepared in accordance with PFRSs. The following are the
tax information required for the taxable year ended December 31, 2018:

A. VAT

Amount

1. Output VAT P37,079,328

Account title used

Basis of the Output VAT:
Vatable sales P308,994,404
2. Input VAT
Beginning of the year P4,657,390
Current year's domestic purchases:
a. Goods for resale 36,304,399
b. Goods other than for resale 1,694,624
Applications during the year 2,220,364
Total P44.876,777
Balance at the end of the year P7,797,449
3. Customs duties and tariff fees:
Landed cost P301,672,994
Customs duties paid or accrued 7,554,847
P309,227,841
B. Withholding Taxes
Amount
Tax on compensation and benefits P4,123,286
Expanded withholding taxes 379,236
P4,502,522
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C. All Other Taxes

Amount
Other taxes paid during the year recognized under
“Taxes and licenses” account under “operating
Expenses”
License and permit fees P1,065,676

D. Deficiency Tax Assessments and Cases

As at December 31, 2018, the Company does not have any outstanding tax
assessments nor involved in any tax cases.

Information on amounts of other taxes such as customs duties, tariff fees, and excise
taxes is not applicable since there are no transactions entered into by the Company
that would result to payment of accrual of such taxes.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of EUROLIFE REGEN PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

)

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of EUROLIFE REGEN PRIVATE
LIMITED (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accotding to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act, of
the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and its loss (financial performance
including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
\udit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (1CAT)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

4. We draw attention to Note 14 {c ) in the financial statements, which indicates that the Company incurred a net

loss of Rs.54,472 during the year ended March 31, 2019 and, as of that date, the Company’s current liabilities
exceeded its total assets by 1,63,25,562. These events or conditions, indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter
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Key Audit Matter

5. Key audit matters are those marters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance m our andit
of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audir of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

6. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.
Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

7. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Anaual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our anditor’s
report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

8. 1n connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsisteat with the financial
statements or out knowledge obrained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 1f, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that therc is 2 material misstatement of this other information;
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

9. 'The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the

preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

10.1n preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, marters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or ro cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

11. Those Board of Directors arc also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

12.Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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13. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

15.

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
crror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 1s
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. '

Obtain 20 understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circamstances. Under section 143(3)(0) of the Act, we are also responsible for explaining
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policics used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s usc of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 2
material unceriajnty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures

. - ; sures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 2 manner that
achjeves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

16.

The Company has not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly
reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2016 (‘the Osder’}, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(1 1) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
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18, As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

€)

4

g

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

the standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

on the basis of the written representations recerved from the directors and taken on record by the Board of
Ditectors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from being appointed as a director in
terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure-B”

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i the Company does not have any pending litigations which would itnpact its financial position.
i the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.
1. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

T~..D TT WAMATH & CO.

e

s

mber: 104050\

s ammaasaseman

Partner
Membership number: 34431

Place: Mumbai

Date:10,/07/2019
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’sReport of even date to the members of EUROLIFE REGEN
PRIVATE LIMITED, on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Annexure A

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the standalone

financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the mformation and explanations given to us

and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our

knowledge and belicf, we report that:

(1) (a) According to information and explanation given to us, the Company does not have any fixed

{iif)

)

)

v

assets.

(b) According to information and explanation given to us, the Company does not own any

immovable asscts.

According to information and explanation given to us,the Company does not have any inventory.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable. ' ’

According to information and explanation given to us,the Company has not granted any loan,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or other
parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the
provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b) and 3(iii)(c) ot the Order are not applicable:

According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any transaction
covered under Sections 185 and 186 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order
are not applicable.

In owr opinionand according to information and explanation provide to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
{(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v} of the
Order are not applicable.

In our opinionand according to information and explanation provide to us, The Central Government has
not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, for the
business activities carried out by the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order
are not applicable.

(vii) () In our opinionand according to information and explanation provide to us, The Company has generally

been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, incume-rax, value added tax, central sales tax, service-tax, GST, custom duty, cess and other
material statutory dues, as applicable to it, with the appropriate authorities. No undisputed amounts
payable in respect of aforesaid dues which were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) In our opinionand according to information and explanation provide to us, There are no material dues in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, value added tax, central sales tax,
service-tax, GST, custom duty, cess and other material statutor en deposited with
the appropriate authotities o account of any dispute.
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The Company has no loans or borrowings payable to a financial institution or a bank or
government and no dues payable to debenture-holders during the year. Accordingly, the
. . e . “ 2

provisions of clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including'debt
instruments) and the term loans during the vear have been applied by the Company for the
purposes for which they were raised.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
. . - I
material fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed

or reported during the period covered by our audit.

The provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the
company since the company 1s not a public company as defined under Section 2(71) of the Act.
Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Act, where applicable, and the
requisite details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc, 23 required by the applicable
accounting standards.

During the year, the company has not made any preferental allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly paid convertible debentures. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the
Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with them and
hence provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

For R.U.Kamath& Co.

L T SRR

35U

R.U.Kamath

Partner

Membership No. F-34431
Place: Mumbai
Date: 10 July, 2019
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

\We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting ofEUROLIFE REGEN PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAT). These responsibilities
include the design, i.mplcmcntatjon and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
cffectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy a;ld
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required

under the Act.
Auditors’ Responsibility

Ous L-esponsibiliry is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operatung effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness

of internal control based on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatemnent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

\We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's tnreraal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Compaany's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statemnents tn accordance with generally accepted accountng principles, and that receipts and expenditure of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud ma;'
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over fu)anciz;l
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31
March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
consideting the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

- —-s-assammET O CO-

oW

K.U.Bamain

Partner
M. No.034431

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10 July, 2019

UPIA Not- \FJo344 31TAAAQRDRATAK?
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Srandalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019

Eurolife Regen Private Limited

Particulars Note As at As at
— 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(Ocher non-current assets 4 .
Current Assets
Financial Asscts;

- Cash and cash [quivalents 5 - 57,031
TOTAL ASSETS - 57.031
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity Share Capiral 6 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Orher Equity 7 (2,63.25,562) (2,62.71,090)
Total Equity (1,63,25,562) (1,62,71,090)
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilittes
- Tradc Payables 8 . 2,559
- Borrowings 9 1,20,00,000 1.20.00.000
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilides
Other Current Liabilities 10 43,25 562 43.25.562
Total Liabilities 1,63,25,562 16328121
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES N 57,031
Significant Accounting Policies 3

The Notes are an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even daie
Fnar R 17 Kamath & Co.
ser 104¢

Partner
Membership No. 034431

Place : Mumbai
Date : 10 July 2019

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Ellrolifc Regen Private Limited

GINI73169MY
Ml

Bharat V Daftary
Director
DIN : 00011518

Place ; Mumbai
Date : 10 July 2019

13PTC251249

Gautam v Daftary
Dircctor
DIN : 00009326

UDIN N - 1903443 |ARARDXI54 2
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Eurotife Regen Private Limited

Sta Jlone dtatement of pro

1t and loss for the year ended 31, March, 2U1Y

{In Rupees)

Year ended 31 March

Partculars Note  Year Ended 31 March 2019 2018

Income

Other Income 1 2,559 -
Total Income 2,559 T
Expenses

FFinance Costs 12 27,531 13,20,000

Other Expenses 13 29,500 4.70.626
Towl Expenses 57,031 17,90,626
Profit Before Tax (54,472) {17.90,626)
Tax RExpense - .
Profit for the yeas (54,472) (17,90,626)
Other Comprehensive Income . ]
Total Comprehensive Income (54,472) {17,90,626}
Eamings Per Equity Share 14{a)

Basic (0.05) (1.79)

Diluted {0.05) {1.79
Significant Accounting Policies 3

The Notes are an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in aur report of even date
Fot R. U. Kamath & Co. For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Eurolife Regen Private Limited
CIN:U73100MH2013PTC251249

Dlasabh

R. U. Kamath Bharat V Daftu Gaumam V Daftary
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 034431 DIN : 00011518 \ DIN : 00009326

ber 10RO/

IMlace : Mumbai
Date : 10 July 2019

Place : Mumbai
Date : 10 July 2019
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iurplife Regen Private Limited
tandalone Cash Flow statement as at 31 March, 2019

(In Rupees)

Particulars Year ended 31 March 2019 Yea
ar ended 31 M
\. Cash Flow From Operating Activities : - arch 2018
Net Profit Before Tax (54,472) (17.90,626
s
.90,626)

Adjustment for :
Finance Cost (including fair value change in financial instruments)

Sundry balance Written/back (2,559) 3.83.356
Sundry Balance Written off - (2,59) -

Operating Profit/(Loss) Before Working Capital Changes (57,031) T e ~’"—’)
Other Assets ’ (13.07.270)
Other habilites _ B 12.95,000 19.05.600

Cash Generated From Operations (57,031) - +
Dircet Taxes paid ’ {(1,12,270)
Net Cash From Operating Activities —W wmm

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Net Cash Used In lnvesting Activities
C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Net Cash From Financing Activities )
Net Increase/ (Decrease) In Cash And Cash Equivalents (57,031) 12
Cash And Cash Equivalents as at 31st March, 2018 7031 (1,12,270)
2
Cash And Cash Equivalents as at 31st March, 2019 . 1,69,301
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 9) I - ~___%
B 031

Naores to Cash Flow Starement:

1. The ahove Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method.

This is the Cash Flow statement referred to in our report of even date

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Eurolife Regen Private Limited

r 10465 EIN:U;.’FOO H2013PTC251249
% A Amevesemm=m= maat v Daﬁary AFALIRAMIL ¥ uaf[a
Partner Director Director ”
Membership No, 034431 DIN: 00011518 DIN : 00009326
Place : Mumnbai Phce - Mumbai
Date : 10 July 2019 Date : 10 July 2019
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1) General information

Eurolife Regen Private Limited (the Company) is a private limited Company domiciled in India and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in the
business of research, development, manufacturing, marketing and sales of biological and
pharmaceutical products in India and overseas market.

2) Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation of standalone Ind AS Financial statements (“financial
statements™)

a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2019 have been
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting standards (Ind AS’) notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs in consultation with the National Advisory Committee on Accounting Standards,
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act’} read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Act.

The Financial statements are prepared in Indian rupees

Basis of preparation and presentation

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note
2B. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and undetlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in Balance Sheet based on current/non-current
classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

i) Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
i) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

iif) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to scttle 2 liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

i)  itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
i) it is held primazily for the purpose of trading,

i) 1t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period
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iv) there is no unconditional right to defer the setdement of the liabiliy for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other labilities as noncurrent. Deferred rax assets and liabilities are
classified as non-current assets and Lizbilities.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention unless otherwise indicated,
except for asset held for sale and Biological asset — measured at fair value less cost of sell

Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of the
Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Property, plant and equipmeant (“PPE”)

I)  Recognition and Measurement

i) Items of Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of Property, plant and equipment
compiises its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or
levies and any directy attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for
its intended use and any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at purchase
price. Cost of the assets also includes interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of
qualifying fixed assets up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use incurred up to
that date.

iy If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of Property, plant and
equipment.

iify  Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property plant and equipment is recognised in
statement of profit and loss.

iv)  Cost of Items of Property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use as on the
balance sheet date, is disclosed as capital work in progress. Advances given towards
acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at cach balance sheet date are
disclosed as Capital Advance under Other non current assets.

II) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to fixed assets is capitalised only if such expenditure results in
an increase in the future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of
performance.

1II) Depreciation and Amortisation:

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of PPE over its useful life
and is provided on a straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribed under Schedule II to
the Act or as per technical assessment. The residual values, useful lives and method of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) 1s provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date
on which is asset is ready to use /(disposed of). Freehold land is not depreciated.

218



Eurolife Regen Private Limited

Eurolife Regen Private Limited
Notes to the Standalone IND AS inancial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2019

Currency in Indian Rupees

‘Tangible Assets Useful Life
mchuld Land Amortzed over the period of Lease
Buildings 5 years to 60 years T
Plant and Machinery/  factory  equipment/ | 8 years to 20 years
Laboratory equipment
Computers and Accessorics 3 years
Flectrical Installations 10 vears

[Furniture and Fixtures

10 to 15 years

Vehicles 8 years

Office Equipment’s 5 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the useful life of assets or the lease term, whichever is

lower.

Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives (not being greater than the useful life envisaged in Schedule II to the Act) unless it is reasonably
certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, in which case th‘e
depreciation rates applicable for similar assets owned by the Company are applied.

The useful lives are reviewed by the management at each financial year-end and revised, if appropriate.
In case of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the revised remaining useful

life.
b) Intangible Assets:

I) Recognition and measurement
Research and Development
Expenditure on research activities is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Development expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the
product or process is technically and commerctally feasible, future economic benefits are
probable and the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development
and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent
to initial recognition, development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets, such as computer software and trademarks and patents, that are
acquited by the Company and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

1) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred

III) Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual
values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives and 1s generally recognised
in profit or loss. The amortsation period and the amortisation method for finite-life intangible
assets is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, 1f appropriate.
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d)

e

The estimated useful lives for current and comparative periods are as follows:

Assets Useful Life T

Patents and technical know-how 10 Years

Computer sofrware 05 Years
Operating leases

Assets taken/given on lease under which substantially all risks and rewards of ownership are
effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating lease. Lease payments/receipts under
operating leases are recognised as expenses/income on straight line basis over the primary period of
lease only if lease rentals are not linked to inflation in accordance with the respective lease agreernents.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or Cash generating units (“CGU”). The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of
its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assesstents of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. An impairment loss
is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Government grants and subsidies

Grants related to depreciable assets are treated as deferred income which is recognised in the
Statement of profit and loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of the asset. Such
allocation to income is usually made over the periods and in the proportions in which depreciation on
related assets is charged. Government Grants of revenue nature is reduced from related expenses in
the statement of Profit and Loss in the year of its receipt or when there is a reasonable assurance of its
being received.

Financial instruments

Recognition initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial habilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
« amortised cost;

*+  FVOCI -debt investment;

= FVOCI -equity investment; or

< FVIPL
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f)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated
as FVOCI — equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described
above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial
recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets
the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which 2 financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale
of the assets;

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those risks are managed;

how managers of the business are compensated -e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the
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assets. Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is cvaluated
on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest. For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial
asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ 1s defined as consideration for the time value of money and for
the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profir
margn.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows that it would not meert this condition. In mazking this assessment, the Company considers:

*  contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
¢ terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
*  prepayment and extension features; and

* terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (=g non-recourse
features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the prncipal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of
the contract Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its
contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substangally
represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contracrual interest (which may also
include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: subsequent measuremnent and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets arc subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss,

Financial assets at amortised  These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

cost effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impatrment
losses. Intetest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measuced at fair value. Interest income
under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCIL. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss,

Equity investments at FVOCI  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, A financial liability is
classified as at FVIPL if it is classified as held-for trading, or it is 2 derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gains or loss on derecognition
is also recognized in profit or loss.
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h)

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substandally all of the nsks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers not retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expired.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when it terms are modified and the cash flow
under the modified terms are substanually different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and setde the liability
simultaneously.

Equity instcuments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual
atrangements entered into and the definitions of an equity instrument. An equity instrument s any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its
liabilities and includes no obligation to deliver cash or other financial assets.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Company in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of those
tangible fixed assets which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use are capitalised. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss of the period in which they are incurred.

Investments

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the
date on which such investments are made, are classified as current investients. All other investments
are classified as long-term investments.

On 1nitial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comptises purchase price and
directly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

Current investments are carried in the financial statements at lower of cost and fair value determined
on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for
diminution in value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the
investments.
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k)

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is
charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, stock-in-trade, stores and
spares, and loose tools are carricd at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Raw materials, stock-in-trade and stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.
However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down
below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or
above cost. Cost of raw materials, stock-in-trade, stores and spares and loose tools is determined on a
weighted average cost method.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes
direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating
capacity.

Net realizable value is the estumated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards in respect of
ownetship of products are transferred by the Company and no significant uncertainty exist regarding
the amount of consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods as well as regarding its
ultimate collection. Revenue from product sales is stated net of returns, tax and applicable trade
discounts and allowances. Revenue from product sales includes excise duty, wherever applicable.
Revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and are also netted off for probable saleable and non-saleable
return of goods from the customers, estimated on the basis of historical data of such returns

Income from Services

The Company provides manufacturing and diagnostic services to other companies and customers. The
income from these services is recognised when the same 1s performed and accepted by the other party
on the basis of invoices.

Interest

Interest income is recognized on a ime proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding
and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head “other income” in the
statement of profit and loss.

Export Incentive

Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued in the year in which the goods are
exported and no sigoificant uncertainty exist regarding its ultimate collection.
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Foreign currencies

Transacuons in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange
rate when the fair value was determined. Foreign currency differences arc generally recognised n
profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are
not translated. ’

However, foreign currency differences arising from the transladon of the following items are
recogrused 1n OCL:

* equity investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive incotme (except on
impairment, in which case foreign currency differences that have been recognised in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss);

e a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to the
extent that the hedge 1s effective; and

*  qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified
as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The
undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is
recognised as an cxpense as the related service is rendered by employees.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entty pays specified
contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company
makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provideat fund to Government
administered provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company’s
contribution is recognised as an cxpense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in
which the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratity benefit scheme and post-employment medical benefit scheme are defined
benefit plans. The Company’s net obligation in respect of 2 defined benefit plan is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the
curzent and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised
past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The calculation of the Company’s
obligation under each of the two plans is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method.

The Company recognises all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans immediately
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. All expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in
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employee benefits expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. When the benefits of a plan are
umproved, the porton of the increased benefit related to past service by employees is recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become
vested. The Company recognises gains and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit
plan when the curtailment or settlernent occurs.

Compensated Absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and urilise
it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the
compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilised wholly within
twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term emplovee‘bencﬁt.
The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the
employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of
independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Income taxes

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates {and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax labilities are offsct only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) under the provision of Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognised as cugrent
tax in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is
recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is reasonable evidence that the company will
pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set off
against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet
date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists. Minimum
Alternate Tax (MAT) Credit are in the form of unused tax credits that are carried forward by the
Company for a specified period of time, hence, it is presented as Deferred Tax Asset.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.
Deferred tax is not recognised for:

temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the
transaction;

temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the
extent that the Company is able to conirol the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

raxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the
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Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against
which such deferred tax asset ca n be realised.

Deferred tax assets- unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are

recognised / reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related
tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability 1s setded, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the reportng date. ’

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle cutrent tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Segment reporting
Identification of segments

The Company is operating only one business segment "pharmaceutical” as its primary segment. The
analysis of geographical segments is based on the revenue generating locations. The geographical
segment information of the company is categorized under domestc sales and export sales.

FEarnings Per Share

Basic EPS is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted EPS 1s computed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity
equivalent shares outstanding during the period except where the results would be anti-dilutive. )

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:

A provision is recognised if as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. If the effect of time value of money
1s material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability.

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resoutces, or a present obligation
whose amount can not be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions but are
disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are neither
recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, when the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank including
fixed deposits (having original maturity of less than 3 months), cheques in hand and cash in hand.
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t)

Measurement of Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA)

The Company has elected to present EBITDA as a separate line item on the face of the statement of
profit and loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit / (loss) from continuing
operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciaton and amortization, finance
costs and tax expense.

2B Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires judgements, estimates
and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of
the financial statements, the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period
and the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes different from the
estimates. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the
results are known or materialise. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future
periods.

Management considers the accounting estimates znd assumptions discussed below to be its critical
accounting estimates and, accorduigly, provide an explanation of each below. The discussion below
should also be read in conjunction with the Company’s disclosure of significant accounting policies
which are provided in Note 2A to the standalone financial statements, ‘Significant accounting
policies’.

a. Estimate of current and deferred tax

'The Company’s tax charge on ordinary activities is the sum of the total current and deferred tax
charges. The calculation of the Company’s total tax charge necessarily involves a degree of
estimation and judgement in respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally
determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authority or, as appropriate:,
through a formal legal process. The final resolution of some of these items may give nse to
matesial profits/losses and/or cash flows.

The complexity of the Company’s structure makes the degree of estimation and judgement more
challenging. The resolution of issues is not ahkways within the control of the Company and it is
often dependent on the efficiency of the legal processes in the relevant taxing jurisdictions in
which the Company operates. Issues can, and often do, take many years to resolve. Payments in
respect of tax liabilities for an accounting period result from payments on account and on the
final resolution of open items. As a result there can be substantial differences between the tax
chasge in the Statement of Profit and Loss and tax payments.

b. Recognition of MAT credit entitlement

The credit availed under MAT is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the period for which
the MAT credit can be carried forward for set off against the normal tax liability. This requires
significant management judgement in determining the expected availment of the credit based on
business plans and future cash flows of the Company.
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Recognition of deferred tax assets

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is more likely than not that
sufficient and suitable taxable profits will be available in the future against which the reversal of
temporary differences can be deducted. To determine the future taxable profits, reference is made
to the latest available profit forecasts. Where the temporary differences are related to losses,
relevant tax law 1s considered to determine the availability of the losses to offset against the future
taxable profits.

Estimation of useful life

The useful life used to amortise or depreciate intangible assets or property, plant and equipment
respectively relates to the expected future performance of the assets acquired and management’s
judgement of the period over which economic benefit will be derived from the asset based on its
technical expertise. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an
estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life.
Increasing an asset’s expected life or its residual value would result in a reduced depreciation
charge in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The useful lives and residual values of Company’s assets are determined by management at the
time the asser 15 acquired and reviewed annually for appropriateness. The lives are based on
historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events which may impact
their life such as changes in technology.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company exercises judgement in measuring and recognising provisions and the exposures to
contingent liabilities related to pending litigation or other outstanding claims subject to negotated
settlement, mediation, arbitration or government regulation, as well as other contingent liabilities.
Judgement is necessary in assessing the likelihood that 2 pending claim will succeed, or a liability
will arise, and to quantify the possible range of the financial settlement. Because of the inherent
uncertainty in this evaluation process, actual losses may be different from the originally estimated
provision,

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Company’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for the financial reporting
purposes. Central corporate treasury team works with various banks for determining appropriate
fair value of derivative assets and habilities. Central treasury team reports to the Chief Financial
Officer. In estimating the fair value of derivative assets and liabilities, the Company uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Informaton about the valuation techniques and
inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in note
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g. Defined Benefit Plans:

The cost of the defined benefit grawuity plan and other post-employment benefits and present
value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuation. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual development in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates.
Due to complexitics involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined i)eneﬁt
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions ate reviewed at
each reporting date.

h.  Provision for anticipated sales return:

In determining the provision for anticipated sales returns, estimates for probable saleable and
non-saleable returns of goods from the customers are made on scientific basis afrer facton'ng in
the historical data of such returns and irs trend,

i. Biological Assets

Management uses inputs relating to production and market prices in determining the fair value
biological assets.
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Note 4 Other Assets

Eurolife Regen Private Limited

Non-Current Current
Particulars As at As at TAsar As at
R 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Others
Balance with statutory authorities
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Prepaid Expenses
Total - - - .
Note 5 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balances with Banks (of the nature of cash and cash
equivalents) - 57,031
Total 57,031
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Note 6 Equity share Capital

Eurolife Regen Private Limited

As at
31 March 2019

.. (In Rupees)

As at

31 March 2018

Equty Share Capatal

Authonsed Share Capital

Issued, subseribed and fully paid up

Amount
1,00,00,000

1,00,00,000

2,00,00,000
2,00,00,000

1,00,00,000
1,00,00,000

Amount
1,00,00,000
1,00,00,000

2,00,00,000
2,00,00,000

1,00,00,000
1,00,00,000

Rights, preferences and estrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of capital

The Company has only one class of equity share l’n\'ing par value of Rs. 10 per share. Lach holder of equity share is entide to one vote per share. In the event of
liquidanon of the Company, the holder of the equity share will be entitle 1o receive remaning assets of the Company, ‘The distribution will be 1n proparton to the

number of equity shares held by the share holders.

Fully paid equity shares
Particulars

Balance at Apnl 1, 2017

Add: Issued dunng the year

Less: Bought back durtng the year
Balance at March 31, 2018

Add: Issued during the year

Less: Bought back during the year
Balance at March 31, 2019

Number of shares

10,600,000

Share Capital

1,00,00,000

10,00,000

1,00,00,000

10,00,000

1,00,00,000

Shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than
five per cent shases

As at

31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

No.

Yo

No.

g

Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited*

Kasiak Rescarch Private Limited was the holding company which got
amalgamated with Bharat Serums and Vacanes Limited

10,00,000

100.00%

10,00,000

L0000

Note 7 Other Equity

(In Rupces)l

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

tail mings
Balance at beginning of year
Add/ (less): Profit/ (loss) for the year

Other comprchensive income arising from re-measurement of defined benefit

obligation, net of tax

Add: Ind AS Transition Reserves

Add/ {less): Transfer 1o General Reserve
Add/ (less):
Add/ (less): Transfer from Deffercd tax
Balance at end of the year

Transfer from Revaluation reserve

{2,62,71,090
(54,472)

(2,63,25,562)

(2,44,80 464)
(17,90,626)

__eanwy
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Eurolife Regen Private Limited

Note 8 Tarde Payables
Non-Current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
31 Masch 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Ourstanding due of Miero and Small Enterprises - - -
Outstanding due of Creditors other than Micro and Small Enterposes 2,559
Total - 2,559 - -
Note 9 Borrowings
- cula As at As at
Particulars 31March 2019 | 31 March 2018
on rrent
Unsecured
Loans repayable on demand
- from Holding company 1,20,00,000 1,20,00,000
Total 1,20,00,000 1,20,00,000
Note 10 Other Liabilities
Non-Current Cursent
Particulars As at As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Retennon Money
Liabilides for expenses 4,69,776 169776
Interest Accrued and duc on Borrowings 38,55,786 38,55,786
Total - - 43,25,562 43,25,562
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Note 13 Other Expenses

{In Rupees)

Particul Year Ended Year Ended
arfientars 31 March 2019 | 31 March 2018
Rates and Taxes 20,000
Travelling and Conveyance 20,000
Audit fee 29,500 29,500
Sundry Balance Written off 3,83,356
Miscellaneous Expenses 17.770
Total 29,500 4,70,626
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NOTE 14
ADDITIONAL/EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

)

b)

<)

rnings Per Sha

Eurolife Regen Private Limited

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for rhe year attnbatable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number

of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted FPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit atributable to equity holders of the pareat by the weaghted average number of Equi
shares ourstanchng during the year plus the weighted average number of Lquity shares that would be ssued on conversion of all the dﬂuu\ﬁ v

potential Equity shares wito Liquity shares.

Profit atter taxaton In Rupeces

(s}

Company does not have any capital commitments and confingent liabilies at the year end.

54,412 v
Number of cquity shares (Face Value Rs.10/-) Nos. 10(00 oooJ (; (’) »;3‘30 ((;)
[Earnings per share In Rupees 005) , (‘1 i
Contingent Liabilitites & C« i ts

The company's netwroth is fully crmoded as on 31st March 2019, The company’s ability to continue as a going concern is complelty depend upon the financial

support/ assistance by us holding company.
Company's Management is confident on getting timely financal support fiom s Holding company.
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NOTE 14
ADD]TIONAL/EXPLANATORY INFORMATION

d)

¢ IND AS Financial Statement as at 31 March, 2019

sted party disclosures ( As per Ind AS 24: Related Party Disclosures) :

Names of related pacties

Hotding Company

Transactions with related parties (excluding reimbursements)
Nature of Trai ngactions

Bharat Scrums and Vaccines famited

and natute of relanonship where control exists are as under:
Names of other related parties and nature of relationship:

Eurolife Regen Private Limited

Transactions Outstanding Payable/{Receivable)
Year Ended Year Ended As at As at
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Holding Company
fnterst on ICD 13,20,000 38,55,786 38,55,786
1D 1,20,00,000 1.20,00,000
Orthers 440,276 4,40,276

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties;

The transactions with related parties axe made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the

ycar-end are unsecured and interest free and serdement oceurs in ¢
party reccivables or
amounts owed by re

position of the related party and the market in which the retated party operates.

ash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related
payables. For the yeat ended 31 March 2019, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to

lated parties (31 March 2018: Rs. Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial
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Notes to Standalone IND AS Financial Statement as at 31 March, 2019

Note 15
Financial instruments — Fair values

A. Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels are presented below . It does not include the fair value

information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if their carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities as at March 31,2019 including their levels are presented below.

Particulars Carrying amount Fair value
Note FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant Total
No. active matkets  obsetvable inputs  unobservable
(Level 1) (Level 2) inputs
(Level 3)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 - - -
Financial liabilides
Borrowings 5 1,20,00,000  1,20,00,000 1,20,00,000  1,20,00,000

Trade Payables 8 - - - _

- - 1,20,00,000  1,20,00,000 - -

pajwi a)eAld uabay ajijoing
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The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilites as

at March 31,2019 including their levels are presented below.

i Carrying amount Fair value
Pactiowlars Note FVIPL FVTOCI Amottisec?“Cfst Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant Total
No. active markets  observable inputs  unobservable
(Level 1) (Level 2) inputs
(Level 3)
Financial assets .
Cash and cash equivalents 5 57,031 57,031 - - 57,03t 57,031
- 57,031 57,031 - - 57,031 57,031
Financial Labilites
Borrowings 1,20,00,000  1,20,00,000 1,20,00,000  1,20,00,000
Trade Payables 4 - - - - - -
l 1,20,00,000  1,20,00,000
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilitics as at March 31,2018 including their levels are presented below.
Particulars Carrying amount Fair value
Note FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant Total
No. active markets  observable inputs  unobservable
(Level 1) (Level 2) innuts
rinancial assers - —_— -
Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,69,301 1,692,301 - - 1,69,301 1,69,301
B 1,69,301 1,69,301 - 1,69,301 1,69,301
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 5 - 1,20,00,000  1,20,00,000 1,20,00000  1,20,00,000
Trade Payables - - - - _
B 1,20,00,000  1,20,00,000 B 120,00,000  1,20,00,000

B. Measurement of fait values
Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, rade payables, bank overdrafts and other cutrent liabilities approximate their

carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturnities of these instruments.

pajwi a)eAld uabay ajijoing
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Eusolifc Regen Private Limited

Nortes to Standalone IND AS Financial Statement as at 31 March, 2019

Note 16
A. Capital Management

For the purpose of Company's Capital Management, capital ncludes Issued Equity Capital, Securities Peemium, and all other Tiquity Reserves attnbutable

ro the Equity Holders of the Company. The primarny objective of the Company's Capital Management is to maximise the Share Holder Value

‘I'he Company manages irs capital structure and makes adjustments n the light of changes in economic conditions and requirements of the financial
. 9 ncia

covenants aﬂd fO CONTINUE 25 3 g()ing congern.

As on st March 2019, the enoce nerworth of the companby 1s erroded, the Company’s ability te contimuce as gomg concern is complelty dependes upon

the financial support by holding company

_ {In Rupees)
[Particulars 31st March 2019 31st March 2018
:l‘oml dcb‘| 1,20,00,000 1,20,00,000
Total equity -1,63,25,562 -1,62,71,090
Debt equity ratio -0.74 -0.74

B. Financial Risk Management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and horrowings, trade and other payables. The man purpose of these financial habilities 1s to

finance the operations of the Company. The principal financial assets include trade and other reccivables, and cash and short teem deposits,
There are no financial assets as on 31st MArch 2019 o

"The Company has assessed market risk, crecit risk and liquidity risk to its financal habilities.

i) Market Risk

Market risk Is the risk of loss of furure carnings, fair values or cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial mstrument resul
. . . - . . . as a result
of interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other price risks, Financial nstruments affected by market risks, pamanly include loans And ]::orr wings

i owings,

investments and foreign currency sreceivables, payables and borrowings.

Interest Rate Risks

Interest rate tisk can be either fair value interest rate or cash fow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the nsk of changes in fair values of fixed
i ng i i i - - o X ang es of fix
interest bearing investments because of fluctuations in the interest rate. Cash flow interest rate tisk is the ask that the future cash flows of floating int
beadng investments will fluctuate because of fluctuations in the interest rates. B Interest

Exposure to interes: rate risk

The Company's interest rate sk arises from borrowings. Bocrowings issued at fixed rates exposes to fair value interest rate risk. The interest rate profil
. ) L S & sK. £ rofle

of the Company's interest-bearing fnancial insteuments as reported to the management of the Company is as follows profe

(In Rupees)
Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Figed-rate Instryments
Financial Liabilites 1,20,00,000 1,20,00,000

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
The Company docs not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at faic value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in intetes
rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or luss. > 2 etest

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Burolife Regen Private Limited

104450 52013PTC251249

B Bl-lal'al V Daftary Gautam V Daftary
Partaer Director Director
Membership No. 034431 DIN: 00011518 DIN : 00009326

Place : Mumbai
Date : 10 July 2019

Place : Mumbai
Date : 10 July 2019
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Bharat Serums & Vaccines Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members Of
Bharat Serums And Vaccines Limited
Report On The Audit Of The Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited ("the Parent”)
and its subsidiaries, (the Parentand its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at 31*March 2019, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the
consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information of the
subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters section below, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (Ind AS'), and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31*March 2019, and their consolidated Profit, their consolidated total
comprehensive Income, their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143 (10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Groupin accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence
obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Parent's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in Board's report in the Annual Report for the year ended 31* March 2019, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information,
compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries to the extent it relates to these entities and, in doing so, place
reliance on the work of the other auditors and consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to the subsidiaries, is traced from their financial statements
audited by the other auditors.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated
changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate or cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative butto do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial
reporting process ofthe Group.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughoutthe audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
orthe override ofinternal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Parent and its subsidiary company which is a company incorporated in India,has adequate internal
financial controls systemin place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of entities or business activities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities or business activities
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ji) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing ofthe audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of four subsidiaries, whose financial statements / financial
information, before giving effect to the consolidation adjustments, reflect total assets of Rs. 8,424.36 lakhs as at 31*March
2019, total revenues of Rs. 17,217.69 lakhs and net cash outflow amounting to Rs. 40.04 lakhs for the year ended on that date,
as considered in the consolidated financial statements, comprising;

a) total assetsas at31*March 2019, total Revenues and net cash inflow for the year ended on that date of Nil in respect of
one subsidiary whose financial statements / financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary and our report in terms of subsection (3)
of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the reports of the other
auditor.
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b) total assets of Rs.7,081.37 lakhs as at 31*March 2019, total revenue of Rs.13,672.16 lakhs and net cash inflow of

c)

Rs.31.31 lakhs for the year ended on that date in respect of two subsidiaries located outside India whose financial
statements and other financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in their respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted
auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The Parent's management has converted the financial
statements of these subsidiaries located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in their
respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India. A firm of Chartered Accountants have
audited these conversion adjustments made by the Parent's Management and issued their Independent Fit-For-
Consolidation Report (“FFC”) thereon. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures in respect of
these subsidiaries located outside India and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 o fthe Act, in so far as
it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the reports of other auditors and FFC Reports for the
conversion adjustments made by the management ofthe Parent.

total assets of Rs.1,342.99 lakhs as at 31*March 2019, total revenues of Rs.3,545.53 lakhs and net cash outflow
amounting to Rs.71.35 lakhs for the year ended on that date in respect of one subsidiary located outside India whose
financial statements and other financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in their respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally
accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective countries, whose reporting date is 31% December, 2018
which is different from the reporting date of the Parent. In terms of Indian Accounting Standard 110, adjustments have
been made for significant transactions of these subsidiaries for the periods from 1"January 2019 to 31"March2019
and 1%January 2018 to31® March 2018, on the basis of their management accounts for the said periods. The Parent's
management has converted the financial statements of this subsidiary located outside India from accounting
principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India. A firm
of Chartered Accountants have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Parent's Management and issued
their Independent Fit-For-Consolidation Report (“FFC”) thereon. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures in respect of this subsidiary located outside India and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143
of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the reports of other auditors and FFC
Reports for the conversion adjustments made by the management of the Parent.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other
auditors and the financial statements / financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by Section 143(3) ofthe Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on
the separate financial statements/ financial information of the subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters section above
we report, to the extent applicable that:

a)

b)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of the
other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply withthe Ind AS specified under Section
133 ofthe Act.

€) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as on 31* March 2019 taken on
record by the Board of Directors of the Parent and the report of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies is disqualified as on 31* March 2019 from being
as adirectorin terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A’ which is based on the auditors'
reports of the Parent and subsidiary company incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial reporting of those companies.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, asamended,
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Parenttoits directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial
position of the Group- Refer Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements;

i) The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses;

iy There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Parent and its subsidiary company incorporated in India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Sd/-

Manoj H. Dama

Pariner

Membership No. 107723
UDIN : 19107723AAACL3269

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th July 2019
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF Bharat Serums and Vaccines
Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f)under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of even
date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended 31*
March 2019, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited
(hereinafter referred as “Parent”)and its subsidiary company, which isa company incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent and its subsidiary company, which isa company incorporated in India, are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the respective companiesconsidering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Parent and its
subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the subsidiary
company, which is acompany incorporated in India, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial
reporting of the Parent and, its subsidiary company which is a company incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
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acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or thatthe
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
the reports of the other auditor referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below, the Parent and its subsidiary company, which is
a company incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31* March 2019, based on
the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by the respective companies considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(j) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to one subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated in India, is
based solely onthe corresponding reports of the auditors of such company incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Sd/-

Manoj H. Dama

Partner

Membership No. 107723

Place: Mumbai UDIN : 19107723AAACL3269
Date: 30th July 2019
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Statement of changes in equity (Continued) or the year ended 31 March 2019)

(Currency : Indian rupees in Lakhs)

The Description of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity:

Capital Reserve: Capital reserve represents excess of Net Assets over purchase consideration paid to acquire Kasiak
Research Private Limited in the scheme of merger. (Refer Note 38)

Equity Component of compound financial instrument: The component parts of compound financial instruments issued by
the Company are classified as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and equity instruments. Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value net of

directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.

Capital Redemption Reserve: Capital redemption reserve represents reserve created through transfer from general reserve
to capital redemptionreserve in compliance with buy back of shares

Security premium reserves: Security premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares.

General Reserve: The Company has transferred a portion of the net profit of the Company before declaring dividend to
general reserve though mandatory transfer to general reserve is not required under the Companies Act 2013.

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve : This reserve represents exchange differences arising on Account of conversion of
foreign operations to Company’sfunctional currency.

Retained Earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the company has earned till date, less any transfers to general
reserve, dividends paid to shareholders.

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited
CIN : U24230MH1971PLC015134
Sd/-
Manoj H. Dama Sd/- Sd/-
Partner Bharat V Daftary Gautam V Daftary
Chairman and Managing Director Managing Director
Place: Mumbai DIN : 00011518 DIN : 00009326
Date: 30th July 2019
Sd/- Sd/-
Anil M Damle Charudatta S Samant
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No : A22337
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Notes to the Consolidated IND AS Financial Statements (or the year ended 31 March 2019)

1)

2)

a)

General information

Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited (the Company) is a public limited Company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Group is engaged in the business of research, development,
manufacturing, marketing and sales of biological and pharmaceutical products in India and overseas market.

Basis of preparation of Consolidated Ind AS Financial statements (“financial statements”)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Group as atand for the year ended 31 March, 2019 have beenprepared in accordance
with Indian Accountingstandards (Ind AS') notified by the Ministry ofCorporate Affairs in consultation with the
NationalAdvisory Committee on Accounting Standards,under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013('Act’) read with
Rule 3 of the Companies (IndianAccounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended)and the relevant provisions of the
Act.

The Financial statements are prepared in Indian rupees rounded off to the nearest lakhs except for share data and per
share data, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The preparation of financial statements inaccordance with Ind AS requires the use ofcertaincritical accounting
estimates. It also requiresmanagement to exercise its judgment in the processof applying the Group's accounting
policies.The areas involving a higher degree of judgmentor complexity, or areas where assumptions andestimates
are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 2B. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
The estimates and underlyingassumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if therevision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The Group presents assets and liabilities in Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification.

An assetis classified as currentwhenit is:

i)Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

ii)Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv)Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Aliability is classified as current when:

i) itis expectedto be settled in normal operating cycle,

ii) itis held primarily forthe purpose of trading,

iii) itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period

iv)there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period The Group classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified asnon -

current assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated IND AS Financial Statements (or the year ended 31 March 2019)

Basis of measurement

These financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention unless otherwise indicated, except for asset held for
sale and Biological asset—measured at fair value less cost of sell.

Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of the Parent Company and the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Parent Company operates.

Basis of consolidation:
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and the entities it controls.
(a) Accounting for Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statement from the date on which control
commences until the date on which control ceases.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with
those of previous year. The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-line
basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group
balances, intra-group transactions and profits/losses, unless cost/revenue cannot be recovered.

The details of the subsidiaries consolidated are as follows

Name of Subsidiaries Principal place % of Share holding
of business March March
2019 2018
BSV Bio Science GMBH Germany 100 100
BSV Bio Science INC USA 100 100
BSV Bio Science Philippines Philippines 100 100
EurolifeReagen Private Ltd India 100 100

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI)

NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree's net identifiable asset at the date of acquisition. Changes in the
Group's equity interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

Non-controlling interest is presented separately from the liabilities or assets and the equity of the shareholders in the
consolidated Balance Sheet. Non-controlling interestin the profit or loss of the Group is separately presented.
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()

(d)

Loss of control

When the Group losses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the asset and liabilities of the subsidiary, any
related NCI and other component of equity. Any interest retained in the form of subsidiary is measured at fair
value atthe date control is lost. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity accounted investees are
eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

2A) Summary of significant accounting policies

a)
)
i)

i)
i)

iv)

)

1)

Property, plant and equipment (“PPE™)

Recognition and Measurement

ltems of Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any. The cost of an item of Property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition
for its intended use and any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at purchase price. Cost of the assets
also includes interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the asset is
ready for its intended use incurred up to that date.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for
as separate items (major components) of Property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property plant and equipment is recognised in statement of profit and loss.
Cost of Items of Property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use as on the balance sheet date, is disclosed
as capital work in progress. Advances given towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
balance sheet date are disclosed as Capital Advance under Other non-currentassets.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating to fixed assets is capitalised only if such expenditure results in an increase in the

future benefits from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Depreciation and Amortisation:

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of PPE over its useful life and is provided on a
straight-line basis over the useful lives as prescribed under Schedule Il to the Act or as per technical assessment. The
residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata
basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which is asset is ready to use /(disposed of). Freehold land is not depreciated.
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b)

1)}

1)

Tangible Assets Useful Life
Leasehold Land Amortized over the period of Lease
Buildings 5 years to 60 years

Plant and Machinery/ factory equipment/ 8 years to 20 years

Laboratory equipment

Computers and Accessories 3 years

Electrical Installations 10 years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 to 15 years

Vehicles 8 years

Office Equipment’s 5 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the useful life of assets or the lease term, whichever is lower.
Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives (not
being greater than the useful life envisaged in Schedule Il to the Act) unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, in which case the depreciation rates applicable for similar assets
owned by the Group are applied.

The useful lives are reviewed by the management at each financial year-end and revised, if appropriate. In case ofa
revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the revised remaining useful life.

Intangible Assets:

Recognition and measurement

Research and Development

Expenditure onresearch activities is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalised only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is
technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Group intends to and has
sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognised in profit or loss
as incurred. Sub sequent to initial recognition, development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Otherintangible assets

Other intangible assets, such as computer software and trademarks and patents, that are acquired by the Group and
have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific
asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated good will and brands, is
recognised in profit or loss as incurred

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognised in profit or loss. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for finite-life intangible assets is reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted

prospectively, if appropriate. The estimated useful lives for current and comparative periods are as follows:
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c)

d)

e)

f)

Assets Useful Life

Patents and technical know-how 10 Years

Computer software 05 Years
Operating leases

Assets taken/given on lease under which substantially all risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by
the lessor are classified as operating lease. Lease payments/receipts under operating leases are recognised as
expenses/income on straight line basis overthe primary period of lease only if lease rentals are not linked to inflation in
accordance with the respective lease agreements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For
impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Cash generating units (“CGU”). The
recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use
is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. An impairment loss
is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

Government grants and subsidies

Grants related to depreciable assets are treated as deferred income which is recognised in the Statement of profit and
loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of the asset. Such allocation to income is usually made over
the periods and in the proportions in which depreciation on related assets is charged. Government Grants of revenue
nature is reduced from related expenses in the statement of Profit and Loss in the year of its receipt or when there is a
reasonable assurance of its being received.

Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued in the year in which the goods are exported and there
is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

Financial instruments

Recognition initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financialassets
and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractualprovisions of the
instrument.

Afinancial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value throughprofit and
loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial Assets
Oninitial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

. amortised cost;
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FVOCI -debt investment;
FVOCI -equity investment; or
FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Afinancial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

» the assetis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and

selling financial assets; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI — equity investment). This election
is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include
whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest
rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash
outflows orrealising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group's management;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and how those risks are managed;

how managers of the business are compensated -e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.
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Transfers offinancial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales
for this purpose, consistent with the Group's continuing recognition of the assets. Financial assets that are held for
trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on afair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. For the
purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. 'Interest' is
defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term
that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows that it would not meet this condition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers:

. contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

. terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

. prepayment and extension features; and

. terms that limit the Group's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment amount
substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may
include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract Additionally, for a financial asset
acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires
prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid)
contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised  These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

cost effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Imterest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in OCL On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are

FVOCI recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. Afinancial liability is classified as at FVTPL if
it is classified as held-fortrading,or it is a derivative or itis designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at
FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or
loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gains or loss on
derecognition is also recognized in profitor loss.
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Derecognition
Financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transfer redor in which the Group neither transfers not retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does notretain control of the financial asset.

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferredassets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities
The Group derecognises afinancial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired.

The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flow under the modified
terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair
value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liabilityexting uished and the new financial liability
with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only
when, the Group currently hasa legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle themon a
netbas is or to realise the asset and settle the liabilitysimultaneously.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the contractualarrangements
entered into and the definitions of an equity instrument. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities and includes no obligation to deliver cash or other
financial assets.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Group in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of those tangible fixed assets which necessarily take
asubstantial period oftime to get ready for their intended use are capitalised. Other borrowing costs are recognised as
an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period in which they are incurred.

Invesiments

Investments, which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which
such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term
investments.

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and directly
attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise raw materials, work-in-progress, finished goods, stock-in-trade, stores and spares, and
loose tools are carried atthe lower of cost and net realisable value.

Raw materials, stock-in-tradeand stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However,
materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw materials, stock-in-
trade, stores and spares and loose tools is determined on aweighted average cost method.
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Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct
materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity Net realizable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

Revenue recognition
Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an
amountthatreflects the consideration entitled in exchange forthose goods or services.

Generally, control is transferred upon shipment of goods to the customer or when the goods is made available to the
customer, provided transfer of title to the customer occurs and the Group has not retained any significant risks of
ownership orfuture obligations with respect to the goods shipped.

Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration which the Group expects to be entitled to in exchange for
transferring distinct goods or services to a customer as specified in the contract, net of returns and allowances, trade
discounts and volume rebates and excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example taxes and duties
collected on behalf of the government). Consideration is generally due upon satisfaction of performance obligations
and the receivable is recognized when it becomes unconditional.

Revenue from sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and are also netted off for probable saleable and non-saleable return of goods from the customers,
estimated on the basis of historical data of such returns.

Income from Services

The Group provides manufacturing and diagnostic services to other companies and customers. The income from these
services is recognised when the same is performed and accepted by the other party on the basis of invoices.

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised over time where the Group satisfies the performance obligation over
time or pointin time where the Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time.

Contract Balances
Tradereceivables: areceivable represents the Group's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

Deferred Income: Income received where in the performance obligation is not satisfied. They are classified as contract
liabilities and disclosed as Deferred Income.

Advance from customers: when a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the
customer, a contract liability is recognised and disclosed as advances from customers.

Interest

Interestincome is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable
interest rate. Interestincome is included under the head “otherincome” in the statement of profit and loss.
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Exportincentive

Export benefits available under prevalent schemes are accrued in the year in which the goods are exported and no
significant uncertainty exist regarding its ultimate collection.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of entities within the Groupat
exchangerates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Foreign
currency differences are generally recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured based on
historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

However foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the following itemzs are recognised in OCI:
equity investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (except on impairment, in
which case foreign currency differences that have been recognised in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss);
a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to the extent that the hedge
is effective; and
qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.

Foreign operations:

For the purposes of presenting these consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of Group's foreign
operations, are translated to the Indian Rupees at exchange rates at the end of each reporting period. The income and
expenses of such foreign operations are translated at the average exchange rates for the period. Resulting foreign
currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income / (loss) and presented within equity as part of
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve. When a foreign operation is disposed off, the relevant amount in the Foreign
Currency Translation Reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term
employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount of
short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognised as an expense as the related
service is rendered by employees.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to a
separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Group makes specified monthly contributions
towards employee provident fund to Government administered provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution
plan. The Group's contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in
which the employee renders the related service.
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Defined benefit plans

The Group's gratuity benefit scheme is defined benefit plan. The Group's net obligation in respect of a defined benefit
plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised past service costs
and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The calculation of the Group's obligation under each of the two plans
is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The Group recognises all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans immediately in the Other
Comprehensive Income. All expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in employee benefits expense in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit related to
past service by employees is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested. The Group recognises gains and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined
benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

Compensated Absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in future
service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated absences do not
fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees renderthe related service and are
also not expected to be utilised wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a
long-term employee benefit. The Group records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which
the employee renders the services that increase this entittement. The obligation is measured on the basis of
independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Income taxes

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income
taxes. Itis measured using tax rates {and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and itis intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) under the provision of Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only when and to
the extent there is reasonable evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT
credit can be carried forward for set off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists. Minimum
Alternate Tax (MAT) Credit are in the form of unused tax credits that are carried forward by the Group for a specified
period oftime, hence, itis presented as Deferred Tax Asset.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also
recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred taxis not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business

combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss atthe time ofthe transaction;

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the extent that

the Groupis able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not
reverse in the foreseeable future; and
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- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be
available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Group recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent
that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will
be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.

Deferred tax assets- unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to
the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in whichthe Group
expects, atthe reporting date, to recover or settle the carryingamount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets,
and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but
they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised
simultaneously.

Segment reporting
Identification of segments

The Group is operating only one business segment "pharmaceutical' as its primary segment. The analysis of
geographical segments is based on the revenue generating locations. The geographical segment information of the
Group is categorized under domestic sales and export sales.

Earnings Per Share

Basic EPS is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
EPS is computed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares outstanding during
the period except where the results would be anti-dilutive.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:

A provision is recognised if as a result of a past event, the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) that can
be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance
sheet date. If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount can not be estimated reliably.
Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.
Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, when the realisation of
income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank including fixed deposits
(having original maturity of less than 3 months), cheques inhand and cashin hand.

Measurement of Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA)

The Group has elected to present EBITDA as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The
Group measures EBITDA on the basis of profit / (loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Group
does notinclude depreciation and amortization, finance costs and tax expense.

Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires judgements, estimates and
assumptions to be made that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial
statements, the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period and the disclosures relating
to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. Although these estimates are based on the
management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes different from the estimates. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised
in the period in which the results are known or materialise. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future periods.

Management considers the accounting estimates and assumptions discussed below to be its critical accounting
estimates and, accordingly, provide an explanation of each below. The discussion below should also be read in
conjunction with the Group's disclosure of significant accounting policies which are provided in Note 2Ato the
Consolidated financial statements, 'Significant accounting policies'.

a. Estimate of current and deferred tax

The Group's tax charge on ordinary activities is the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges. The
calculation of the Group's total tax charge necessarily involves a degree of estimation and judgement in respect of
certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant
tax authority or, as appropriate, through aformal legal process. The final resolution of some of these items may give
rise to material profits/losses and/or cash flows.

The complexity of the Group's structure makes the degree of estimation and judgement more challenging. The
resolution of issues is not always within the control of the Group and it is often dependent on the efficiency of the
legal processes in the relevant taxing jurisdictions in which the Group operates. Issues can, and often do, take
many years to resolve. Payments in respect of tax liabilities for an accounting period result from payments on
account and on the final resolution of open items. As a result, there can be substantial differences between the tax
charge in the Statement of Profit and Loss and tax payments.

b. Recognition of MAT credit entitiement

The credit availed under MAT is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence
that the Group will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set
off against the normal tax liability. This requires significant management judgement in determining the expected
availment of the credit based on business plans and future cash flows of the Group.

c. Recognition of deferred tax assets

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is more likely than not that sufficient and suitable
taxable profits will be available in the future against which the reversal of temporary differences can be deducted.
To determine the future taxable profits, reference is made to the latest available profit forecasts. Where the
temporary differences are related to losses, relevant tax law is considered to determine the availability of the losses
to offset against the future taxable profits.
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d. Estimation of useful life

The useful life used to amortise or depreciate intangible assets or property, plant and equipment respectively
relates to the expected future performance of the assets acquired and management's judgement of the period
over which economic benefit will be derived from the asset based on its technical expertise. The charge in
respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and
the expected residual value at the end of its life. Increasing an asset's expected life or its residual value would
resultin areduced depreciation charge in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The useful lives and residual values of Group's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is
acquired and reviewed annually for appropriateness. The lives are based on historical experience with similar
assets as well as anticipation of future events which may impact their life such as changes in technology.

e. Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Group exercises judgement in measuring and recognising provisions and the exposures to contingent
liabilities related to pending litigation or other outstanding claims subject to negotiated settlement, mediation,
arbitration or government regulation, as well as other contingent liabilities. Judgement is necessary in assessing
the likelihood that a pending claim will succeed, or a liability will arise, and to quantify the possible range of the
financial settlement. Because of the inherent uncertainty in this evaluation process, actual losses may be different
from the originally estimated provision.

f. Fairvalue measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for the financial reporting purposes. Central
corporate treasury team works with various banks for determining appropriate fair value of derivative assets and
liabilities. Central treasury team reports to the Chief Financial Officer. In estimating the fair value of derivative assets
and liabilities, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Information about the valuation
techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in note.

g. Defined Benefit Plans:

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and present value of the gratuity
obligation are determined using actuarial valuation. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual development in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

h. Provision for anticipated sales return:

In determining the provision for anticipated sales returns, estimates for probable saleable and non-saleable
returns of goods from the customers are made on scientific basis after factoring in the historical data of such
returns and its trend.

i Biological Assets

Management uses inputs relating to production and market prices in determining the fair value biological assets.
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39 Recent accounting pronouncements

On march 30, 2019 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has notified the following new and amendments to Ind Ass
which the Company has not applied as they are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019

Ind AS 116 Leases

On March 30, 2019, the ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace the existing
leases standard, Ind AS 17, Leases, and related interpretation. The standard sets out the principle for recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contracti.e, the lessee and the lessor . Ind AS 116
introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires the lessee to recognize the assets and liabilities for all the leases
for both the parties to a contract i.e, the lessee and the lessor Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires the lessee to recognize the assets and liabilities for all the leases with the term of more than twelve months, unless
the underlying asset is of low value .Currently operating lease expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirement for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the
lessor accounting requirementinInd AS 17.

The effective date for the adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The standard permits

two possible methods of transition :

«Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8, Accounting policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors

*Modified retrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date
ofinitial application

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present value of the remaining lease

payments , discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use of asset eitheras :

«lts carrying amount as if the standard has been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at the date , but
discounted at the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application, or

*An amount equal to the lease liability , adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments related to that

lease recognized under Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application.

Certain practical expedients are available under both the methods

Effective date for the application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company
is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment.

Ind AS 12, Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

On March 30, 2019, the ministry of corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12, Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax
losses , unused tax credits and tax rates , when there is uncertainty overincome tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According
to the appendix, companies need to determined the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment,
or group of tax treatment, that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filling which has to be considered
to compute the most likely amount or expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax
bases, unused taxlosses, unused tax credit and tax rates.

The Standard Permits two possible methods of transition:

*Full Retrospective Approach- Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to each prior Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight, and

*Retrospectively with cumulative effect on initially applying Appendix C recognized by adjusting equity on initialapplication,
without adjusting comparatives The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2019. The Company will adopt the Standard on April 1, 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effectin
equity on the date of initial application i.e. April 1, 2019 without adjusting comparatives .

Effective date for the application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company is
currently evaluating the effect of this amendment.
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41 Government Grants

The Group had received government grant which was capitalised in 2014-15 amounted to Rs 637.97 Lakhs with respect to
Amphomul project. This grant, recognized as deferred income, is being amortized over the usefulz life of the Intangible
assets in proportion in which the related depreciation expense is recognised.

42 Thefinancial statements ofthe Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 were audited by BS R & Co. LLP, Chartered

Accountants, the predecessor auditor.

43 Previous years figures for the previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary to correspond with the current

year's classification /disclosure.

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Bharat Serums and Vaccines Limited
CIN :U24230MH1971PLC015134

Sd/ oy
N Gautam V Daftary
BharatV Daftary Managing Director
Chairman and Managing Director DIN : 00009326
DIN : 00011518 '
sd/- Sd/-
Place: Mumbai Anil M Damle Chacr:’:a;t: Sssca’r:taant
Date: 30 July 2019 Chief Financial Officer pary 4

Membership No: A22337
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Form No. MGT-11

Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3)
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Bharat Serums & Vaccines Limited
CIN: U24230MH1971PLC015134
Registered Office: 17" Floor, Hoechst House, Nariman Point,
Mumbai 400021, Maharashtra, India.

I/We, being the member (s) of Equity shares of the above-named Company, hereby appoint

1.

Name:

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature:

Name:

or failing him

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature:

Name:

or failing him

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature:
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as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 46" Annual General
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, August 30, 2019 at 03.00 p.m., at the Registered Office of
the Company at 17th Floor, Hoechst House, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400021, Maharashtra, India and at
any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No.

Signed this day of 2019.

Signature of shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Affix
Revenue Stamp

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

46" Annual General Meeting of the members of “Bharat Serums & Vaccines Limited” scheduled to be held
on Friday, August 30, 2019 at 03.00 p.m., at the Registered Office of the Company at 17" Floor, Hoechst House,
Nariman Point, Mumbai 400021, Maharashtra, India.

Regd. FolioNo /DPID

ClientID/Ben.A/C No. of shares held

| certify that | am a registered shareholder/proxy for the registered Shareholder of the Company and hereby
record my presence at the 46" Annual General Meeting of the Company scheduled to be held on Friday,
August 30, 2019 at 03.00 p.m., at the Registered Office of the Company at 17" Floor, Hoechst House, Nariman
Point, Mumbai 400021, Maharashtra, India.

Member's/Proxy's name in Block Letters Member's/Proxy's Signature

Note: Pleasefill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance ofthe hall.
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